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Financial Highlights and Calendar
MBHMENRME AR

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B E
Year ended 31 March 2022 2021 Change
HE=A=1+—HItFE —EICF - —fF BE)
HK$’000 HK$'000 %
FET FET =
Revenue WA 7,508,753 6,714,255 11.8
Profit attributable to equity holders ARFIEHERFE A 21,214 359,130 (94.1)
of the Company FEAE R T
Total assets BERE 6,871,846 7,154,673 (4.0)
Net assets BEFE 2,826,376 3,034,836 (6.9)
Basic earnings per share FREEA T F) HK$0.04 & 7T HK$0.62 77T (93.5)
Interim and final dividends per share =TGR INE ]S HK28 cents &1l HK38 cents &1l (26.3)
Net assets per share SREEFE HK$4.83 % T HK$5.187 7T (6.8)
FINANCIAL CALENDAR
B A3
Announcement of Interim Results 24 November 2021

REIRE N —E-—F+—HZ+WA

Announcement of Annual Results 15 June 2022

PERENM —ZE-—FA+HAA

Dividends Interim dividend: HK10 cents per share paid on 24 December 2021

A2 RHARR S, FE108M BER =B =—F+ - A=-1+WAIRN

Proposed final dividend:

HK18 cents per share payable on 26 September 2022

BEARHRE FRI1SHEN  R=FE-—FNA=—+/<BEN
Annual General Meeting (“AGM") 8 September 2022
BREAFAE —ZT-—FAANHE

Closure of Register of Members
TiEpERM B &R

5 September 2022 to 8 September 2022 (both days inclusive)

(for determining eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM)
—E-—HFARRRE-ZE-_—HFAA/N\B (BRMABELEAN)
(AFETE B MR IR AF R ERENER)

15 September 2022

(for determining entitlement to the final dividend)
—T-_FAAt+HH

(VAT YRR BRI B Y B AR )
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The past year was marked by contrast. After growing the business back
to nearly pre-pandemic levels over the first three quarters, the fifth wave
of COVID-19 took an enormous toll on Hong Kong — impacting families,
businesses and the economy as the city shut down during the last quarter
of the financial year.

Against this backdrop, the Group attained revenue of HK$7,508.8 million
and delivered profit attributable to shareholders of HK$21.2 million for the
year ended 31 March 2022.

RECOVERY IN FUNDAMENTALS

The extremely challenging environment over the past few years has drilled
home the importance of optimising business fundamentals. In recent years,
the Group has taken a number of strategic steps to enhance long-term
performance, and the results of these initiatives were clearly apparent in our
business recovery from the start of the financial year. By the half year mark,
profit attributable to shareholders was significantly higher than the previous
period (excluding COVID-19 subsidies), and this positive momentum carried
into the third quarter.

However, the arrival of Omicron in the fourth quarter brought the most
difficult environment Hong Kong has seen since the beginning of the
pandemic. Strict anti-pandemic measures on dining operations — combined
with significant numbers of our own staff testing positive for the virus
— led to the closure of 109 stores at the peak of the fifth wave, and the
cumulative loss of 2,755 business days at our stores (around 17% of
capadity).

On 1 March 2022, the Group took decisive action to protect our staff and
the community by switching to full-day takeaway service at most Café de
Coral fast food and Super Super Congee & Noodles outlets. Prioritising
the health of our customers and staff, this three-week arrangement helped
to control transmission during the peak of the fifth wave.
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Mindful of our duty to the community, the Group maintained operations
at hospital locations throughout the height of the pandemic, providing hot
meals and a welcome break for medical staff on the front lines. We also re-
purposed school lunchbox production line to serve meals at elderly nursing
homes, and ensured needy children had access to a nutritious lunch every
day through the Education Bureau’s Community Care Fund.

MANAGEMENT TRANSITION AND GOALS

During these difficult times, the Board has been working diligently to
optimise business performance as part of our ongoing transition from
owner management to a sustainable management model. We have
reconfirmed the performance of our Managing Directors for Hong Kong
and Mainland China, Piony Leung and James Yang, respectively, under
the harshest conditions. Looking forward, the Board has decided to build
separate platforms in each of their markets, giving them the agility and
independence to meet their strategic three-year goals.

In Hong Kong, our priority is unlocking the potential of our sizable revenue
by improving profit margins. This involves consolidating and optimising
our operations and carefully managing overhead. To achieve this, we are
building our portfolio of brands, refining business models and increasing
investment in digital infrastructure. Strengthening the effectiveness of loyalty
club membership programmes and multichannel marketing and distribution
will also enhance business momentum. Building on these initiatives, we
aim to improve profit margins from low to high single digits within the next
three years.

In Mainland China, the business has been expanding at a steady pace for
several years — and continued to grow from 121 to 136 stores this past year
while building robust margins. This is a record number of new stores for the
Group, achieved despite the setbacks of the pandemic. Focusing our efforts
under a single brand in our natural home market of the Greater Bay Area,
our goal is to grow our retail network to 280 stores over the next three
years while maintaining healthy profitability and service levels.
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| remain confident that our three-year goals are achievable and will create
new value for our shareholders. As our capable and tested team takes over
management of daily operations, the Board and | will continue to closely
monitor their progress and provide strategic guidance for the long-term
benefit of the Group.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

During these exceptionally tough times, | must personally thank all of our
frontline staff for their commitment, and especially our Institutional Catering
staff at hospitals — most notably Queen Elizabeth Hospital. This hospital was
converted into a dedicated COVID-19 facility in March, requiring our staff
to implement strict health, safety and cleaning measures to serve medical
workers on the front lines. | must also thank our Board of Directors, business
partners, employees, investors and customers for their continued support
under these demanding conditions.

Leveraging our market-leading position, deep roots in the community and
the strength of our management team, | remain confident that the Group
is highly fit to compete, and will quickly return to solid, stable performance
when anti-pandemic restrictions are removed.

LO HOI KWONG, SUNNY
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 June 2022

8 Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22

At - JHARERFN=FHEFERER - I
RBRREEHEE SENBEELERATH—
XRBEFHNEKER  MEBAEEE
% EERERSEETVEFEEHML
REENRENDREREERESE -

IS wit

EEBREABRENEY  BRROBHEEMA
RIAR B TADESPRLL - WA E - B RIE RS
RERBRENBEBRRET - ERRIREEA
ERERGE - BRETER ®ERZET
EREX  LERE= ABREWHBEERETE
HBOABRNFNADBEER -  RABRHES
B FrEXEBRN BT REBREE H
BRI RVIRIR T - A — BRI SO R

BHREBRLENTISIMT - AHEROEERE
LERBGNEEE  WRAEEECEDF
T BEEAREFERRAM L - WA
BB R BR 12 SRR IR B AR R R 3R

1

EE —E-—FXxA+AHH



Business Highlights

E 3 E

The fifth wave of COVID-19 in Hong Kong and the pandemic situation
in Shenzhen and Zhuhai in the last quarter of FY2021/22 seriously
disrupted the Group’s operations and business, as well as the business
recovery and momentum achieved in the first three quarters. Significant
loss of sales was recorded during the fourth quarter.

The Group's revenue for the year reached HK$7,508.8 million
(FY2020/21: HK$6,714.3 million) and profit attributable to shareholders
decreased to HK$21.2 million (FY2020/21: HK$359.1 million). COVID-19
relief and subsidies from the government of HK$127.8 million were
recorded during the year, compared to HK$638.9 million in the previous
financial year.

Hong Kong operations focused on driving manpower productivity,
supported by continuing efforts in digitalisation, automation and
process simplification. Revenue from Hong Kong operations for the year
increased by 12.0% compared to the previous financial year, attributable
to the successful launch of new products and marketing programmes,
as well as growth of the takeaway and delivery business.

Mainland China operations benefited from a broad shop network across
the Greater Bay Area which helped to offset business interruptions in
any single city during the pandemic. The business grew during the year,
with a record number of new shop openings. Revenue from Mainland
China operations for the year increased 11.0%.

A final dividend of HK18 cents per share is recommended (FY2020/21:
HK28 cents), with a total dividend payout ratio of 773.6% for the year.
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Financial Performance — Net Profit & Earnings per Share
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Café de Coral Group Key Strategic Businesses
RREEBFEREMFER

Mainland China
FER

17.7%

Hong Kong Casual Dining
BRREER

o
-
SANDWICHES

10.2%

Hong Kong
Quick Service Restaurant
EBERER

N
60.8%

Hong Kong Institutional Catering | Others
BEBENRR Hity
0,
A... 2%
9.3%
Revenue Distribution
WA

For the year ended 31 March 2022

S

FE=A=+—RILEE

Total Operating Units: 500

PRI 1" A
EEBNAY
(As of 31 March 2022)

(BE=Z-—F=A=+—H)
250 IIII No. of new shops (Since 1 April 2021): 54
HOEHE (BT -_—FMA—AR)
Total #82k: 204 N
200 . New shops
HoME 17
150 Total #8%K: 136
New shops
Total #2%4: 97 o521
100 e New shops
Total #2%4: 63 #HoE 10
50 New shops
HDIE: 6
0
Hong Kong QSR Hong Kong Hong Kong Mainland
BEERRENR Casual Dining Institutional China
ERREER Catering RER
BBEBHRR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWR D

INTRODUCTION AND HIGHLIGHTS

With the COVID-19 situation in Hong Kong and Mainland China largely
stabilised during the first half of the financial year ended 31 March 2022,
the Group’s business recovered significantly by the interim reporting period.
Leveraging our fine-tuned strategies and operations, we were able to sustain
this momentum into the third quarter — nearly reaching pre-pandemic levels
of business performance.

However, the fifth wave of the COVID-19 pandemic in the last quarter
brought serious disruptions to our operations and business in Hong Kong.
As a result of the government’s dine-in restrictions and the intermittent
closure of shops due to infections in our workforce, the Group suffered a
cumulative loss of 2,755 shop operating days in Hong Kong. Our South
China fast food business was also severely hit by lockdowns and restrictions
due to the pandemic situation in Shenzhen and Zhuhai during March 2022.
These factors led to a significant loss of sales during the fourth quarter.

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2022 increased by 11.8%
to HK$7,508.8 million. Profit attributable to shareholders for FY2021/22
was HK$21.2 million, compared to HK$359.1 million in FY2020/21. The
Group recorded COVID-19 relief and subsidies of HK$127.8 million from
the government during the year under review, compared to government
COVID-19 relief and subsidies totalling HK$638.9 million recorded by the
Group in FY2020/21.

Hong Kong faced strict and prolonged anti-pandemic restrictions during the
fourth quarter with surging numbers of infections in the city. Despite the
severity of the situation, the Group maintained its strong commitment to
the community. We prioritised manpower allocation to ensure continuous
service at branches located in hospitals to serve medical workers on the
front lines of the battle. Lunchbox production lines were re-purposed to
help serve elderly homes, quarantine hotels and isolation facilities; and
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the Group launched its first food assistance programme, “Bon Appétit
Café"”, dedicated to supporting families, the unemployed and low-income
individuals facing immediate financial difficulties with a total amount of
HK$12 million of food vouchers during the first year of the programme.

In Mainland China, the Group’s broad and balanced portfolio of shops
across the Greater Bay Area helped to offset business interruptions in
any single city. Although periodic outbreaks affected network expansion
plans, the Group still managed to open a record number of new shops in
Mainland China during the year. Performance during this challenging period
has confirmed the health and viability of the Group’s operating model in
Mainland China, and the market remains a significant growth engine for
the Group's business.
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Looking forward, the Group remains cautiously optimistic about the
prospects for the coming year. Although first quarter performance has still
been impacted by the fifth wave, the Group anticipates a gradual return to
normal market conditions from the second quarter onwards.

Building on fundamental business improvement evidenced by robust
recovery during the first three quarters of the financial year, the Group
has set a strategic three-year target to enhance margins in Hong Kong
and expand its network throughout the Greater Bay Area. We remain
confident that our operations are well positioned to return to strong levels
of performance and profitability when the pandemic situation improves.
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RESULTS OVERVIEW
Revenue

REME

WA

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group recorded revenue of @E

HK$7,508.8 million, a 11.8% increase as compared to HK$6,714.3 million
in FY2020/21. Revenue by business division is set out below:

EBBEINT

T __HF=ZA=1+—HILFE £B
BRATS088EEBTL R_EBE-F
F67143E%/%7nigﬂu11.8%0;ﬁ%luﬁz)\}ﬂ

——fF

FY2021/22 FY2020/21

—g=-—— /== —E-FE Change
FE FE HE
HK$'m HK$'m %
BEET AE5T Bt

Hong Kong aH
Quick Service Restaurants RRER 4,563.1 4,216.1 8.2
Casual Dining UNEIES 770.5 622.0 23.9
Institutional Catering HERR 695.5 534.7 30.1
Others* At 148.1 141.4 4.7
Subtotal N 6,177.2 5,514.2 12.0
Mainland China FEIR it 1,331.6 1,200.1 11.0
Group 568 7,508.8 6,714.3 11.8

*  Represents mainly income from food processing and distribution and rental income

Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit margin increased to 7.3% during the year (FY2020/21: 5.6%),
primarily due to business recovery in the first three quarters, despite serious
business disruptions brought by pandemic in the last quarter of the financial
year.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by 0.8% to HK$458.8 million
(FY2020/21: HK$462.6 million).
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Key Costs FE/RAK
The breakdown of major expenses is set out below: FERHINAT
FY2021/22 FY2020/21
—— = EE —E-FE
HK$'m % of revenue HK$’'m % of revenue
BEEET WAL (%) B&E5T WA (%)
Cost of raw materials R BN
and packing 2,252.2 30.0 2,008.1 29.9
Staff cost AL 2,563.2 34.1 2,366.1 35.2
Rental costs* B * 874.0 11.6 855.7 12.7

* Includes rental related depreciation in right-of-use assets, finance cost of lease liabilities, rental
costs of short-term lease and low-value leases, as well as turnover rent and gain on modification
and termination of leases

Other Income and Other Losses, Net

Other income and other losses, net decreased by HK$518.7 million, mainly
because the Group recorded a lower amount of government subsidies
during the year.

Income Tax Expense
Income tax expense decreased by 6.9% to HK$27.9 million (FY2020/21:
HK$30.0 million).

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders

The Group's profit attributable to equity holders decreased 94.1% to
HK$21.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 (FY2020/21: HK$359.1
million), primarily because the Group recorded a lower amount of
government subsidies during the year and the fifth wave of the COVID-19
pandemic in the last quarter brought serious disruptions to business and
operations. However, if excluding COVID-19 government subsidies, the
Group’s loss narrowed by 61.9%.
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FY2021/22 FY2020/21

—=E—— /== —E-FE S — Change
FE FE BE
HK$'m HK$'m %
BEET =1 v Bk
Profit Attributable to Equity Holders iR A A EF 21.2 359.1 (94.1)
If excluding: (EE{cIE
COVID-19 subsidies A A E B E B (127.8) (638.9)
Adjusted net loss BAZRFEER (106.6) (279.8) (61.9)
Segment Results ﬁiﬁ e
Hong Kong segment results decreased 38.4% to HK$415.2 million in ~ RZ=ZT=— /%% %x%ﬁiE¥ZIT|3¢
FY2021/22 (FY2020/21: HK$674.2 million), mainly because the Group 384% FEAIS2EEB L(—ZE-F /=

recorded a lower amount of COVID-19 subsidies during the year and the & : 6742 B&ET) IK&E’Q‘@W%II%&
fifth wave of the COVID-19 pandemic in the last quarter brought serious A& & & E%1F E’Jiéfﬁﬂﬁd\&%@*ﬁfﬁﬁ
disruptions to business and operations. Results from the Mainland China ~ REBHEELREETRKBEELE - PEAM
segment decreased 33.7% to HK$99.0 million (FY2020/21: HK$149.4 (BRI TME33.7% E9.08&ETL(ZE-F
million), mainly because the pandemic situation in Shenzhen and Zhuhaiin /= —%/E : 1494 B&E#ET) » TEHR-Z

March 2022 caused serious business disruptions. ZoE = ARYIRIR BRI E R B T ERK
MEITE -

Basic Earnings Per Share BREEF

The Group’s basic earnings per share decreased 93.5% to HK4 cents forthe ~ BE T _F=A=+—HILFE  £ES

year ended 31 March 2022 (FY2020/21: HK62 cents). ERBFIKADIB5%E4BWUW(ZZTZ

Z—FE  62781) -

Dividend 9=

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK18 cents ~ EFREHFABRRKEHE —FT - —F=H
per share to shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2022 (FY2020/21: =+t —BIFFEZ RBARSFEI8EI(=F
HK28 cents). Together with the interim dividend of HK10 cents per share T —FE 28B) c ERIFRNREF
paid during the year, the dividend payout ratio for the year is 773.6%. HREERI10BI - 2FIREXRT73.6% °
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BUSINESS REVIEW

As of 31 March 2022, the Group had a network of 364 stores in Hong
Kong (31 March 2021: 352) and 136 stores in Mainland China (31 March
2021:121).

Hong Kong Retail Operations

Quick Service Restaurants (QSR)

Revenue from the QSR division increased by 8.2% to HK$4,563.1 million
(2021: HK$4,216.1 million) during FY2021/22. Café de Coral fast food and
Super Super Congee & Noodles recorded same store sales growth of 6%
and 13%, respectively. The business contributed 60.8% of the Group’s total
revenue for the reporting year, operating a total of 204 shops at 31 March
2022 (31 March 2021: 201).
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The first three quarters were marked by healthy business recovery across all
stores and a return to growth momentum, nearly returning to pre-pandemic
sales levels by December. New products and marketing promotions
strengthened the business’ core category strategy. The introduction of
vegetarian pork chop baked rice established a strong entry in the vegetarian
category, and further boosted the momentum of our overall baked rice
series. It has been received with overwhelming success, helping us tap into
a new customer segment and enabling us to offer more choice to a broader
and more diverse group of diners. Supported by strong alliances with all
three payment gateways, we have successfully tapped into spending driven
by government consumption coupons.

The fifth wave of COVID-19 caused an exponential increase in cases during
February and March, and brought serious disruptions to the business caused
by strict government dine-in restrictions and intermittent closure of shops
due to staff infections. To safeguard the health of our staff and customers,
and to help break transmission within the community, the management
team made a decisive move to suspend dine-in service at most QSR outlets
from 1 March until the week of 21 March.
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Impacts from the fifth wave led to the temporary closure of 70 shops at the
peak of the pandemic and a cumulative loss of 1,539 shop operating days
in February and March 2022, significant loss of sales, and higher labour
costs — not only in terms of extra protective gear and self-test kits, but also
in staffing increases to comply with government mandated Leave Home
Safe monitoring and vaccine pass verification.

Addressing these challenges, the Group’s focus on driving manpower
productivity is being supported by continuing efforts in digitalisation,
automation and process simplification. Self-ordering kiosks and digital
operating service models have been installed in all shops, providing a
frictionless customer experience. Streamlining of the mobile ordering app
contributed to a significant increase in mobile transactions, and further
customer-oriented technology upgrades are in the pipeline.

Club 100 Membership remains a key competitive advantage in retaining and
expanding our customer base. With over one million members and a high
percentage of active users, Club 100 facilitates timely marketing of new and
seasonal products while deepening relationships with loyal customers.
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The Group’s online platform, eatCDC.com, recorded significant growth in
traffic and sales, driven by continued strong response to seasonal festive
promotions including Christmas party sets and Chinese New Year poon-choi
offerings. Partnership with third party delivery platforms helped to capture
significant opportunities in takeaway and delivery business, along with
exposure to a vastly different customer base. Encouraged by positive market
response, the Group will continue to invest in its omni channel platform.

The wider economic recovery during the first three quarters was
accompanied by rising rental and labour costs, together with surging food
and supply chain costs. Addressing these margin pressures, a task force has
been set up to oversee strategic sourcing and menu reengineering, as well
as smart business planning, automation and execution enhancement. The
business has been closely monitoring other expenses to strike a balance
between business growth and cost control as the economy recovers.

Café de Coral fast food opened 11 new stores, ending the year with 162
stores (31 March 2021: 161). Super Super Congee & Noodles opened 6
new stores, operating 42 stores at the end of the financial year (31 March
2021: 40). A store network mapping plan has been developed to identify
and follow up on potential store sites in Hong Kong by geographic district,
allowing pipeline sites to be identified according to business impact and
competition penetration. At present, 10 new QSR shops are in the pipeline.
Supporting network expansion efforts, the ongoing rollout of new store
formats will help to enhance productivity as well as per-square-foot sales.
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Casual Dining
Revenue from the Casual Dining business increased by 23.9% during the
year to HK$770.5 million (FY2020/21: HK$622.0 million).

Improved business momentum in Casual Dining over the first three quarters
was suddenly halted by the fifth wave of COVID-19, when restrictive social
distancing measures severely reduced customer traffic. The fifth wave of
COVID-19 led to the temporary closure of 26 shops at the peak of the
pandemic and the cumulative loss of 746 shop operating days in February
and March 2022, which severely affected the performance of casual dining
operations.

Proactively addressing the situation, a number of initiatives were
implemented across all brands to improve performance, including control
of manpower and operational expenses, temporary closure of shops and
reduction of business hours, and continued menu reengineering to improve
food costs and reduce operational wastage.

The division operated 63 shops at the end of the financial year (31 March
2021: 60). Shanghai Lao Lao opened 1 new shop, and together with
Mixian Sense, the two brands operated 13 and 18 shops, respectively,
as of 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: 13 and 19, respectively). The
Spaghetti House operated 8 shops at the end of the year (31 March
2021: 8), while Oliver's Super Sandwiches successfully expanded into
the university campus market and opened 2 new shops during the year,
operating 19 shops at the financial year end (31 March 2021: 17).

Looking ahead, Shanghai Lao Lao aims to strengthen its position as a
leading brand in its segment, while Mixian Sense will embark on a more
aggressive shop expansion programme. Oliver's Super Sandwiches is
focusing on automation to improve productivity and efficiency, and The
Spaghetti House is continuing its ongoing brand rejuvenation efforts.

UNDEEEA

FR ABEREBHU AR N239%E
7705EBEL(ZE=F = —FF 16220
BEBIT) °

BT A FE 5 AR FT B i AR B I B R LR B
BERIPR BITE B + BRER D TR B R E SRR
BhE EREFETZEBSCE-_ZTERNEHS
P XERRBBELE  KBEREBERE
SIEE26MPIEEREEX  — S _F =8
=R RFFBAMEEEREETION  BRE
FEZEBHRS -

KEEREXGRG R ERILER  ETAA
mEHERDZEE R ERR - EPREE
HIAFRAREERS  BAPIEEREER
MHREERE UNEFHRAEE  URER
MR EERA

ZEBRTBRFEREESHME(ZT=—
F=R=+—H:60) - LigEEMAL 1M
FIE o BROKERE - ZMERBER T ==
—A=t+—H2RKEE13RISEFE(ZE
——%=A=t—H:25®13%19) ° The
Spaghetti House (E¥3 ) 70 4 R4 & 8 i P
JE(ZE=Z—F=A=+—H :8) ' MOlivers
Super Sandwiches (RIZE B & =308) AR
RERER KERR TSI HEZ2EHFE
R BEEREE19BMIE(ZE_—F=A
=+t—H:17)°

BERNK  LBBBHEEZEERTHETSF
B RE ST BT - T K AR B 4 B S AR Hb HE OR
JE #84% - Oliver's Super Sandwiches ( F| £ i
M=30CR) KEPFEBE B LARSEE DAL
& » The Spaghetti House (X B ) Bl 4 & %
H#EBmEFRL -

ARBEEFR AR 2021/22 Fif

21



Institutional Catering

Despite the unpredictable nature of closures in schools, hospitals and other
public/private institutions due to anti-pandemic restrictions, the Institutional
Catering business remained active during the year under review. However,
the fifth wave of COVID-19 led to the temporary closure of 13 Asia Pacific
Catering shops at the peak of the pandemic, and the cumulative loss of
470 shop operating days. Revenue from the business increased by 30.1% to
HK$695.5 million (FY2020/21: HK$534.7 million).

Asia Pacific Catering ended the year with 97 operating units (31 March
2021: 91). It successfully renewed the majority of its contracts and signed
a number of new contracts, expanding its reach into the international
school sector during the year. The Group made special effort to provide
uninterrupted service for all of our business partners during the fifth wave
of the pandemic — especially in the hospital sector, where we re-allocated
manpower and resources to serve the medical community on the front lines
of the pandemic.

Luncheon Star joined the Education Bureau in implementing the
Community Care Fund lunchbox programme for students, and continues to
explore opportunities to diversify its product and business lines. As schools
in Hong Kong have not yet returned to full day classes, under-utilised
production lines have been repurposed to support the community, allowing
us to provide critically-needed meals to quarantine hotels, COVID-19
isolation facilities and elderly homes.

The Group remains confident in leveraging its market leadership and
reputation as a preferred business partner to quickly recapture growth
opportunities when the pandemic situation is under control.
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Mainland China Operations

Revenue from Mainland China operations increased by 11.0% to
HK$1,331.6 million (FY2020/21: HK$1,200.1 million). The South China
fast food business experienced a 4.9% increase in revenue to RMB1,056.8
million, however strict restrictions in response to intermittent pandemic
outbreaks led to negative same store sales growth of 1% for the year.

The South China fast food business maintained healthy growth and store-
level profit margins throughout the first half of the financial year despite
an isolated COVID-19 outbreak in Guangzhou in June. A strategic focus
on hero products and building the breakfast market led to new product
development, menu restructuring and successful marketing promotions.

However, the partial lockdowns in Shenzhen and Zhuhai due to the
pandemic situation in March 2022 impacted 53 stores, which were
temporarily closed or only allowed to operate at limited capacity — leading
to a significant loss of sales revenue.
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Outside of Guangzhou, Shenzhen and Zhuhai, the Group recorded healthy
same store growth across the Greater Bay Area, confirming its portfolio
management approach for network expansion.

Focusing on driving sales growth while improving productivity, supply
chain management, recruitment and training, the Group is driving repeat
purchases and building customer loyalty through membership programmes
and e-coupons. At the same time, it is proactively managing costs through
menu optimisation and efficiency improvements. Digitalisation is a key factor
in boosting efficiency and the customer experience, while investments in in-
store robotics and automation have reduced manpower requirements.

With a focus on network expansion, the Group has developed a
standardised, modular store format to raise productivity and lower the
breakeven requirement for new stores, paving the way for faster growth.
Although the pace of store openings was impacted by the pandemic, the
Group opened a record 21 new stores during the year and 16 new stores
are in the pipeline.

The tough economic environment has increased availability of strategic shop
locations, and the Group plans to take advantage of market weakness to
open new stores and build brand awareness.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Position

The Group’s financial position remained healthy during the year under
review. As of 31 March 2022, the Group had cash of approximately
HK$1,586 million, with HK$899 million in available banking facilities. The
Group’s current ratio as of the same date was 1.2 (31 March 2021: 1.5) and
the cash ratio was 0.9 (31 March 2021: 1.2). The Group had borrowings of
HK$1,080 million (31 March 2021: HK$1,179 million) and a nil gearing ratio
(ratio of total borrowing less cash and cash equivalents to total equity) (31
March 2021: nil).

Capital Expenditure and Commitment

During the year under review, the Group’s capital expenditure (excluding
right-of-use assets of leased properties) was HK$507 million (FY2020/21:
HK$257 million). As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s outstanding capital
commitments were HK$712 million (31 March 2021: HK$735 million).

Contingent Liabilities

As of 31 March 2022, the Company provided guarantees of approximately
HK$2,233 million (31 March 2021: HK$2,229 million) to financial
institutions in connection with banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries.
The Group had no charge on assets as of 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021:
nil).

Financial Risk Management

With regard to foreign exchange fluctuations, the Group earned revenue
and incurred costs and expenses mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars,
while those of our Mainland China businesses were in Renminbi. Foreign
currency exposure did not pose a significant risk for the Group, but we will
remain vigilant and closely monitor our exposure to movements in relevant
currencies.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As of 31 March 2022, the Group had a workforce of 17,954 employees (31
March 2021: 18,109).

Staff training and development are critical to the Group’s ongoing success.
We continued to focus on customer service and product quality training to
pursue excellence amongst operational staff, as well as succession and talent
development at all levels. The QSR business completed implementation
of a chain-wide Area Management Training Program to train and develop
our talent pool at the shop level, and to ensure consistent follow-through
on Quality, Service and Cleanliness efforts. Other initiatives such as the
Coaching Program, Experience Sharing Forum and Leadership Training
continued to drive development of management and staff.
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Focusing on compliance and sustainability, the Group introduced a new
video training programme themed around integrity, IT Security as well as
corporate compliance — covering anti-bribery and anti-corruption, data
privacy, anti-discrimination and occupational safety and health.

The Group reviews internal equity and market benchmarking on pay level
regularly. Remuneration at all staff levels is based on individual experience,
qualifications, duties and responsibilities. Qualified employees are entitled to
participate in profit sharing bonus and performance incentive programmes,
as well as share award and share option schemes. The Long Term Incentive
Plan was reviewed during the year, and an enhanced programme will be
launched for the new financial year.

Proactively reaching out to protect and comfort staff during the worst of
the pandemic, we looked after employees’ well-being by arranging health
talks, extending medical coverage, distributing lucky packs filled with anti-
pandemic items and free Rapid Antigen Testing kits, as well as vaccination
leave and extra support for staff recovering from COVID-19.
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SUSTAINABILITY

The Group remains strongly committed to supporting the global agenda on
sustainable development. By including environmental, social and governance
("ESG") initiatives as a core component of our strategy and operations, we
are integrating sustainability as part of our daily operations and improving
the competitiveness of our business.

The Group has been a constituent of the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability
Benchmark Index since 2015, and has obtained an “A" MSCI ESG rating.
Further strengthening governance and oversight of sustainability issues, we
formalised these initiatives under our new Group Sustainability Committee
and Mainland China Sustainability Committee in July 2021.

Tackling our environmental footprint, we also intensified our focus on food
waste reduction during the year under review.

To support the community — and especially the underprivileged members
of Hong Kong’s society, the Group launched a number of community
programmes during the year. We utilised production lines from our
Institutional Catering division to donate 2,500 boxes of “Nutri-rich” poon-
choi to 5,000 beneficiaries through 25 social welfare organisations. In
addition, the Group donated HK$500,000 worth of dining vouchers to
the Share for Good crowd-donation platform launched by New World
Development to support families impacted by COVID-19.

The pilot run of our “Bon Appétit Café” Food Assistance Programme
provided HK$2 million of short-term food assistance to 500 beneficiaries
through the Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council (NAAC) from December
2021 to February 2022. Subsequent to the end of the financial year, the
pilot programme has been expanded to provide a total of HK$12 million of
food vouchers to 3,000 eligible recipients in its first year.

Full details of our sustainability programmes can be found in the Group’s
Sustainability Report 2021/22.
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OUTLOOK

As the market gradually recovers, the Group remains cautiously optimistic
about the year ahead. Having laid the groundwork for fundamental
business improvement, we are confident in a quick return to growth when
pandemic restrictions are lifted.

Reaping the benefits of digitalisation, we are expanding our digital platform
to include participation across Group brands. At the same time, margin
optimisation is unlocking extra value to meet our three-year financial
objectives.

In Hong Kong, pent-up demand for social activities and gatherings is
expected to drive revenue, and a number of sales and marketing initiatives
have been prepared to capture consumer spending fuelled by government
consumption vouchers. Building on the success of Club 100, the Group has
implemented a holistic Customer Relationship Management plan to increase
membership and sales.

=,

Al

BEETISE S EE  SREHRFHSREEER
LB RPEAMEEREKIT TRENR
%] 7€ BETE BUIT AR BR T 2 IR Il 12 AR

% /7K1|:1 EOS
ElEHEE -

RERPWBCERNERD  BRALEEREHE
MBIBETE  ERREETSME - EitR
& IRRANBERTADAEEANNERE <
BMERARR=ZFNHHEIE -
FRFRB M BRHEE D AWM IRE) KB
EFERBFHEBRAIER - MER D HE
ZEHENTSHEERR  BRIEBNBTH
B8P RRBEE ) - £ [Club 100] &
BEEMARINER  SECHTEENERH
REIEETE - IENS B ABNIRSHER

ARBEEFR AR 2021/22 Fif

29



Although the Institutional Catering division continues to be impacted
by anti-pandemic restrictions, the Group will leverage its market-leading
position as a preferred industry partner to fully resume growth when
conditions allow.

In Mainland China, the Group remains confident that its robust brand
reputation and business model will continue to drive profitability and
growth. The Group is prioritising network expansion in the Greater Bay
Area over the next three years as it optimises business models and enhances
brand leadership. Efforts to engage landlords have created new strategic
alliances, facilitating access to prime shop locations, as well as rental
concessions and favourable leasing terms. Additional efforts in digitalisation
and the rollout of new store formats will enhance the customer experience
while improving efficiency, productivity and margins.

Building on its solid fundamentals, digitally enabled operations and tight
focus on margins, the Group's business is well positioned to build revenue,
enhance brand reputation, expand retail networks and accelerate growth
over the years to come.
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Directors and Senior Management

ESkEREEAR

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chairman

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, aged 66, is the Chairman of the Company and
a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr Lo joined the Group in 1982
and had been an Executive Director since 1990 until his re-designation as
a Non-executive Director in April 2016. He was the Managing Director of
the Company from December 1997 to March 2012 and the Chief Executive
Officer from April 2012 to March 2016. As Chairman, Mr Lo is responsible
for leading and managing the Board to ensure that the Board effectively
operates and fully discharges its responsibilities. Mr Lo holds a Master’s
Degree in Chemical Engineering from Stanford University.

Mr Lo is the brother of Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, and a relative of Mr Chan Yue
Kwong, Michael, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, all of
whom are Directors of the Company. He is a director of Ardley Enterprises
(PTC) Limited and Victor Reach Investments Limited, each of which has
discloseable interests in the shares of the Company under the provisions of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, aged 69, joined the Group in 1982. Ms Lo has
been an Executive Director of the Company since 1990 except the period
from September 2016 to December 2017 which she was re-designated as a
Non-executive Director. She ceased to be an Executive Director in April 2019
and is currently a Non-executive Director. Ms Lo has more than 35 years of
experience in the fast food industry. She holds a Bachelor's Degree in Social
Sciences from The University of Hong Kong.

Ms Lo is the sister of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, and a relative of Mr Chan
Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, all
of whom are Directors of the Company.
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Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 70, joined the Group in 1984 and
was appointed as a Director of the Company in 1988. Mr Chan led the
Group as Managing Director from 1989 to 1997 and served as the Executive
Chairman from 1997 to 2012. He was re-designated as a Non-executive
Director in April 2012 and served as the Chairman of the Company
from April 2012 to March 2016. Mr Chan is currently a member of the
Remuneration Committee. Having worked as a professional town planner
for various government bodies in Hong Kong and Canada, Mr Chan has
considerable experience in planning and management. Mr Chan holds a
Degree in Sociology and Political Science, a Master’s Degree in City Planning
from the University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate Degree in
Business Administration, and an Honorary Fellow from Lingnan University.

Mr Chan is the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of
Marketing, the Advisor of the Quality Tourism Services Association and an
Adjunct Professor of The Hang Seng University of Hong Kong.

In past years, Mr Chan was personally bestowed with the “The Stars of
Asia Awards”, the “Executive of the Year Awards”, the “Bauhinia Cup
Outstanding Entrepreneur Awards”, the “Directors of the Year Awards”,
the Honoree, Beta Gamma Sigma of the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology and “Ernst & Young Entrepreneur of the Year”.

Mr Chan is currently an independent non-executive director of Starlite
Holdings Limited, Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited, Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
(International) Limited, Modern Dental Group Limited and Human Health
Holdings Limited and a non-executive director of Tao Heung Holdings
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr Chan is a relative of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr
Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, all of whom are Directors of
the Company.
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Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel, aged 68, joined the Group in 1984 and
has been a Non-executive Director of the Company since 1997. Mr Hui
is currently a member of the Audit Committee. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong and a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from the Brunel University in the United
Kingdom.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael, BBS, JP, aged 64, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 1994 and is the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee. Mr Choi is a Director and Senior Vice-President
of Henderson (China) Investment Company Limited. He has been in the real
estate industry for over 40 years with extensive knowledge and experience
in the real estate markets in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Currently, he
is the Vice-President of the Hong Kong Real Property Federation, a Board
Director and a member of Service Governing Committee and Property
Development & Maintenance Committee of Haven of Hope Christian
Service. Mr Choi graduated from the Business Management Department of
the Hong Kong Baptist College and obtained a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from the University of East Asia, Macau.

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey, aged 72, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 1994 and is the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee. Mr Li is Chairman of IAM Family Office
Limited, a Hong Kong-based investment firm, and has extensive experience
in the fields of investment banking, merchant banking and capital
markets. He is a non-executive director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited,
and an independent non-executive director of Kowloon Development
Company Limited and Pokfulam Development Company Limited. The
shares of all these companies are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr Li holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from Columbia University and a Bachelor’s Degree of Science
in Civil Engineering from Brown University.
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Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, SBS, JP, aged 66, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since July 2004 and is a member of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr Kwok is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong, and is a Partner
of Kwok Yih & Chan (“KYC"), Solicitors. Prior to founding KYC, he worked
in a number of international law firms, including Baker & McKenzie,
Simmons & Simmons (Partner), Andersen Legal (Managing Partner, Greater
China), Mallesons Stephen Jaques (Managing Partner, Mainland China and
Hong Kong) and King & Wood Mallesons (Managing Partner, Asia Strategy
& Markets). Mr Kwok graduated from the University of Sydney, Australia
with combined Degrees in accounting/economics and laws respectively
as well as a Master’s Degree in laws. He also obtained the Advanced
Management Program diploma from the Harvard Business School. He is
qualified to practise as a solicitor in Hong Kong, Australia, England and
Wales and Singapore. He is also qualified as a Chartered Accountant in
England and Wales and a CPA in Hong Kong and Australia. Mr Kwok
has served regularly on Government boards and committees. Previously,
he was Chairman of the Transport Advisory Committee, Chairman of
the Independent Police Complaints Council, Convenor of the Disciplinary
Appeals Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
Chairman of the Traffic Accident Victims Assistance Advisory Committee,
Chairman of the Appeal Board of the Criminal & Law Enforcement Injuries
Compensation Boards, Vice-Chairman of the Consumer Council and
Deputy Chairman of the Appeal Board under the Consumer Goods Safety
Ordinance. Currently, he is a Chairman of the Appeal Tribunal Panel of the
Buildings Ordinance (Cap.123) and an arbitrator of the Shenzhen Court of
International Arbitration.

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert, BBS, aged 71, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since January 2013 and is the Chairman
of the Audit Committee. Mr Au is the Honorary Chairman of BDO Limited,
the Hong Kong member firm of BDO International Limited. He has more
than 45 years of experience in the accountancy profession. Mr Au was
the President of the Council of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants from December 2007 to December 2008. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.

Mr Au is currently an independent non-executive director, the Chairman
of the Audit and Risk Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of AAC Technologies Holdings Inc., the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chief Executive Officer

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter, aged 60, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and a director of most subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lo joined
the Group in 1996 and has been an Executive Director since 1998. Mr Lo
was appointed as the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
September 2015 and has been the Chief Executive Officer since April 2016.
Mr Lo has performed key functions within the Group and led various major
projects for the growth and development of the Group’s business and
operations. As the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, Mr Lo leads the
overall management and strategic planning and development of the Group’s
businesses and operations. Mr Lo holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Electronic
Engineering & Physics from the Loughborough University of Technology,
a Master's Degree in Medical Physics from the University of Surrey, a
Doctorate’s Degree in Medical Physics from the University of London and an
Honorary Fellow from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr Lo is currently a non-executive director and a member of the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee of Vitasoy International Holdings
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also a member of the Executive
Committee of Hong Kong Retail Management Association.

Mr Lo is a relative of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, all of whom are
Directors of the Company. He is a director of Wandels Investment Limited,
Verdant Success Holdings Limited and Sky Bright International Limited, each
of which has discloseable interests in the shares of the Company under the
provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, aged 48, is an Executive Director of the Company
and a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr Lo also serves as a director
of most subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lo was a Non-executive Director of
the Company from 2010 until his re-designation as an Executive Director in
March 2016. Mr Lo is responsible for various duties and corporate activities
to support the Board in enhancing shareholder value. From March 2016 to
March 2022, Mr Lo was in charge of property and branch development,
project and facilities management, quantity surveying and business analysis
of the Group. He had served as Advisor (Special Projects) and Manager (Food
Manufacturing) of the Group from November 2003 to June 2009. Mr Lo
holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Arts, specialist in Economics from University of
Toronto and an Executive Master of Business Administration Degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr Lo is a relative of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter, all of whom are
Directors of the Company. He is a director of LBK Holding Corporation and
MMW Holding Corporation, each of which has discloseable interests in the
shares of the Company under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities and
Future Ordinance.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms Leung Ho Ting, Piony, aged 51, joined the Group in February 2019
and is the Managing Director (Hong Kong) of the Group. She also serves
as a director of most subsidiaries of the Company. Ms Leung is responsible
for managing and developing the Group’s catering business in Hong Kong,
namely, quick service restaurants, casual dining as well as institutional
catering (including school catering). She is also in charge of the Group’s
property and branch development, project and facilities management,
supply chain as well as finance and human resources functions in Hong
Kong. Ms Leung has over 25 years of experience in retail and fast-
moving consumer goods industries across Asia Pacific region. Prior to
joining the Group, Ms Leung held senior management positions with
leading multinational corporations with extensive experience in general
management, brand marketing as well as strategic business development.
Ms Leung holds a Bachelor's Degree of Arts from the University of Hong
Kong.
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Mr Yang Bin, James, aged 51, joined the Group in February 2016 and is
the Managing Director (China) of the Group. He also serves as a director
of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Yang is responsible for
strategic planning, business operation and market development of the
Group's catering businesses in Mainland China and Macau. He is also
in charge of the administrative functions of Mainland China operations,
including finance, information technology, legal and human resources. Mr
Yang has over 20 years of rich management experience gained from various
international corporations where he was responsible for leading corporate
strategic business development, formulating operation direction and
expanding business in Asia Pacific region. Mr Yang holds Master’s Degrees
in Business Administration from Kellogg Business School, Northwestern
University and Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.

Mr Lam Ming Fung, David, aged 53, joined the Group in April 2015 and
is the Senior General Manager (Casual Dining) of the Group. He also serves
as a director of most subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lam is responsible
for leading the overall management and development of the casual
dining business in Hong Kong. He has extensive experience in business
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Lam had worked for renowned
organisation and international retail group responsible for strategic business
development, operation management, marketing and product development
and customer management. He holds a Master's Degree in Business
Administration from University of Leicester.

Mr Ng Tsz Chiu, Ivan, aged 51, joined the Group in October 2013 and is
the General Manager (Supply Chain) of the Group. Mr Ng is responsible for
management and development of strategic procurement and supply chain
of the Group's operations in Hong Kong and Mainland China, as well as
overseeing the operations of the Group’s central food processing centres. He
has extensive experience in procurement management and has worked for
leading retail and international product distribution groups where he was
responsible for various strategic commercial and technical procurements.
Mr Ng holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Business from Queensland University of
Technology in Australia.
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Mr Tsang Yin Chiu, Stanley, aged 47, joined the Group in October 2012
and is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group. He also serves as a director
of most subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Tsang is responsible for financial
strategy and management as well as corporate compliance of the Group.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr Tsang held financial management positions
in various listed companies with businesses in different industries. Mr Tsang
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, and Chartered Financial Analyst.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERWRSE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) and management
aspire to a high standard of corporate governance and constantly strive
for a responsible and value-driven management focusing on safeguarding
and enhancing interest and value of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) as well as the long-term sustainability of the Group.

Shareholders &
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COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

Adhering to the principles of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), the Directors’ Handbook of
Corporate Governance adopted by the Board guides the Group’s corporate
governance framework and practices. For the year ended 31 March 2022,
the Company complied with all code provisions of the CG Code and
adopted the recommended best practices of the CG Code in force during
the year insofar as they are relevant and practicable.

Key practices under the Group’s corporate governance framework are set
out in this report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by the Board which assumes the responsibility for
leadership and control and be collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

Directors

The Board currently comprises ten members, including four Non-executive
Directors, four Independent Non-executive Directors and two Executive
Directors (collectively, the “Directors”) as follows:

Non-executive Directors

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chairman)
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert

Executive Directors
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan

Biographies, including relationships among members of the Board are set
out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section of the Company’s
Annual Report 2021/22.

The Board has a balanced composition of Executive and Non-executive
Directors with each Director having sound knowledge, experience and
expertise contributing to the successful performance and development
of the Group. All Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the Shareholders and have exercised their duties of care,
skill and diligence. In situation where certain areas of expertise/advice are
required, external advisers or consultants shall be engaged to advise the
Directors at the Company’s expenses. Comprehensive liability insurance
coverage is in place to provide protection to the Company, the Directors and
senior management.
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The Board conducts periodically evaluation of its performance with a view
to enhancing the Board’s effectiveness and corporate governance. The last
Board evaluation assisted by an external professional advisor was held in
2018, with areas of improvement identified and implemented to strengthen
the Board's operations, including extra focus on corporate vision and
strategy, management succession plan, Directors’ involvement, as well as
better collaboration and communication with management.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr Lo Hoi
Kwong, Sunny and Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter respectively. Their respective
responsibilities are clearly established and set out in the charter adopted by
the Board (the “Board Charter”).

The Chairman, being a Non-executive Director, provides leadership for the
Board and is accountable to the Board ultimately. The Chairman takes the
lead to encourage Directors to make active contribution to the Board's
affairs and ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company.

The Chief Executive Officer represents the management of the Company
and is accountable to the Board. His main responsibilities include overseeing
the implementation of the Group’s strategies, objectives and policies as
well as monitoring day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses and
operations.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-executive Directors
give the Board the benefit of their skills, expertise, varied background
and experiences. Through active participation in Board meetings and
serving on various Board Committees, the Non-executive Directors and the
Independent Non-executive Directors bring in independent judgment and
make valuable contributions to the effective direction and strategic decision-
making of the Group.
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The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of the four Independent Non-executive Directors under the guidelines
as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee
has assessed the independence of each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors during the year and considered them still to be independent,
taking into account criteria including, expression of objective view, provision
of independent advice and guidance, exercise of independent judgement,
as well as possession of required character, integrity, perspective, skills and
experience to fulfil the role of an independent director.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company’s Board Diversity Policy sets out its approach to achieve and
maintain its diversity through consideration of a number of measurable
objectives in terms of skills, professional experience, cultural and educational
background, gender, age, as well as other attributes and strengths that are
required for the Company’s business from time to time. Board appointments
are made on a merit basis and candidates are considered against objective
selection criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board. The Board has delegated the Nomination Committee to review the
implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy on an annual
basis, make recommendations on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity of the Board as appropriate and monitor the progress on achieving
the objectives.

In the annual review conducted by the Nomination Committee, the
Nomination Committee considered the current structure, size and
composition of the Board function well in leading the Group’s development,
and the existing Board Diversity Policy remains effective and suitable for the
Board and the Company.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted specific procedures for identifying, assessing and
nominating suitable candidates to the Board for appointment as a new
director of the Company in addition to the incumbents or to fill a vacancy.
Nomination to the Board shall be based on merit and consideration of
objective selection criteria developed by the Nomination Committee in light
of the needs and desires of the Board as well as the Company’s business
and strategies. Selected individuals shall be evaluated against the desired
criteria with consideration of the following factors:

o skills and knowledge

o related business / financial acumen and experience

o leadership and communication capabilities

o cultural background and personality

o integrity and reputation

o other commitments, including directorships in other listed companies

and public organisations

o independence criteria of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (applicable
for appointment of independent non-executive directors)

o other attributes and strengths, as appropriate

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

In compliance with the requirements under the Listing Rules and the Bye-
laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws"), (i) any Director who is appointed
to fill a casual vacancy is subject to election by Shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment; and (ii) all Directors should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and are eligible for re-
election.

All Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company have been appointed for a specific term subject to retirement by
rotation as required by the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Induction and Continuous Development
Every newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction package
to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the operations, business
and governance policies of the Group. In addition, our external legal adviser
meets with the new Director to ensure that he/she is fully aware of the
responsibilities as a director under statute and common law, the Listing
Rules, applicable legal requirements and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors recognise that continuous professional development is critical
for them to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains relevant. Directors receive
from senior management and the Company Secretary regular updates
and presentations on developments to the Group’s business and changes
to the statutory and regulatory requirements to facilitate the Directors'’
discharge of their responsibilities. The Company organises training and
briefing sessions regularly for the Directors to help them keep abreast with
the Group’s business and operation as well as developments of regulatory
and compliance requirements. Directors are also encouraged to participate
in continuous improvement programmes held by external bodies at the
expense of the Company.
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All Directors are required to provide the Company with their training record
on a regular basis. Summary of Directors’ training records for the year is set
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out below:

Directors 55 Training Areas M

$2 3| i 1B D)

Non-executive Directors JErTES
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chairman) BRI E (FE) a,bcde
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita EEBTL a,b,cde
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BRIA S & a, b cde
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel FFREESR A a,b,cde
Independent Non-executive Directors BIIEITES
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael FOEM A a,b,cde
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey THREfSE a,b,cdefg
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry SRR S a,bcdeqgh
Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert & R A a,bcde
Executive Directors WITES
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter (Chief Executive Officer) EIEASE (BEHTE) a,b,cde
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan BAES a, b,cde

Note: Training relating to (a) business development update of the Group; (b) business environment/
management; (c) corporate governance/risk management; (d) Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting; (e) legal or regulatory update; (f) banking/accounting/financial
reporting/taxation; (g) information technology; and (h) economics/national affairs

THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board Charter sets out the duties and powers of the Board as well as
the roles and responsibilities of the Directors, the Chairman of the Board,
the Chief Executive Officer and the Management Board.
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The Board is vested with duties and accountability to Shareholders
regarding management of the Group in addition to those powers and
authorities conferred upon it under the Bye-laws. The role of the Board is to
provide overall strategic direction for the Group and effective oversight of
management. The Board Charter sets out a schedule of matters reserved to
the Board which mainly include the following:

o Approval of strategic and business plans and financial budget of the
Group;
o Succession planning, appointment and remuneration of Directors,

Chief Executive Officer and senior management;

o Approval of significant transactions and investments and major
financial matters;

o Ensuring risk management and internal control systems of the
Group;

o Approval of Company’s announcements, circulars and reports,
including interim and annual results announcements and reports;
and

o Appointment or removal of external auditor.
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The Board has delegated to the Management Board the authority to
manage the day-to-day affairs of the Group. The Management Board
is headed by the Chief Executive Officer and its members include all the
Executive Directors, the Chief Financial Officer and such other senior
executives of the Group as nominated by the Chief Executive Officer and
agreed by the Board. When the Board delegates aspects of its management
and administration functions to management, clear directions are given
as to the limits of the authority delegated, in particular, the circumstances
where management should report to the Board before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on behalf of the Group. The Board reviews
its delegation of responsibilities to the Management Board from time to
time to ensure that they remain appropriate to the need of the Group and
its business. Principal functions that are delegated to the Management
Board include the following:

o Development and implementation of corporate strategy, business
plans and financial budgets;

o Approval of transactions, investments and financial matters within
the limit delegated by the Board,

o Management of day-to-day operations of the Group;

o Development, implementation and monitoring of risk management
and internal control;

o Development of human resources policies and succession planning
of executives; and

o Ensuring the Board and its Committees are provided with sufficient
and relevant information on a timely basis in relation to the Group’s
business and financial performance.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee to assist the Board to discharge its
functions. Each Committee has specific written terms of reference which
sets out clearly the Committee’s duties and authority. The terms of reference
of the Board Committees are published on the websites of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Committees are provided with sufficient resources to perform their
duties, including the management support and engagement of independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense. The Committees report to
the Board on their decisions or recommendations and maintain an effective
and constructive communication with the Board.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee currently comprises the following five Directors
with majority members being Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey
(Chairman of the Committee)

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Independent Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny Non-executive Director and Chairman
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan Executive Director

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing at least
annually the structure, size and composition (including skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board with due regard of diversity of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement

the Company’s corporate strategy.

48 Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22

EERETEES®
EERETRIURELZES
REEg UHHEZREITHRE -
SHARERR THERE  BREHIZE
ZBEREN REZRETZEG 2 BE
EEHNE BB T MR BRI -

=
z B

-~

¥

Moo
o

T A

>

i S 1

&

ZESRRUARERANBITERE  BEE
BENXEMARNARAZEER ZBLERE
Rit#h ZEERNEFRERLARIES
TERBFEFRFHAYMAZRMENEE -

REEES
REAZESHATINRARESTHEK  HPXE
DB RBIYIERITES :

FERESRE BYIFMITES
(ZEETE)

FOEMREL BYIFMITES

RS E BUIFATER

BRI TE FHTEERER

BRASE WITES

REAZEEIZASEVEBFIESTRE T
THRHNEZERZAE  ABMEK(BRERK
e - AE N ER) - WL I RRCA AR RIRER
M EHEEBDIEL N EBIRHEE -



The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year when the
following key issues were reviewed and considered and recommendations
were made to the Board where appropriate:

o The structure, size and composition of the Board with due regard of
the Board Diversity Policy;

o Independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors;

o Directors for Shareholders’ re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 6 September 2021; and

o Matters arising from changes of CG Code pertaining to the terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee effective from financial year
commencing on or after 1 January 2022.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises the following four
Directors with majority members being Independent Non-executive
Directors:

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael
(Chairman of the Committee)

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Independent Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Group's policy and structure
for remuneration of Directors and senior management and the specific
remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior management.
Remuneration of Directors and senior management is determined
with reference to duties and responsibilities of the role, experience and
performance of the individuals as well as the prevailing market conditions.
Remuneration of Executive Directors is structured to align with the long-
term interest of the Company with significant proportion of remuneration
linked to corporate and individual performance. Non-executive Directors
(including Independent Non-executive Directors) are remunerated with
fixed fee and have not been granted any equity-based remuneration with
performance-related elements.
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Three meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during the
year when the following key issues were reviewed and considered and
recommendations were made to the Board where appropriate:

o Remuneration package of Chairman, Executive Directors and senior
management based on individual performance appraisal;

o Grant of share awards under the Company’s Share Award Scheme;

o External consultants’ proposal on structural review of the Company’s
long-term incentive plan; and

o New long-term incentive programme of the Company, including
proposal for adopting a new share option scheme.

Going forward, the Remuneration Committee’s work scope will be extended
to cover reviewing the remuneration policies and strategies for the whole
Group with reference to market trend and relevant benchmark.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee currently comprises the following five Directors with
majority members being Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert Independent Non-executive Director
(Chairman of the Committee)

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry Independent Non-executive Director

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael Independent Non-executive Director

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey Independent Non-executive Director

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel Non-executive Director

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing the financial
information of the Company and overseeing the financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems as well as corporate
governance functions.
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Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year when the
following key issues were reviewed and considered and recommendations
were made to the Board where appropriate:

Independence of the external auditor and engagement of external

auditor;

o External auditor’s remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit
services;

o Audit findings by external auditor and related management

responses, as well as development in accounting standards and its
effects on the Group;

o Annual and interim results announcements and financial statements;
o Internal audit plan, risk management and internal control
performance, as well as effectiveness of the Company’s risk

management and internal control systems;

o Corporate governance practices and policies, compliance with CG
Code and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report;

o Changes of CG Code and the related Listing Rules effective from
financial year commencing on or after 1 January 2022;
o Internal audit relating to the Company’s Environmental, Social and

Governance reporting;

o Annual review of the Group’s continuing connected transactions;
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o Renewal of Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy; and

o Adequacy of resources, qualifications, experience of staff, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting as well as internal audit functions.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two private sessions with the
external auditor and external internal audit consultant respectively without
the presence of management.

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Regular Board and Board Committee meetings are scheduled a year ahead
to facilitate maximum attendance by the Directors. Formal notices of at
least 14 clear calendar days are given in respect of regular meetings and
arrangement is in place to invite Directors to include matters in the agenda.
For special Board or Board Committee meetings, reasonable notices are
given.

Agenda of the meetings and the accompanying papers for regular Board
and Board Committee meetings are sent in full to Directors at least three
clear calendar days before the date of the meetings.

Minutes of Board and Board Committee meetings record in sufficient
details the matters considered and decision reached, including any concern
raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions
of minutes are sent to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time
after the meetings and kept by the Company Secretaries.

52 Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22

. EELRAERABEERR2ED
K

. RE B T M T T R A S R BPEE AT A
EENER  BIEERER  HlRE

MEBRERGRRE

FR - ERZZEEDS
METERBTTRAE R

mﬁ>

A1) £ 7N A2 BB K% SNEE A
B ESHEE -

EERRESRETZEEER

EREERRERRETZAREHRNETHE
PR —FAELRE  URBEFOHE
o EMEHZ EXRBENERBITASLR
14 BB BB WM HAEERN S FAETIA
Q%%ﬁo§$%¢%$%@T§§@2ﬁ%

SRAEAREHRAGTE

FREERLEERETZEGETHEH LA
E&I@EWZQ%Y@ SEAFeH B
PREZMABEREHERES -

EERAEZRETZEQZERLHERD

(EETE BEIANPTERORR ZFE ’7?%
EERECEMBIRES - @R LB 2R
RERNERAEHRAZR2RESAEH
BR - YHAARMERTLEE



e

During the year, the Board held four regular meetings at approximately ~— FR - EERETATHE & (NWEFET—
quarterly intervals and a Strategy Day for Directors to review the Group’s — JX) K — KR EiBEHT &0 B AFARANEE 2 HE
development directions and strategies. Directors’ attendance of the Board ~— NIKH§ - SEENEE T -_—_F=A=+—
Meetings, Board Committee Meetings, Annual General Meeting and other AIFEERTZEZREH EFRETZE
meetings delegated by the Board held during the year ended 31 March  &&:#%  BRRAFTAShHEMEERRESS
2022 are set out below: ZEREEEIINT

Number of meetings attended/held during the year

ERLR/ BHZEERY
Budget
Deliberation
Nomination Remuneration Audit Working Annual
Board Strategy ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Group General
Meeting Day Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
BER B¥ REZEE FMZEE ENZAE REEFAIMA RREAF
S e S f g3 S AE
Non-executive Directors FHTESE
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny ERARE 4/4 17 n NANER  NANER n 7N
(Chairman) (L)
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita BEBUT 4/4 " N/ATER N/ATNEF N/ATE A 7 7
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael R 474 7m NATER 33 NATER n 1N
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel FRESAE 44 1 NATER N/ATNER 4/4 1" 0N
Independent Non-executive Directors By FFEI/TE S
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael EERLAE 44 1 11 33 44 N/ANER 1
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey FEERE 4/4 n 171 3/3 4/4 N/ATNEF 17
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry PR LE 4/4 11 171 33 44 NATER 01
Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert BEMLE 44 1 NATER N/ATNER 4/4 N/ATER 1
Executive Directors RnTESE
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter BEALE 4/4 il N/ANEF N/ATER N/ANiEF n il
(Chief Executive Officer) (BEHTE)
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan BEARE 4/4 17 n NANER  NANER n 7N
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the Group's
financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flow for the reporting period.
The Board is aware that its responsibilities to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extend to annual and interim reports, reports to
regulators, other inside information and financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules as well as information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

Management provides the Board and its Committees with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the Directors to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before the Board
for approval. Each Director has separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management for inquiries and additional information.

External Auditor
A statement by the external auditor about their reporting responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report contained in the Company’s
Annual Report 2021/22.

The Company has adopted a policy on engagement of external auditor for
non-audit services. The external auditor may provide non-audit services to
the Group as permitted under the policy provided that the external auditor’s
independence of audit work shall not be impaired. The Audit Committee
reviews the nature, size and proportion of non-audit service fees as to the
total service fees of the external auditor on an annual basis.

For the year under review, the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as follows:

EEYSEE

B RS E R
EEERREAEERUAEE 2HBRE -
AR B AR IE e BR AN &2 [ 0 [ ¥R R 2 6 7%
ARARFE R IRERBAN - SLFE R H
BE - AEEERIZEE  RIELTHRAR
EATRBZEMABERRMBER AR
RBEVIREATREZEN  EFTRATH
AEL T BW R ZNIEENFEEE -

EEEERMNEZTRAEETZESRMITR
BR MREFURMRITESRILEZTE
K EAMEREL MG - SEFABITEE
RRFZDRERAE  UEHE R NEEUE
—WER -

SNEEAZ B
SNEERZ BB & 2 IR E TR 2 B RFE T
AR T 2021722 F 3k B ZHENRER -

ARB DA —IAA B AN BE R IF
ZHRTE 2 UK » SNBAZ BB Al FE BOR it/ 88
BN IR BRE - TR B ERRHZE
ARIEE 2 BN - BZE B SR FRAINEZ
BUEMAR ST E B R ARTS B A AT IR 2 JE AR BURTS
ZMHE - RE R

REBEFA - NRABXZEENE R IGES
RSS2 BN #IT

Fee paid/payable

Type of services R 3% %8 5l g2t ENER
HK$’000

FET

Audit services Z AR 3,438
Non-audit services* IERZERTS * 579
Total FE 4,017

*  Include mainly advisory services on taxation
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Risk Management and Internal Control

Maintaining sound risk management and internal control systems is pivotal
to the fulfillment of the Group’s business objectives and its long-term
sustainable growth. The Board has an overall responsibility for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks according to the Board's
risk appetite in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring
that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems to safeguard Shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets. To this end, the Board continuously
reviews and makes improvements in its risk management and internal
control systems.

Risk Management Structure and Process

The risk management and internal control systems of the Company are
founded on internationally recognised standard and designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives of
the Group and can provide reasonable, but no absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The systems are made of by two essential
features — the risk governance structure and risk management process.

Risk Governance Structure — The Group’s risk governance structure
is based on the “3 lines of defence” model comprised of day-to-day
operational management and control, risk and compliance oversight, and
independent assurance. The enterprise risk management (“ERM") policy
formalised by the Group clearly defines the roles and responsibilities of
each of the multiple layers of the structure, including the Board, Audit
Committee, Management Board, department and operation heads as well
as Internal Audit.

Board
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R\ R T I N BR B
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EERAERBAEIREERBAZRES - FHE
NETE RSB RERRIRIE B R A AE 2 Al
HEREE - WHRAR R MRS BN
BRZRABERENATEZERES  WRERER
RERAEEZEE - Bt - EXRFERR
IWekE H A E IR N AR ER 1R R AT -

s SR RBRERF

AR R EERARREE RS RRER
RAEERY - BEEIEMIEERAEE KRR
EREBBRZER - YRS EMIEBERE
TEHBRERERRANEE - ZFRGHM
AR kiR 2 BB DR - 7 Bl R R EIARE
KEBRERRT o

B EESEE — AEBZRREGREIAT=
BRI BARER  BRATEFEERE
7 BB MARERASBUIRE - AEBE
RBAECERAREEBR  BWMRAERBEANZ
EEmH(BREER BZZE8g BHEE &
FIREETENRAEES) EB2ACKE
£ o

Audit Committee

EREEE

3

1st Line of Defense:

Risk Content and Accountability
E—ERAR

BEBRARREE

Department and operation heads
HFIkEEEE

— Day-to-day management control
and internal control measures
HE BBk N ER SR HE

2nd Line of Defense:

Risk Process and Accountability
SRR

EBREREE

Management Board chaired by CEO
HERITEFANERER

— Risk and compliance oversight
[E\Be N2 & 5 BB

3rd Line of Defense:
Risk Process and
Content Monitoring

EZEBE:

ERBERAREE

Internal Audit

MR RT

- Independent assurance
B RTE
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The Audit Committee, delegated by the Board, provides oversight and
review on risk management, financial reporting and internal control system.

The Company’s Internal Audit team, co-sourced with external consultant,
is an independent function reporting directly to the Audit Committee. It
provides independent, objective, assurance and consulting services on risk
management and internal control.

Risk Management Process — The Group’s ERM approach is a structured
mechanism and a continuous process of identifying, evaluating, prioritising,
managing and monitoring of the risks that the Group faces. The risks
are categorised into strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and
compliance risks. The key process of the Group’s ERM is illustrated below:

Risk Identification

B B

ERZBemEERE TR HRERERE -
FATs RS BRI R E B E S m B

RNz AERETNMAR B BRE - BINISRER
AN EERERRABRZEGER - NHE
AHVERLEREE M ABEEREHEY T
Bl - RS M AARTS o

EREREEF — ASEZCERBEE
BEB/EOPIHEG  HEHR - T T8
BEREXF BTENERANEEMEYEZE
br o B ARKKRR - 2ERR - FER
SRERARK AEECERKRERE X EE
FeBREATR «

e EEEEPEE >--emmmeee- Identify potential risks of key processes  ----------- DSEEEEEEEERES

at least annually
SO BFHETESRR EERR
Annual Review

R

Conduct annual review on the
effectiveness of the risk management

and internal control systems Strategic and
E*ﬁxaﬁﬁkl‘ﬁﬁaf@&?ﬂﬁﬂ%&%%ﬁZﬁ Operational
, Objectives
A W R B
Risk Reporting
[ B BE 3R

Submit risk monitoring and
management reports on a regular basis

= ¢ Risk Monitori
ERER BRI RE RS apEn O

Risk Assessment

BB G

Evaluate and prioritise the risks
at least annually

RO EFERBREL TG R
BIERIERF

N

Risk Response

2 B3

Formulate risk mitigation plan for the
significant risks identified
ilzigs o e WNER R EN e e

Define risk indicators and set acceptable

indicator levels for monitoring the
significant risks identified

WESFEPT 2 EA R R SE R R

SRR NUR— Rk AT BN 2 HEARKF
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The ERM adopted by the Group is embedded in our strategy development,
business planning and day-to-day operations. The Group adopts a control
and risk self-assessment methodology and continuously assesses and
manages its risk profile on a regular basis. The ERM system uses risk
indicators and red flags to monitor the priority risks identified. Risk owners
are required to submit risk alerts with risk mitigation plan promptly and
regular risk reports are presented to the Management Board and Audit
Committee for ongoing review and monitoring. The key risks identified,
managed and monitored during the year included food safety, supply chain
management, site acquisition, project management and human resources
management. Sustainability-related risks are under ongoing monitoring
and managed by the Group’s ERM framework. Climate change is currently
considered an emerging risk to the Group and further actions will be taken
if such risk becomes a significant threat to our business operations.

Annual Review of System Effectiveness

The Board, through the Audit Committee, had conducted annual review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 March 2022. The review covered all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls. Heads of
key business units and functional departments are required to confirm the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system of their
responsible areas during the year. The Board has received a confirmation
from the Management Board on the effectiveness of the systems. No
significant areas of concern have been identified and the Board considered
the systems effective and adequate.

During the annual review, the Audit Committee has also considered
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s internal audit, accounting and
financial reporting functions.

Anti-corruption and Whistleblowing

The Group seeks to conduct its business honestly and with integrity at all
times. Anti-corruption and whistleblowing are essential to establishing a
healthy corporate culture and promoting high ethical standards within the
organisation.
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The Group has adopted its Best Practice and Guideline on Occupational
Code of Ethics, setting clear anti-corruption policy that supports anti-
corruption laws and regulations as well as to promote an anti-corruption
culture within the organisation. The Code provides guidelines on handling
conflicts of interests and restrictions on acceptance of advantages from
business partners. Anti-corruption training is provided as part of the
onboarding process and on an ongoing basis to ensure the Company’s
expectations are effectively communicated to all levels of staff.

A Protocol on Malpractice Reporting and Investigation is in place to provide
guidance to our employees and business partners who may, from time to
time, need to raise issues relating to the Group in confidence and to ensure
that they can raise any matters of genuine concern, in the knowledge
that they will be taken seriously and that the matters will be investigated
appropriately and regarded as confidential. Under the Group’s Protocol on
Malpractice Reporting and Investigation, employees and business partners
may raise their concern by sending their malpractice reports to the Head of
Internal Audit who reports directly to the Audit Committee on receipt and
investigation of malpractice reports. For malpractice reports concerning any
member of the Management Board, informants may make direct reports to
the Chairman of Audit Committee.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of Directors of the Company, all
Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2022.

The Board has also adopted written guidelines based on the Model Code
for relevant employees of the Group in respect of their dealings in the
Company’s securities.

58 Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22

AEBRAERFBERTITR/LBERES
HEBMORBSBERNANEFREFZERER
MOIAREERE SRR - FRIRET
Rt s AREBEBRH 2 BN mE R R
REVS B EBRHRH NG - FEEET
ABE A RGE SRt R BDS1RA) - AR
REmBRUERMEREENE TEEARHE -

ARRBRIVTETRBREFAERE - /A
ETHRSFRZAERENBERTREREMAAE
BETBERBEMEBGBHIEM]ES] - LHE
RESFENBTARESRERIE R ELZEHE
TRENBERT  BRESEHBEY) 2EAE
B REAEBZIAETRERLATRE
BEMEBBHARABEALIERRIET
R NEEF T ERRBILAENETRARE
HERABZZEGER - S REMNEERKE
ZTETRBE  BRAVTERABRREZES
TFEERE -

BEXS T
RAGEHEMETRBNM R+ ArE 2 B3
TABERETEFRHRZESTRI([1ZAEST
Al fEAR R ESBEITERR D ZIRTT
Ble @A ARB2REREHHTENE &
EHERRARENEE T - —F=A=+—
HIEFEEETEESTRIFTRE < 28]

il

EERMREBEETARAAEEREEEE
BARARIESFZEMmED °



INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company takes seriously of its obligations under the Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules with respect
to procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. The Group’s Disclosure Policy sets out guidelines
and procedures to the Directors and officers of the Group to ensure
inside information of the Group is disseminated to the public in equal
and timely manner. Under the Disclosure Policy, the Company’s Disclosure
Team comprising Executive Directors and members of senior management
have the overall delegated authority to decide whether the information
reported is inside information and requires disclosure and to refer the
subject matter to the Board for approval. Measures are in place to preserve
the confidentiality of inside information and to ensure that its recipients
recognise their obligations to maintain it confidential. In communicating
with external parties, only designated officers are authorised to respond to
enquiries in allocated areas of issues. Communication is held regularly for
officers to facilitate their understanding and compliance with the policy.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Company Secretaries of the Company report to the Board and also to the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer on day-to-day duties
and responsibilities. Company Secretaries are responsible for supporting
and advising the Board on governance matters. All Directors have access
to the advice and service of the Company Secretaries to ensure that Board
procedures, all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The Company Secretaries complied with the professional training
requirement under the Listing Rules during the year.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Dividend Policy

The Company endeavours to enhance returns on Shareholders’ investment
by way of, inter alia, distribution of regular and stable dividends. Guided
by the Dividend Policy adopted by the Board, the Company’s dividend
payout amount and frequency shall be based on the Group’s profit available
for distribution and shall make reference to historical payout ratios and
amounts to achieve consistency in dividend distribution. The Board shall take
into account all relevant circumstances when it decides on the Company’s
dividend distribution, including but not limited to, the Group’s business
performance, operating results, cash flow, working capital requirement and
business development plans as well as general market condition and other
internal and external factors that the Board may consider relevant. Dividend
payment shall normally be in the form of cash, unless the Board resolves
otherwise.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has established Shareholders” Communication Policy to
ensure proactive communication with Shareholders and keep Shareholders
informed of balanced and understandable information about the Company
in a factual and timely manner. The Policy also serves to govern the
Company's open and regular dialogue with Shareholders, fund managers,
analysts and the media through effective corporate communication system
covering various communication channels including Shareholders’ meetings,
corporate’s publications and website, press and analyst conferences.
Comments and areas of concern solicited from investors and analysts are
reported to the Board by management on a quarterly basis to facilitate the
Board's understanding of the investment community.
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Shareholders’ Meeting

At the last annual general meeting of the Company held on 6 September
2021, the Chairman of the Board and all other Board members, including
Chairmen and representatives of the Board Committees as well as senior
management and the external auditor were present to communicate with
Shareholders. Procedures for the poll voting on the proposed resolutions
were explained at the meeting by the Chairman. The Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, acted as scrutineer to ensure the votes were properly counted and
the poll results of the meeting were published on both the websites of the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Except for the annual general meeting, the Company did not convene any
other Shareholders’ meeting during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Shareholders’ Rights

Subject to the applicable laws and regulations, the Listing Rules and the Bye-
laws, Shareholders may convene general meetings of the Company and put
forward proposals at general meetings. The procedures for Shareholders to
convene a special general meeting, put forward proposals at Shareholders’
meetings and propose a person for election as a director of the Company
are available on the website of the Company at www.cafedecoral.com.

Shareholders may also send their enquiries and concern to the Board
by addressing them to the Company Secretary of the Company at the
Company’s head office at 10th Floor, Café de Coral Centre, 5 Wo Shui
Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. Shareholders can also
make enquiries to the Board directly at general meetings.

Constitutional Documents

The Company’s Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws are available on
the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. During
the year ended 31 March 2022, there was no change to the Memorandum
of Association and Bye-laws of the Company.
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Investor Relations

Management of the Company meets with institutional investors, financial
analysts or media from time to time and provides updates on the business
progress and recent developments of the Company. The Company also
participates in investor summits or corporate days when appropriate, to
enhance communication with the investment community. Investors are
welcomed to send their enquiries to our Investor Relations Department
at ir@cafedecoral.com or browse the Company’s website for the latest
information of the Group.
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Directors’ Report

EERWE

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group is
principally engaged in operation of quick service restaurants, casual dining
chains, institutional catering, as well as food processing and distribution in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. The activities of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group achieved stronger business and profit growth with robust
recovery momentum in the first three quarters of the financial year ended 31
March 2022. However, the outbreak of the fifth wave of COVID-19 in Hong
Kong in the last quarter, as well as the pandemic situation in Shenzhen and
Zhuhai in March 2022 brought serious disruptions to the Group’s operations
and business. As a result of the government’s dine-in restrictions and the
intermittent closure of shops due to infections in our workforce, the Group
suffered cumulative loss of shop operating days and significant loss of sales
during these periods.

The Group's revenue for the year reached HK$7,508.8 million (FY2020/21:
HK$6,714.3 million) and profit attributable to shareholders decreased
to HK$21.2 million (FY2020/21: HK$359.1 million). COVID-19 relief and
subsidies of HK$127.8 million from the government was recorded during
the year, compared to HK$638.9 million in the previous year.

Addressing the challenges, the Group’s quick service restaurant business
in Hong Kong focused on driving manpower productivity, supported by
continuing efforts in digitalisation, automation and process simplification.
The casual dining division implemented a number of initiatives across
all brands to improve performance, including control of manpower and
operational expenses, as well as menu reengineering to improve food costs.
Though still heavily impacted by pandemic-related restrictions, the Group's
institutional catering business continued to provide uninterrupted service
at branches, especially in the hospital sector. Revenue from Hong Kong
operations for the year increased by 12.0%.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

In Mainland China, the Group’s broad and balanced portfolio of shops
across the Greater Bay Area helped to offset business interruptions in any
single city during the pandemic. Despite network expansion plans being
affected by the periodic outbreaks, the business grew with a record number
of new shop opening during the year. Revenue from Mainland China
operations for the year increased by 11.0%.

A fair review of the Group’s business for the year with analysis using
financial key performance indicators as well as discussion on principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group subsequent to the financial year end, if any, and future
development of the Group’s business are provided in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section in the Company’s Annual Report 2021/22.

Together with the Annual Report 2021/22, the Company publishes its
standalone Sustainability Report which discloses the Group’s sustainability
performance for the reporting year in four key areas, namely, Catering to
Customers, Empowering our Employees, Focusing on Food and Preserving
the Planet. The report discusses in detail the Company’s environmental
policies and performance as well as our relationship and continuous
engagement through various channels with our customers, employees,
suppliers and other key stakeholders who have a significant impact on the
Group.

The Group conducts its business in compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations and integrates industry best practices into our operations
where appropriate. Details of the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group’s business and
operations are set out in the Sustainability Report 2021/22 as well as the
Corporate Governance Report in the Annual Report 2021/22.

The abovementioned discussions in the Company’s Annual Report and
Sustainability Report for the year ended 31 March 2022 form part of this
Directors’ Report.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 93 of the Company’s Annual Report 2021/22.

During the year, an interim dividend of HK10 cents per share was paid. The
Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK18 cents
per share, totalling approximately HK$105,427,000 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on 15
September 2022. The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting
to be held on 8 September 2022 (“AGM"). Details of dividends for the year
ended 31 March 2022 are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2022, pursuant
to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to approximately
HK$844,182,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the percentage of sales or purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers was less than
30%.

PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes of the Group
are set out on pages 220 to 221 of the Company’s Annual Report 2021/22.

PRINCIPAL SELF-USED PROPERTIES

Details of the principal self-used properties of the Group are set out on
pages 222 to 225 of the Company’s Annual Report 2021/22.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations totalling
HK$259,000.
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SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, no shares of the Company were issued on exercise of
share options under the Company’s Share Option Schemes. Details of the
movements of share capital of the Company during the year are set out in
Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Company’s Share Option Scheme disclosed in this report,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 226 to 228 of the Company’s
Annual Report 2021/22.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws
and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2022, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed the Company’s listed
securities, except that the trustee of the Company’s Share Award Scheme
purchased on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”) a total of 1,597,731 shares of the Company at a total
consideration of about HK$25.6 million to satisfy the award of shares to
selected participants pursuant to the terms of the rules and trust deed of
the Share Award Scheme.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme described in this report, the Company
had no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights
as at 31 March 2022. Save as disclosed in this report, there has been no
issue or exercise of any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar
rights during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Non-executive Directors
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chairman)
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert

Executive Directors
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan

In accordance with Bye-law 109(A) of the Company's Bye-laws and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel,
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael and Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry shall retire by
rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the AGM. Information on Directors proposed for re-election will be set
out in the circular to shareholders of the Company accompanying the
resolutions to re-elect them at the AGM.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors and officers
of the Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.
Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Directors and the officers
of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets of the Company which may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duties. The
Company has maintained liability insurance to provide appropriate cover for
the directors and officers of the Group.
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report and “Related Party Transactions” in Note
36 to the consolidated financial statements, no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

DIRECTORS' RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year ended 31
March 2022 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme upon the passing of a

shareholders’ resolution on 11 September 2012 (the “2012 Scheme”).

Pursuant to the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant options to eligible

participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company subject to the

terms and conditions stipulated therein. As of the date of this report, no

share options had been granted by the Company under the 2012 Scheme.

Summary of details of the 2012 Scheme is as follows:

Purpose

Participants

Total number of ordinary
shares available for issue and
the percentage of the issued
shares that it represents as
at the date of this report

Maximum entitlement of
each participant

To grant incentives for retaining and
rewarding eligible participants for
their contributions to the business and
development of the Group

Employees, Executive Directors, Non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, suppliers and customers
of the Group and consultants, advisers,
managers, officers and corporations that
provide research, development or other
technical support to the Group

57,182,403 ordinary shares representing
9.76% of the issued shares as at the
date of this report

In any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Period within which the
securities must be taken up
under an option

Minimum period for which
an option must be held
before it can be exercised

Amount payable on
acceptance of the option

Basis of determining
the exercise price

The remaining life of
the scheme

Such period shall be determined by the
Board and specified in the letter to the
grantee, which may be varied by the
Board in accordance with the terms of
the 2012 Scheme, provided that it shall
not under any circumstances exceed
ten years from the date of grant of the
relevant option

The Board may, in its discretion, determine
the time or period when the right to
exercise the option in respect of all or
some of the shares the subject of the
option will vest

HK$1.00

Not less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant, which must be a business
day; (i) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Company’s share

The 2012 Scheme remains in force until
10 September 2022 unless otherwise
terminated under the terms of the 2012
Scheme
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme” or the “Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company on 27 August 2013 (the “Adoption Date”), under
which any individual being an existing director, employee, officer, supplier,
customer, consultant, adviser or manager of any member of the Group is
entitled to participate in as selected participant who may be granted an
award of restricted shares and/or performance shares during the period
commencing on the Adoption Date and ending on the day immediately
prior to the 10th anniversary date of the Adoption Date. The purpose
of the Scheme is to recognise and reward selected participants for their
contributions to the business and development of the Group. The Scheme
also aims to provide a competitive remuneration and/or incentive package
in order to attract and retain talent for the development of the Group’s
business, and to promote long term success of the Group by aligning the
interests of selected participants and shareholders.

The Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 15
years from the Adoption Date and is administrated by the Board and the
trustee of the Scheme. The total number of shares to be awarded under the
Scheme shall not exceed 5% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company from time to time. The maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to a selected participant but unvested under the Scheme shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of issued shares of the Company from
time to time.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) I fp R Ehat &l (4R)

During the year ended 31 March 2022, restricted shares and performance ~ REZE T _F=A=+—HIEFERN - K
shares were awarded to selected participants pursuant to the Share Award A BRI (D BT 8| A TE 2 BE R TR
Scheme. Details of movements of shares awarded under the Scheme during HIMERR D REER D - BIBZTEIR L 2 RK
the year were as follows: RERNZEBFBOT

Number of shares

RGEA
As at As at
1 April Granted Vested Lapsed 31 March
Date of 2021 during during during 2022 Vesting
Grantees grant R=ZB=—F§ the year the year theyear R=E=—f period
SN B EH mA—-H RERRE REREE RERAXY =ZA=t-H HEH
Director & substantial
shareholder
EERFERR
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter 31/7/2018 31,935 - (31,935) - - 31/7/2019 -
BREAERE 31/7/2021 @
31/7/2019 27,351 - (13,471) - 13,880 31/7/2020 -
31/7/2022 @
31/7/2019 440,879 - - (440,879)® - -
31/7/2020 55,961 - (18,467) - 37,494 31/7/2021 -
31/7/2023 @
31/7/2021 - 56,349 - - 56,349 31/7/2022 -
31/7/2024 @
Director
B
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan 31/7/2018 11,405 - (11,405) - - 31/7/2019 -
BEASE 31/7/2021 @
31/7/2019 9,768 - (4,811) - 4,957 31/7/2020 -
31/7/2022 @
31/7/2019 157,457 - - (157,457)® - -
31/7/2020 19,986 - (6,595) - 13,391 31/7/2021 -
31/7/2023 @
31/7/2021 - 20,124 - - 20,124 31/7/2022 -

31/7/12024 @
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

MRAn s mET & (&)

Number of shares
RGEA
As at As at
1 April Granted Vested Lapsed 31 March
Date of 2021 during during during 2022 Vesting
Grantees grant R-B=-F the year the year theyear R=2==F period
REA EME M- WEAEYH WEABE WEAKM ZAZ+-8 BE
Continuous contract 31/7/2018 350,006 - (348,863) (1,143) - 31/7/2019 -
employees 31/7/2021 @
EEANER
31/7/2019 664,261 - (325,965) (32,197) 306,099 31/7/2020 -
31/7/2022 @
31/7/2019 2,431,750 - - (2,431,750)® - -
31/7/2020 1,489,545 - (490,662) (99,669) 899,214 31/7/2021 -
31/7/2023 @
31/7/2020 370,889 - - (370,889)% - -
31/7/2021 - 1,551,966 - (120,351) 1,431,615 31/7/2022 -
31/7/2024 @
31/7/2021 - 50,640 - (50,640)® - -
6,061,193 1,679,079 (1,252,174) (3,704,975) 2,783,123
Notes: MiEE -
(@) The awarded shares are subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 33% of the awarded shares (a) BRBMHZLOIRE EREBHEAFE—EARFEALE
respectively on the first and second anniversary dates of the grant date and the balance of the —EAAF B 5B B RGN 2 33% - Feheh BIRKR G
remaining awarded shares on the third anniversary date of the grant date. In case such anniversary AIREEBMRHE=EARFAERE - ERAFAWLIFEE

date is not a business date, the date of vesting shall be the business day immediately thereafter.

B BORBERHAARRN T —EZ%ER -

(b) No performance shares awarded had been vested due to non-attainment of the vesting targets (b) HRKREREER DREZEERGAESRE LR

and the shares were lapsed accordingly.

e

Since the Adoption Date, a total of 19,146,774 shares had been awarded BERA B BAK - REBR G REE &2 K HE
under the Share Award Scheme, representing approximately 3.27% of the ~ Z B 1D 42 £0519,146,774% » {h AR AR =

total number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2022.
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3.27% e
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2022, the interests of each Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO™)), as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
were as follows:

EEREETHRAERRKRAD - HHE
RO RESH2EERKXR

RZEBZZF=A=+—0H ' ARFARER

REAEGE(BHRBAE KRG L) F35214&m
HFEZERMATEEE - SRR E R BIMT %1
Fi#l e FMARZERERITESR ZRIZESTR
(MELESFA| ) BITAE AR T KRB BBAA -
KRB EEEREFENTERAR T RE B
FE(RESFRBEGAIEXVIZ EE) 2K
% BERD RES 2 EZHIOT

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company (long positions)

ANAEBRHHEROUE (FR)

% of total
issued
Equity shares *
Personal Family Corporate Other derivatives Total EB AT
Name of Directors interests interests interests interests B interests griE E-C]
EEnA B AR iy d DA HipEs PTHETA EREY ZEDL*
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny 23,450,500 - - 40,983,394@ - 64,433,894 11.001%
ERXTE
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita 14,039,928 - - 3,000,000 ® - 17,039,928 2.909%
EB;‘:‘ﬁi

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael 7,419,407 9,614,500 -

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel 25,837 - -
HRESL A
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey 55,000@ - -
THELE
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter 752,628 - -
RIEHES A
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan 142,149 - -
BERASE

*  The percentage is calculated based on 585,704,033 shares of the Company in issue as at 31
March 2022.
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17,033,907 2.908%

- - 25,837 0.004%

- - 55,000 0.009%

93,208,213@ 107,723 94,068,564 16.061%

- 38,4720 180,621 0.031%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@) These shares comprised (i) 3,000,000 shares held by a foundation in which Mr Lo Hoi Kwong,
Sunny (“Mr Lo") is a trustee; and (i) 37,983,394 shares held by Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited
("Ardley”) in the capacity of trustee of a unit trust (the “Unit Trust”) of which Mr Lo and Victor
Reach Investments Limited (“Victor Reach”) were the unit holders. Mr Lo was deemed to be
interested in these shares by virtue of being the sole shareholder of both Ardley and Victor Reach
as well as a beneficiary of the Unit Trust.

(b) These shares were held by a foundation in which Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita is a trustee.

(0 Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael was deemed to be interested in these shares through interests of
his spouse, of which 3,000,000 shares were held by a foundation in which his spouse is a trustee.

(d) These shares were held by Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey jointly with his spouse.

(e) These shares were held by Wandels Investment Limited (“Wandels”). Wandels was 50% owned
by Sky Bright International Limited (“Sky Bright”) and 50% owned by Verdant Success Holdings
Limited (“Verdant Success”). Both of Sky Bright and Verdant Success were wholly-owned by
Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited, a trustee of two discretionary family trusts. Mr Lo Tak Shing,
Peter was deemed to be interested in these shares by virtue of his being beneficiary of one of the
family trusts.

(f)  These represented interests in unvested shares granted under the Company’s Share Award
Scheme.

All the above interests in shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives
of the Company were long positions. None of the Directors held any short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the Directors and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company or their respective associates had or
was deemed to have any interest or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
recorded in the register kept under Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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(a) ZERMBIE()H—EE A 3,000,000 %5 -
Sk (TR E]) AES 225 R(i) 37,983,394 1%
%45 e Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited ([ Ardley]) ABE {15
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of every person,
other than a Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company, being 5% or more of the
Company’s issued share capital, as recorded in the register kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERRER
RZZEZ=F=A=+—H  ARAREFES
KA GRAIE 336 xR TF2ELEMAT - 5
BARREIRGD RABBR D #ERIORE 2 AL (B
EARABEBEITRAS% A F) (BRARQRE
EREFHRITEINEINAT -

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company (long positions)
AAABER HEROHE (FR)

Name of Personal Family Corporate
substantial shareholders interests interests interests
FTERRES BB & AR Rk NG

Wandels Investment Limited - - _
Sky Bright International Limited - - .
Verdant Success Holdings Limited - - -
Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited - - _

Ms Tso Po Ping - 64,433,894 -
BEFzT

Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited - - -

Victor Reach Investments Limited - - -

Mr Lo Hoi Chun 132,000 - 67,880,834
ERBREE
Ms Man Bo King - 68,012,834 @ -
NERLT
LBK Holding Corporation 35,969,133 - -
MMW Holding Corporation 31,911,701@ - -

Mondrian Investment Partners Limited - - -

*  The percentage is calculated based on 585,704,033 shares of the Company in issue as at 31
March 2022.
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% of total
issued
shares *
Other Total e BT
interests interests Bip 4%
HibhiEzs A ZBEDLE*
93,208,213@ 93,208,213 15.914%
93,208,213@ 93,208,213 15.914%
93,208,213@ 93,208,213 15.914%
93,208,213@ 93,208,213 15.914%
- 64,433,894 11.001%
37,983,394 37,983,394 6.485%
37,983,394 37,983,394 6.485%
@ - 68,012,834 11.612%
- 68,012,834 11.612%
- 35,969,133 6.141%
- 31,911,701 5.448%
40,752,000™ 40,752,000 6.958%

* BAWDNER-Z-_FZRA=+—HARQRBETRN
585,704,033 %5t o



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@

(e)

These interests were held by Wandels Investment Limited (“Wandels”). Wandels was 50% owned
by Sky Bright International Limited (“Sky Bright”) and 50% owned by Verdant Success Holdings
Limited (“Verdant Success”). Both of Sky Bright and Verdant Success were wholly-owned by
Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited, a trustee of two discretionary family trusts. Mr Lo Tak Shing,
Peter, being a Director of the Company, was deemed to be interested in these shares by virtue of
his being beneficiary of one of the family trusts.

Ms Tso Po Ping was deemed to be interested in these shares through the interests of her spouse,
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny.

These shares were held by Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited (“Ardley”) in the capacity of trustee
of a unit trust (the “Unit Trust”). Victor Reach Investments Limited (“Victor Reach”) was deemed
to be interested in the shares by virtue of being a beneficiary of the Unit Trust. Mr Lo Hoi Kwong,
Sunny, being a Director of the Company, was deemed to be interested in the shares by virtue of
being the sole shareholder of both Ardley and Victor Reach as well as a beneficiary of the Unit
Trust.

Mr Lo Hoi Chun was deemed to be interested in these shares which were held, as to 35,969,133

shares, by LBK Holding Corporation (“LBK") and, as to 31,911,701 shares, by MMW Holding
Corporation (“MMW"). Both of LBK and MMW were wholly-owned by Mr Lo Hoi Chun.

Ms Man Bo King was deemed to be interested in these shares through the interests of her spouse,
Mr Lo Hoi Chun.

These interests were held by LBK which was wholly-owned by Mr Lo Hoi Chun.

These interests were held by MMW which was wholly-owned by Mr Lo Hoi Chun.

These interests were held in the capacity of investment manager.

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

were long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, the register maintained

by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO recorded no other

interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company.

FTERR#ERD ()

P

(a) #ZZ#Ex M Wandels Investment Limited ([Wandels ) #75 -
Sky Bright International Limited ([ Sky Bright]) K& Verdant
Success Holdings Limited ([ Verdant Success|) % Bl # &
Wandels 50% 2 #& # ° Sky Bright [ Verdant Success3 £
Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited & & # & - Butterfield
Trust (Guernsey) Limited M B 2K IEEFEZZFEA o K
RAEREERCERET —BREETZZHA - B
BRBEZEROER -

(o) BEFRZTRARBEMAXLEFAZSZRG  BBER

e g

FEZSRMHER -

(©) %% W% 1 Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited ([Ardley]) A
Bt ([ BAE5T)) 2 ZEAFMEA - Victor Reach
Investments Limited ([ Victor Reach]) AE ({5t 2 ZaA
HWRARAREROERD  NARESERAXLTER
Ardley & Victor Reach 2 M —RE R EME5E2 & A +
WARBEHA LSRN -

(d) BRABSEWRAREZERGOER - & 35,969,133 K
19 F3 LBK Holding Corporation ([LBK]) #54& + 131,911,701
fi% A% 5 F MMW Holding Corporation ([MMW J) 357 ° LBK
EMMWRE R RERBLEERERE °

() XBHRAZTHERBEMBRAEZAZERG  WERA

BEZER G -

() ZEHERMIBKITH - ZAFHERBALEZERA

(9) ZEERAMMWITE @ ZABMERBEEZERE -

ERANRELBHNFE

4H§

IR AR TR RG22 $9 A
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Framework Agreement with Fung Yuen

On 19 March 2020, the Company and Fung Yuen Engineering Company
Limited (“Fung Yuen"”) entered into a new framework agreement (2020
Framework Agreement”) which governs the terms upon which Fung Yuen
and its subsidiaries (“Fung Yuen Group”) would continue to be engaged
by the Group to provide interior decoration, renovation, maintenance and/
or related services to the shops operated or managed by the Group in Hong
Kong, Macau and Guangdong Province in the People’s Republic of China (the
“Renovation Works") for a further term of three years from 1 April 2020 to
31 March 2023 subject to the following annual caps:

1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 HK$30,000,000
1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 HK$30,000,000
1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023 HK$30,000,000

Fung Yuen Group is a deemed connected person of the Company as Mr
Ng Lam To, the cousin of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny and Ms Lo Pik Ling,
Anita (both being Directors of the Company), has a majority control in Fung
Yuen Group. Thus the Renovation Works constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the 2020 Framework Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 19 March 2020 and 24 March 2020.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the aggregate value in respect of the
Renovation Works under the 2020 Framework Agreement amounted to
approximately HK$585,000 and did not exceed the annual cap for the year.
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ANNUAL REVIEW

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
the continuing connected transactions under the 2020 Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 March 2022 and confirmed that the
transactions were entered into:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(@) according to the relevant agreement(s) governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s
shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the above continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its
unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
above continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements (other than the transactions relating to the operating
lease rentals paid to a related party, which constituted a connected
transaction but was exempted from the reporting and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules due to de minimis) did
not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The changes in information of Directors are set out below pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael has been appointed as a member of Property
Development & Maintenance Committee of Haven of Hope Christian
Service from 21 January 2022.

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry (“Mr Kwok") has been appointed as chairman
of the Appeal Tribunal Panel of the Buildings Ordinance (Cap.123) from 1
December 2021 and an arbitrator of the Shenzhen Court of International
Arbitration from 21 February 2022. His position in Heep Hong Society has
also changed from director to vice-chairman effective from 14 December
2021.

Mr Kwok was appointed as an independent non-executive director of China
Qilfield Services Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, as well as the chairman of the
Remuneration and Assessment Committee, and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the company on 1 June 2022.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
shares were held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the AGM.

By order of the Board
LO HOI KWONG, SUNNY
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 June 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

MR R T e

&

pwc

Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Shareholders of Café De Coral Holdings Limited

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages
91 to 219, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2022;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended:;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T. +852 2289 8888,
F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Opinion (Continued)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

e
¥
X
1—04

BARES SR (&)
BFVEE BB BR B SRR T

. Revenue recognition . W AFER

. Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets ~ ® M - BERREBERERAEEERE
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRENSEE BB NMEERAEETSEE
Revenue recognition
LN+

Refer to note 2.20 for the Group’s accounting policies on
revenue recognition and note 22 for the analysis of revenue
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022.
A2 220 EXEABRAERHNGETBOR MM
22 BEEENBE_ZT__F=A=1t—HILFENHRKRA
DT

The Group recognised revenue of HK$7,509 million for the
year ended 31 March 2022.
ESEREE_ZTS_F=-A=1T—"HLEFERIRKA
7,509 BEETT

We focused on revenue recognition in particular for
sales of food and beverage due to its magnitude and the
characteristics of the Group’s industry nature. The recording
of revenue involves high volume of transactions through
various systems. Any errors arising from capturing of data
or interfaces of data amongst the various systems may have
significant impact on revenue. Therefore it required significant
time and resource to audit this area.

REREBORER BEEEMESTELENSRR®
A BRPILHEINHERY AKMAIBATER « KA
REERAEBEB A RFETHR S - EERBERE
FEEFE OREENETAESR - IR HRABKE

TE At ZBBNEATEZAERHEREIR -

We understood, evaluated and tested management's key

internal controls over the revenue recognition process.

B  HERBEEEENHBRARREEFNHEE
IEBIE ] o

We involved Information Technology specialists to evaluate
the design of the relevant controls (including automated
controls) over revenue recognition and tested the operating
effectiveness of those controls.

TAI L BEE BB K AT KA TR 2% T O A8 B 42
(BfEEEHEF]) - WRIHZFEH A ET’ExA{T @

We performed analytical procedures on revenue by
comparing the actual result of the current year with that of
the prior year.
HPEBLBRAFENERERE FTFENEBRER 8
WA DA AT

We tested samples of sales transactions by tracing to bank
recelpts and other relevant evidence.
BB BEPRITHIE R H AR REREHER S

We tested samples of journal entries posted to revenue
accounts selected on risk based criteria.

BZEREERE T i ABASRR BRCRRE ©

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that

the sales transactions being tested were supported by the

available evidence.

;Eﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂ@ﬁl?  FFIRAFARANHE R HEFER
TJ. o
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Key Audit Matter

RARETER

EEETEIE (&)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMMEST N MEEEEETSEE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

¥ BERREREAEEERE

Refer to notes 4(a) and 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.
B2 A TS ERERMITE4() &6 o

As at 31 March 2022, net book values of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) and right-of-use
assets (“ROU") were amounting to HK$1,586 million and
HK$2,158 million, respectively. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s PPE and ROU are written down to their recoverable
amounts if in excess of their estimated recoverable amounts.

RZZEZZF=A=+—H  EBE5ENYXE - BEKLHE
REREEERDFESRIA1,586 A8 B TR, 15888
BT o W HEMEATKESRE - Al SEEEMME -

B N R AR EEREERAEE AT KE 2 -

Management considers each of its individual restaurant as
a separate identifiable cash-generating unit and monitors
their financial performance for the existence of impairment
indicators.
EREHBRERRAERENSBMNReEEEMN - WEE
HIBRARBFERETR -

We understood, evaluated and tested management’s key
internal controls over the impairment of PPE and ROU.

BF T SHERAHEEBEYR - BB LREBNRER
EEERERNERAZZES -

We enquired management on their basis of identifying
restaurants with impairment indicators and challenged the
appropriateness of these judgements.

B ERE#NFERETRNERNKBEREIELE
A Wtz B H @ EE IR L E 5R o

We compared the projected sales performance, forecasted
food cost and forecasted running costs applied in the value-
in-use calculations to the historical records and challenged
management’s key assumptions behind and evaluated the
key assumptions applied by comparing them to historical
trends and our understanding of latest market information
and conditions.

B ERBEFSEPAEANTRREE RS - HARM
PN N FERI A E TR P A B SR AR f TLL B - W RS
BESZOBREIRER - ARERKEEFEL B LRI
IMEATTIS MR ARAETTILE - DASHEFTE MR ERER -
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Key Audit Matter

ARENEE
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

W% BERREREAEEERE ()

An impairment loss of approximately HK$55 million was
recognised for restaurants in the consolidated income
statement in accordance with the impairment assessment.
The recoverable amount of the assets of the restaurant is
determined by value-in-use calculations using discounted
cash flow projections based on the management’s forecast
covering the remaining tenure of the lease, with major inputs
such as revenue growth rate and discount rate.
EREABEREL S5 A& B TE RBREN G Ga B
RAFER - BEREENAIIE S 5T E I B H FIerE
EHRMTER - RAMBRRSRERAFECAEBENE
E o EEHABRTEWRAIERERAFE -

We focused on auditing the impairment of PPE and ROU
because the estimation of recoverable amount is subject to
high degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in
relation to the impairment assessment of PPE and ROU is
considered significant due to subjectivity of inputs used such
as the forecasted sales and discount rate.

BRI E S EN GG FEESEM TN - AR
IRNEAYE - BEMREREREEENRIE - AR
EREA (PIFERIHERRAERX) EAFEN - BitE
BV - R Kk M AR & ERUE R (A VB S R\ Be 1
BEBERX -

BRE R RE

BREETSE (FE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BBt N MEEEAREETSEE

We checked the tenure of the leases of the restaurants to
the lease agreements and recomputed the impairment loss
calculation.

BMeEHER RSN ERAEHR - WEFRTERE
B8 -

We involved internal valuation expert in assessing the
reasonableness of discount rate used.
BPL AR AESE R EAARERNE IR -

We evaluated the sensitivity analysis to consider the impact
on the impairment loss with reasonably possible changes of
key assumptions and considered whether the judgements
made in determining the key assumptions are subject to
possible management bias.

BTSRRI TAZ BB RR S I A se B A2 b
MEBBNTE - 1WERNET BRI EL & #EE
Gl FEEREEMNRS

Based on the procedures performed above, we found that

the Groups’ impairment assessments of PPE and ROU are

supported by available evidence.

RIE PP BITRR - HRAIEIR BEXENDE  KE
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

MR R T e

&

pwc

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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&
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B 2B E

&

pwc

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Lam Chun Yee, Johnny.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 15 June 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B ISR &

Asat 31 March 2022 R=ZE=-—F=A=+—H
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
i i
—E-CF —E—F
=H=t+—H =A=+—H
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
BiEE FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IEMBNVE E
Property, plant and equipment W - WEKEE 6 1,586,070 1,518,982
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 6 2,158,474 2,124,383
Investment properties wEME 7 514,800 542,700
Intangible assets B EE 8 1,191 1,229
Deferred income tax assets EEFIBE & 16 67,714 70,733
Financial assets at fair value through RATFEIAEMEERA
other comprehensive income L EREE 10 95,931 96,951
Retirement benefit assets BRIRSEMNEE 15 2,878 542
Non-current prepayments and deposits  JERBITE( 7108 Mg & 11 293,263 283,622
4,720,321 4,639,142
Current assets MENE E
Inventories T8 12 303,542 234,924
Trade and other receivables & N B IR BR IR 13 199,550 102,539
Prepayments and deposits AN RIERIES 13 55,074 51,490
Current income tax recoverable BNHEA ] U [B] £ 18 7,773 32,844
Bank deposits with maturity over i = 1A A 28 B R ERITIE K
three months 14 - 21,222
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReFEER 14 1,585,586 2,072,512
2,151,525 2,515,531
Total assets BEE 6,871,846 7,154,673
EQUITY st
Capital and reserves attributable RARIRERE A
to equity holders of the Company FEAE RN R (e
Share capital %N 20 58,570 58,570
Share premium iegrapni=] 21 621,122 621,122
Shares held for share award scheme & BB T BIIE A 2 IR H 21 (130,939) (140,944)
Other reserves E G 21 515,201 508,452
Retained earnings RE RN 21
— Proposed dividends — BT S 105,427 163,997
— Others - Hfty 1,649,360 1,817,640
2,818,741 3,028,837
Non-controlling interests JEFE I MR = 7,635 5,999
Total equity fR 4B %E 2,826,376 3,034,836
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B ISR &

As at 31 March 2022 W= - =A=+—H

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
n ®
—E-CF —E -
=H=+—H =A=+—H
Note HK$’000 HK$000
BT FET FET
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFIBEE & 16 36,225 33,424
Provision for long service payments REARRTS B 15 41,548 30,629
Lease liabilities HERE 6(d) 1,341,995 1,368,550
Long-term borrowings REFEN 19 899,690 999,433
2,319,458 2,432,036
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade payables & ETARIA 17 167,408 178,183
Other creditors and accrued liabilities H b e ERIE N BT & 18 682,823 640,378
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFIE B & 14,365 7,719
Lease liabilities HEAE 6(d) 681,416 681,521
Current portion of long-term borrowings  REAEZ &I BIEAZR 5 19 100,000 100,000
Short-term borrowings HHIER 19 80,000 80,000
1,726,012 1,687,801
Total liabilities FE=R 4,045,470 4,119,837
Total equity and liabilities fetE B fE4RRE 6,871,846 7,154,673
Net current assets FRHEE 425,513 827,730
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDEE 5,145,834 5,466,872

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in _EARE BRSO SR P ERRE BT 2 B 5 —OFBOE o

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

HEFNE2I9E ZFREVBRREETHN =
T _FXNATRBRHAEMERESZEESE -

The consolidated financial statements on pages 91 to 219 were approved
by the Board of Directors on 15 June 2022 and were signed on its behalf.

LO HOI KWONG, SUNNY LO TAK SHING, PETER

Chairman Chief Executive Officer
FE BEEHITE
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Consolidated Income Statement - By Function of Expense

rEEER - pupAnesE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE - - —"F=A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—ZE__ T4
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
=3 FET FET
Revenue 1 ON 22 7,508,753 6,714,255
Cost of sales SHE KA 24 (6,961,032) (6,339,067)
Gross profit EH 547,721 375,188
Other income and other E A A R E A
(losses)/gains, net F(E518) %A 23 42,296 561,011
Administrative expenses 1TEE 24 (458,843) (462,619)
Operating profit £ 18 s ) 131,174 473,580
Finance income TSI A 25 7,659 8,125
Finance costs EURID RN 25 (88,044) (91,159)
Profit before income tax BRIER TR A 50,789 390,546
Income tax expense FriStiE A 26 (27,939) (29,996)
Profit for the year KEZ 22,850 360,550
Profit attributable to: FE{EER
Equity holders of the Company RARRIERE A 21,214 359,130
Non-controlling interests P AR 1,636 1,420
22,850 360,550
Earnings per share for profit attributable ZQ B4 B AR
to equity holders of the Company i A 2 B AR g A
Basic YN 28 HK$0.04 & 7T HK$0.62 77T
Diluted i3 28 HK$0.04 &7t HK$0.62 7T
The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction LR A 1B R e BAREMT 2 B —OFBIE -

with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EEBARK

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE - - —"F=A=+—HIFE
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Profit for the year RFEH A 22,850 360,550
Other comprehensive income/(loss): HtzEEA (EEB)
Item that may be reclassified AEEF SR Em s HE
to profit or loss
Exchange differences arising from BRI B AR 2 N =
translation of foreign subsidiaries 18,991 32,249
Items that will not be reclassified T BfE1E BN DA 18 em 2 H A

subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of retirement benefit EF I 2ERSEHNEER

liabilities and provision for long ARG S BE
service payments (13,507) 24,887
Fair value loss on financial assets at AT EIAEMEEBAZ
fair value through other SREEN N T EEE
comprehensive income (1,020) (4,082)
Total comprehensive income for the year ARFEEE2EUA 27,314 413,604

Total comprehensive income for the year FE{RARFEA2EUA
attributable to:

— Equity holders of the Company - RRAIRIERFA A 25,678 412,184
— Non-controlling interests - IR S 1,636 1,420
27,314 413,604

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read ~ F#t4R & & U A SR 2K FE B2 55 BT~ B 55— GF
in conjunction with the accompanying notes. & °

94 Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBEX

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE - - —"F=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RARRRIER
Shares
held for
share award Non-
scheme controlling
Share Share  RHER Other  Retained interests Total

capital  premium  FE#E  reserves  earnings Total  FFiEflfE equity
k& RHEE 2R EftfiE  REEA #E B REEH

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TEr  TExr  TEx  FEr  TEx  TEr  FEr  TExn

Balance as at 1 April 2021 WZE-—FMA—H&% 58570 621,122  (140,944) 508,452 1,981,637 3,028,837 5999 3,034,836
Profit for the year TEERR - - - - 21,214 21,214 1,636 22,850
Other comprehensive incomef(loss): ~ Ef2ERA/(5E) -
Exchange differences arising from BRBINIEARZ

translation of foreign subsidiaries EHEE - - - 18,991 - 18,991 - 18,991
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair  ZATEFAZ2E

value through other comprehensive WA Z £BFEE

income RYEEER - - - (1,020) - (1,020) - (1,020)
Remeasurement of retirement benefit ~ E#f:tERIKGEFEE
liabilities and provision for long R ERH R
service payments - - - - (13,507) (13,507) - (13,507)
Total comprehensive income BEEHA - - - 17,971 7,707 25,678 1,636 21,314
Employee share award scheme-value R B MRIA SR E]
of employee services -EERBER - - - 10,482 - 10,482 - 10,482
Purchase of shares BARGL - - (25581) - - (25581) - (25581)
Vesting of shares of share award scheme IR BN EIRR G BB - - 35586  (22,941)  (12,645) - - -
Transfer to statutory reserves SR FEGRE - - - 1,237 (1,237) - - -
Dividends BRE - - - - (220,675)  (220,675) - (220,675)
- - 10,005 (11,222)  (234,557)  (235,774) - (235774)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 W-E-—F=f=1—H
&% 58,570 621,122 (130,939) 515201 1,754,787 2,818,741 7,635 2,826,376
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBEX

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &%

T —F=A=t-ALEE

=

Attributable to owners of the Company

AT,
Shares
held for
share award Non-
scheme controlling
Share Share R 1EE) Other  Retained interests Total
capital  premium  FEHSE  reserves  earnings Total  FEREEIM equity
kA BhaE Bl Atk REEH Lk Ex  REE
HK$:000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Balance as at 1 April 2020 W-Z-TEWA—B4&H 58570 621,122 (146,021) 468520 1,664,542 2,666,733 4579 2,671,312
Profit for the year REERR - - - - 359130 359,130 1420 360,550
Other comprehensive income(loss) Eh2ERA/ (BB :
Exchange differences arising from BREINNERARZ
translation of foreign subsidiaries EHERE - = - 32,249 - 32,249 = 32,249
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair ~ RAFEIAZ2E
value through other comprehensive WAZ SREER
income NHEEE - = = (4,082) - (4,082) - (4,082)
Remeasurement of retirement benefit ~ EFFFERKLBHERBR
liabilities and provision for R RA
long service payments = = = = 24,887 24,887 = 24,887
Total comprehensive income BRERA = - - 28,167 384,017 412,184 1420 413,604
Employee share award scheme-value EEMRIA R 2
of employee services -EERBER - - - 33,123 - 33,123 - 33,123
Purchase of shares AR - - (25480) - - (25480) - (25480
Vesting of shares of share award scheme (7 B EIRIR (D58 - = 30,557 (23,287) (7,270) = = =
Transfer to statutory reserves BRSTLTHE - - - 1,929 (1,929) = = =
Dividends RE = = = - (5773  (57,723) - (51703
- - 5,077 11,765 (66,922) (50,080) - (50,080)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 RZE=-F=A=1—H
5 58,570 621,122 (140,944) 508,452 1981637 3,028,837 5999 3,034,836

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHERER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE—ZE - —F=A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities KEXBEEZRERE
Net cash generated from operations LEELAZEES 31(a) 1,155,044 1,722,384
Hong Kong profits tax refund/(paid) R/ (B 2BEFIESH 18,006 (18,864)
Overseas taxation paid B 28I IR (8,609) (10,589)
Net cash generated from operating REXRES 2 FHE
activities 1,164,441 1,692,931
Cash flows from investing activities RERDEEZRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment RNE#% - K= M&HE (491,589) (277,948)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BERREMER
plant and equipment 31(b) 555 1,739
Decrease in bank structured deposits SRITEBEER ZmD - 10,918
Dividend received from listed investments & 4 & &% 2 6,123 3,572
Interest received B Uz FE 7,659 8,125
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits B (1) HBiE =18 A
with maturity over three months B HIH AERTTIER 21,222 (19,581)
Net cash used in investing activities ARE & EE) 2 FiRE (456,030) (273,175)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEDEECHRESRE
(Repayment of)/proceeds from bank RITERZ (B FIiSRK
borrowings 31(c) (100,000) 1,179,254
Purchase of shares held for share BERN EEEEIFE 2D
award scheme (25,581) (25,480)
Dividends paid BEATR%E (220,675) (57,723)
Payment of lease liabilities iﬁfﬂf% E 31(c) (849,393) (801,979)
Interest paid BEAFLE 31(c) (10,941) 6,111)
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEEB(FTA) FEEZ
financing activities FIRE (1,206,590) 287,961
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERBEEEEE 2
cash equivalents SR CRA) (498,179) 1,707,717
Cash and cash equivalents FERBKReRASEEER
at the beginning of the year 2,072,512 345,072
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SNES[E SREgises 7 27 2 11,253 19,723
Cash and cash equivalents FEARKRESMASEEIER
at the end of the year 14 1,585,586 2,072,512

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in PR AR SR E R IE RN 2 s — (68
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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2.1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

General Information

Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda with limited liability on 1 October 1990. The
address of its registered office is Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in operation of quick
service restaurants, casual dining chains, institutional catering as
well as food processing and distribution business in Hong Kong and
Mainland China.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (HK$), unless otherwise stated, and have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 15 June 2022.

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of investment properties, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and defined benefit scheme plan
assets, which are carried at fair value.
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2.1

0)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 4.

Amendments to existing standards adopted by the Group
The following amendments to existing standards have been adopted
by the Group for the first time for the financial year beginning on or
after 1 April 2021:

° Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 16 “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2"

° Amendments to HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions”

The adoption of these amendments to existing standards does not
have any significant impact on the results and the financial position
of the Group.

2.1

(i)

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2 EESHEXREE (&)
Policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 wREEZE (F)

(i)  New and amended standards, improvements, interpretation (i)  #T7] RAEFTERI « U - BER

and accounting guideline not yet adopted

The following new and amended standards, improvements,
interpretation and accounting guideline have been issued, but are
not effective for the financial year beginning on 1 April 2021 and

FeTiE5| - BEREFER

AT A BB KR ST IA R ABHE 3TR) -
Bt - RBREHES  BLAN-F
—— 4 A — B B B A

have not been early adopted:

Amendments to Annual Improvements
Project

FRUGER B Z 7]

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKAS 16
and HKAS 37

BBUGEmMEENE I - BAGFHER
F1658 R BB GTHERIFE3I7H (BT

Revised Accounting Guideline 5

RIEFTE5HIESI B 598

Amendments to HKAS 1

BAGTERIE 1R 2EET

HKFRS 17

BB wEAERFE 1758

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

BAREESHK(ZT2FF)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

BEDIERFE N AE B IESRE
QB FEIRESE 258 218F]

Amendments to HKAS 8

EBSTHERIE 85 28R

Amendments to HKAS 12

ARG ERIE 129 2185]

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
EBUBHRELEANFE10REE L
HEHI|ZE 28 5k 2 1ERT

TMEIZR IR

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after
FEHBERS
RZBER

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 1 January 2022

—EN\FE_ZB_FFL —F__F—A—H
BRMBREERFEUE
Narrow-scope amendments 1 January 2022

WEEBEISET —E-__F—H—H

Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations 1 January 2022

HEHEHIE Stz & Hr et R —ZT__f—A—H
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2023
HBRESIBERRBHIERD i
Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
REEE 4 —ZT-=%—H—H
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification 1 January 2023

by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains —E-=F—HF—H

a Repayment on Demand Clause
MiEmR 27 - ERAHBE

EERERGXZBARERZ 1A
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

SETERERE

1 January 2023
—T_=%—H—H

Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023

Bttt —g-=#—A—¢
Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising 1 January 2023
from a single transaction —E-=F—HF—H

B — R 55| A E K & ERBREETRIA
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture
REEHEBENRINAERRZ
M EELEIFE

To be determined
FET
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2.1
(i)

2.2

(@)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New and amended standards, improvements, interpretation
and accounting guideline not yet adopted (Continued)

The Group has commenced an assessment of the impact of these
new and amendments to standards, improvements, interpretation
and accounting guideline, but is yet in a position to state whether
they would have significant impacts on its results of operations and
financial position.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
March.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amount of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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2.2
(@)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost is
adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the
total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated

income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred.

When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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2.2
(b)

2.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from
non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, a
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments has
been identified as the Chief Executive Officer who makes strategic
decisions.
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2.4
(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in HK$, which is
the Company'’s functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges or qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated income
statement within ‘finance income and finance costs’. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets such as equities classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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2.4
(@]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement item are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(i)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate
component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign operations are taken to shareholder’s
equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.4
(@]

2.5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies (Continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
group’s ownership interest in associates or joint ventures that do
not result in the group losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except for freehold land, are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Freehold land is stated at historical cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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2.5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
No provision for depreciation is made on freehold land. Depreciation
of other property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

2.5%
Shorter of remaining period of

Building

Leasehold improvements
the lease or useful life

10%

12.5% —33.3%

Plant and machinery
Furniture and other equipment

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. These are included in the consolidated income
statement.

For property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
which becomes an investment property, the Group revalues such
property on the date of change in use, and any difference at that
date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is dealt with in assets revaluation reserve.

The fair value at the date of the change in use is the deemed cost
for subsequent accounting as investment properties. On disposal of
the property, revaluation reserve is transferred to retained profits as a
movement in reserves.
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2.6

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Investment properties
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises leasehold land and buildings. Right-
of-use assets of the leasehold land that meet the definition of
investment property are classified and accounted for as investment

property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are performed
in accordance with Valuation Standards on Properties issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and are reviewed annually by

external valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.
The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows
that could be expected in respect of the property. Some of those
outflows are recognised as a liability, others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognised in the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during the period in
which they are incurred.
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2.6

2.7
(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)
Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the
fair value of the Group's share in net fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary or joint venture or associate at
the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries
is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of joint
ventures or associates is included in investments in joint venture or
associates and is tested for impairment as part of the overall balance.
Separately recognised goodwill is tested annually for impairment
and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill arose.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets with definite useful lives and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
costs of other intangible assets over their estimated useful lives of 5
to 20 years.

2

2.6

2.7
(@)

(b)

2

ERETHBREE (&)

REY= ()
RHEEFINFAIERRPER

BYEE

ik
BB AR L AN S BRI B
JEEPTUEIN B AR - &8 QA kEE
NREIAI BRI EEFENATFE - MBR
AN EBEHEFABTLEEN - A ERQ
Al E AR 2 WERBFARGER
AREINBERRRE - WARSRE
B EESBRBERZ D - AKE
BERBUER I HBFERE  XIR
FRANIORR RIBRE R B IR - 72 AR
BEEBAEED - hEERENNER
EffARELEBHEBNEERAE -

RFHERERBR  BERIEERSE
FEM - BHREBAHFMIENZEF
ReEtBUgReELEMARIKE
PEREERBAHELNEHE -

HtEFEE

BBEARAERFHNEMETLEER
R ANTORR Rt iH MORUE R RS ER o
Hip L EEAB AN E G BF
BR5ZE20F MR E AN A 7 L DART B 5K -

ARBEEFR AR 2021/22 Fif

109



2.8

2.9
(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, but are at least tested annually for impairment. Assets
which are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
were impaired are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date.

Financial assets

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income, or through profit or
loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account for equity investments at
FVOCI.
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(b)

(0)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or
loss.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair
value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive
income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to the profit or loss following the derecognition of
the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in “other income and other (losses)/
gains, net” in the consolidated income statement as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.
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2.9
(d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

2.11

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position where
the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group
has also entered into arrangements that do not meet the criteria
for offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be set off in
certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination of a
contract.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The
cost comprises costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable selling expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade and other receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
See Note 2.9 for further information about the Group’s accounting
for trade and other receivables and Note 3.1(d) for a description of
the Group's impairment policies.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value and bank overdraft.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where the Company purchases its equity share capital (treasury
shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares
are cancelled or reissued. Where such shares are subsequently
reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is
included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2 EESHEXREE (&)

Policies (Continued)
EEREMNRARUKREMENBR

2.15 Trade payables and other creditors and 2.15

accrued liabilities

Trade payables and other creditors and accrued liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

2.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance charges in respect
of borrowings and lease liabilities, and exchange differences arising
from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. The exchange gains and
losses that are an adjustment to interest costs include the interest
rate differential between borrowing costs that would be incurred
if the entity had borrowed funds in its functional currency, and the
borrowing costs actually incurred on foreign currency borrowings.
Such amounts are estimated based on interest rates on similar
borrowings in the entity’s functional currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

(@)

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on
the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities are
not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there
is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination
payments. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole.

A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with
respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used
to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition

(i)

(iii)

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sales of goods and services in the ordinary course
of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of discounts.

Revenue is recognised when, or as, the control of the goods or
services is transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms
of the contract and the laws applicable, control of the goods
and services may be transferred over time or at a point in time.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration of the type of customer, the type of transaction and
the specifics of each arrangement.

Sales of food and beverages

Sales of food and beverages are recognised in the consolidated
income statement at the point of sale to customers or when a group
entity has delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised in the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Management and service fee income
Management and service fee income is recognised over the time
when services are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.21 Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at FVOCI.
Dividends are recognised as other income in the consolidated income
statement when the right to receive payment is established.

2.22 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value when
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Income grants are presented as “other income” in the consolidated
income statement.

2.23 Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

2.24 Employee benefits

0)

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments are
recognised as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to be
settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when they are settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

Pension obligations

The Group operates various pension schemes. The schemes are
generally funded through payments to insurance companies or
trustee-administered funds, determined by periodic actuarial
calculations. The Group has both defined benefit and defined
contribution plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan
that is not a defined contribution plan. Defined benefit plans typically
define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as
age, years of service and compensation.

The liability or asset recognised in the statement of financial position
in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair value
of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest
rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension liability.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the income
statement. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.

Remeasurement arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Pension obligations (Continued)

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to
publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Long service payment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service payments to its
employees upon the termination of their employment or retirement
when the employee fulfills certain circumstances under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method,
discounted to present value and reduced by entitlements accrued
under the Group’s retirement plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group. The discount rate is the yield
at the reporting date on high quality corporate bonds which have
terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability.

Remeasurement are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(v)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans under which the Group receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments of the Company.
These plans comprise share option schemes and a share award
scheme.

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options and the awarded shares is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options or the awarded shares
as at the date of grant: (i) including any market performance
conditions; (ii) excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets); and (iii) including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for employees to save or
holding shares for a specified period of time). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options
or awarded shares that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options or awarded shares that are expected to vest based on
the non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(v)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

For the share award scheme, the Group may purchase its own
shares through the trustee of the share award scheme from the
open market for the shares to be vested under the share award
scheme. The shares purchased by the Group that are not yet vested
for this share award scheme were recorded as treasury shares and
recorded as “Shares held for share award scheme” as a deduction
under equity. Upon vesting of the awarded shares, the related costs
of the purchased shares are reduced from the “Shares held for share
award scheme”, and the related fair value of the awarded shares
are debited to share-based compensation reserve with the difference
charged/credited to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares.
The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.

2.25 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

ERETHBREE (&)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2
Policies (Continued)

2.25 Leases (Continued) 2.25 FHE (&)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivables;

o variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate;

o amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual
value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

Lease payments are allocated between the liability and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to income statement over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R Y R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.25 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received;

° any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s
useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in the income statement. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2 EESHEXREE (&)

Policies (Continued)
HE (&)

2.25 Leases (Continued) 2.25

For a lease modification that is not accounted for a separate lease,
the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease term of
the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income. The respective leased assets are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position based on their nature.

2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

2.27 Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at
the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured at
fair value and subsequently at the higher of:

o the amount determined in accordance with the expected
credit loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.
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2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.27 Financial guarantees (Continued)

3.1

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the
present value of the difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates
are provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for
as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of the Group.
Because of the simplicity of the financial structure and the current
operations of the Group, no hedging activities are undertaken by the
management.
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3.1
(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China and
is exposed to foreign exchange risk from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Chinese Renminbi (“RMB").

Management has a policy to require group companies to manage
their foreign exchange risks against their respective functional
currencies. It mainly includes managing the exposures arisen from
sales and purchases made by relevant group companies in currencies
other than their own functional currencies. The Group also manages
its foreign exchange risk by performing regular reviews of the
Group’s net foreign exchange exposure. The Group has not used any
hedging arrangement to hedge its foreign exchange risk exposure.

As the assets and liabilities of each company within the Group are
mainly denominated in the respective company’s functional currency,
the directors are of the opinion that the Group’s volatility of its profits
against changes in exchange rates of foreign currencies would not
be significant.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets except for bank
deposits and bank borrowings, the income and operating cash flows
of which are substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates.

Interest rate risk mainly arises from bank deposits and bank
borrowings at variable interest rates which are subject to cash flow
interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2022, if interest rates had been increased/decreased
by 0.5% with all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year would have been decreased/increased by
HK$4,508,000 (2021: HK$4,924,000) and increased/decreased by
HK$1,654,000 (2021: HK$2,760,000), as a result of the changes in
the interest expenses on bank borrowings and interest income on
bank deposits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to securities price risk because investments
held by the Group are classified on the consolidated statement of
financial position as financial assets at FVOCI. The Group has not
mitigated its price risk arising from these financial assets.

For the Group’s financial assets that are publicly traded, the fair
value is determined with reference to quoted market prices. For the
Group’s financial assets that are not publicly traded, the Group uses
its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the reporting
date.

As at 31 March 2022, if the price of the listed equity securities
(financial assets at FVOCI) had increased/decreased by 10% with all
other variables being held constant, the Group’s FVOCI investment
reserve would have increased/decreased by HK$9,593,000 (2021:
HK$9,695,000).
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(d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk

Risk management

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual
cash flows of debt instruments carried at amortised cost, deposits
with bank and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to
customers and debtors, including trade and other receivables.

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Majority of the Group’s bank
balances and deposits are placed in banks and financial institutions
which are independently rated with investment grade credit rating
(Moody’s: Baa3 or above; Standard & Poor’s: BBB- or above; Fitch:
BBB- or above). Management does not expect any losses from non-
performance by these banks and financial institutions as they have
no default history in the past. Therefore, expected credit loss rate
of cash at bank is assessed to be close to zero and no provision was
made as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

The credit quality of the landlords is assessed based on the financial
position of the landlords as well as past experience of the Group in
dealing with the respective landlords. The Group has policies in place
to ensure rental deposits are placed to landlords with appropriate
credit histories and credit terms are granted to reliable debtors. The
Group’s historical experience in collection of deposits and other
receivables falls within the recorded allowance and the directors
are of the opinion that expected credit loss rate of these balances is
close to zero and no provision was made as at 31 March 2022 and
31 March 2021.

There is no concentration of credit risk as the Group’s bank balances
and deposits are deposited in over ten financial institutions with
investment grade credit ratings, and the Group has a large number
of counterparties for rental deposits, trade and other receivables.
Management does not expect any losses from non-performance by
these financial institutions and counterparties.
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(d)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has three main types of financial assets that are subject to

the expected credit loss model:

)

@)

3)

(1)

@)

Cash and cash equivalents;

Trade receivables; and

Other financial assets measured at amortised costs (including
deposits and other receivables)

Cash and cash equivalents

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, as all financial
institutions are rated with investment grade credit rating, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables of the Group are subject to the expected
credit loss model. The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for trade receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on the nature of customer accounts,
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
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(ii)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

@)

3

3.1

2

B REREE (&)
PR B = ()

Credit risk (Continued) (d) EERMRE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) SHMEEREBEGE)
Trade receivables (Continued) (2) EEENEIEE)
The expected loss rates are calculated using a “roll rate” TEHBERERAENEKERIEE
method based on the probability of a receivable progressing BWMEMEN [ REE] FIEG
through successive stages of delinquency to write-off. Roll B RBERBEAREERRR
rates are calculated separately for exposures in different TR EAEE AR B
segments based on the common credit risk characteristics. FE - ATEBEERE/EHARIN
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and R R 2R P 4T Y AR IE BE /)
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors B R BB E R E A AT M
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. BE - AEEEKBEERFEA
The group has identified the GDP and the fixed investment A A A EBEREEIREL
growth rate of Hong Kong and Mainland China to be the REFNRAZABEBENEE - I
most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical BIEZERRWERECEER
loss rates based on expected changes in these factors. BRAEEER-
On the basis, expected loss rate of trade receivables is BRUEEE RZT=-Z=—_F=H
assessed to be close to zero, as at 31 March 2022 and = t+t—Bk=_ZF=-—F=H
31 March 2021. In respect of trade receivables, the loss =+—H EXEKRRIBENTEH
allowance as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 was EEEEIERELT - pEE
determined as follows: EWEREMS RZTZ_F=
A=+—BRZ-_Z-_—%=H
=+—BHEEREEENT
31 March 2022 0-30days 31-60days  61-90days 91-365days Over 365 days Total
ZE_ZF-f=1-H 0£30H 31Z60H 612901 912365H #365H H
HK000 HK'000 HK’000 HK'000 HK’000 HK000
TEn T FET Tin FiEr TEr
Gross carrying amount BREE
- Trade receivables - BREWERE 39,931 4,621 3,658 2,799 7 51,086
Loss allowance BiEkE - - - @ (77) (79
31 March 2021 0-30 days 31- 60 days 61-90days  91-365days  Over 365 days Total
ZR--%#=R=t-H 0Z30H 31%60H 612908 91%£365H #3658 5t
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
FAT FET FAT AT FET FAT
Gross carrying amount BERE
- Trade receivables - ERENERE 27,362 6,378 2,288 1,296 825 38,149
Loss allowance EREE - - = = (823) (823)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
3) Other financial assets measured at amortised costs (including
deposits and other receivables)

Other financial assets at amortised costs include the deposits
and other receivables excluding prepayments. The credit
quality of other financial assets at amortised costs has been
assessed with reference to historical information about the
counterparties default rates and financial position of the
counterparties. Management is of the opinion that the risk
of default by these counterparties is not significant and
does not expect any losses from non-performance by the
counterparties. Therefore, expected credit loss rate of the
other financial assets at amortised costs is assessed to be
close to zero and no provision was made as at 31 March
2022 and 31 March 2021.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
available credit facilities. The Group has considered the present and
expected market conditions, including the impact of the COVID-19
outbreak and the expected pace of recovery. The Group continues to
maintain a healthy net cash position by keeping credit lines available
and to maintain flexibility in future funding.

The Group’s primary cash requirements are payments for trade
payables, other creditors and accrued liabilities and operating
expenses. The Group mainly finances its working capital
requirements through internal resources and borrowings from
financial institutions.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual
maturities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HEERERE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiBEREE (&)
(e) Liquidity risk (Continued) (e) ARBELEZE(E)
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted FHABRBENESEAGHORUBREESR
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying E-HRURORZESTAEXR At
balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. TEARNI N ARERE R AR
B o
Total
undiscounted
Within 1 year or Between 1 Between 2 More than  cash outflows
ondemand  and2years  and 5 years 5 years AERBS
1ERFRER 1225/ 2B5ER SENL REAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FE7 FET FE% FET
At 31 March 2022 R—F-_—F=A=t+-H
Trade payables BEENRR 167,408 - - - 167,408
Other creditors and accrued  EAE(ERE RIEZ &
liabilties (excluding (TefEkeRaR)
non-financial liabilities) 502,520 - - - 502,520
Lease liabilities HERE 741,870 552,315 786,341 81,855 2,162,381
Bank borrowings FATER 191,891 903,768 - - 1,095,659
1,603,689 1,456,083 786,341 81,855 3,927,968
Total
undiscounted
Within 1 year or Between 1 Between 2 More than  cash outflows
on demand and 2 years and 5 years 5 years FERHRE
1 ERHRER 1E26R 2E5FR SEMN E ik
HK'000 HK’000 HK'000 HK"000 HK'000
FET FAT AT TET FAT
At 31 March 2021 RZT-_—%=R=1-H
Trade payables EEREMHRE 178,183 - = - 178,183
Other creditors and accrued  EfEERE R &R
liabilities (excluding (TBEEeRER)
non-financial liabilities) 477,142 - = = 477,142
Lease liabilities HEARE 755,880 548,388 849,876 64,366 2,218,510
Bank borrowings RITER 190,157 109,120 903,229 - 1,202,506
1,601,362 657,508 1,753,105 64,366 4,076,341
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group monitor capital on
basis of gearing ratio, which is calculated based on total borrowings
less cash and cash equivalents divided by total equity.

As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, as the Group is in a net
cash position of HK$505,896,000 and HK$893,079,000 respectively,
management considers that the Group’s capital risk is minimal.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value,
by valuation method. The difference levels have been defined as
follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

3.2

3.3

2

R RERE ()
EXREBRER
ARENEAEE A N BREAEES
FHELE R AREREERL AR
RIS BB A AR 2 - B S
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BRFIBEAAEE  ARRToE
BELHFREOBREEE - FARIE
BUAA BT & A AR
fB -

BE_ZT-—_F=HA=+—HLFE"
REBLBBELRERELRRRE  1F
EDRBEEBEREZRERRESE
BIEE - FRAREERESE o

RZEZZF=A=+—HBEk=T=—
F=A=+—H BRFSENFES
% Bl 505,896,000 7% 7t & 893,079,000
B ERERABAEBNERRKRES
FMEIKE o

ATETEE
TRARBBEEDTEAFEARNE
BMTH - FTRBHENERMOT

. FEEERRELLEREMS LW
HE CREHR) (B—R) -

. WIEMAE —BRAERE - MR
BHE(AIHIanER) s (AR
BER)BERNEEXRENEA
B(EZR) -

. WIEKEABRNMSRIENE

EXBENEAEABFBRRE
AB)(FE=R) -

ARBEEFR AR 2021/22 Fif

135



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HEERERE (&)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEMAE(E)
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are RAEBR-ZZE_F=A=+—HB%A
measured at fair value at 31 March 2022: FEFENESHEERIINTE :
Level 1 Total
E-® et
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through BEAHEIAEMEE
other comprehensive income WAZ ©RVEE
— Listed equity investments (Note a) - kR E (Mista) 95,931 95,931
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are AEER-_F-_—F=ZA=t—HBE&:A
measured at fair value at 31 March 2021: FEFFENSHEERIINTK :
Level 1 Total
E—& 1Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through BEAHEYAEMEE
other comprehensive income WAZ SREE
— Listed equity investments (Note a) - EfgRERE (fiska) 96,951 96,951
(@  Amount represented the equity investment in Tao Heung (@ ZERBEREEERARRAFN
Holdings Limited. IRIERE -
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e IR R

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. These
instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

The carrying values less loss allowance of trade and other receivables
and payables are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments. There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3
during the year.

3.3

2
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(a)
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e IR R

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined based
on the higher of value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to
sell calculations. The calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R Y R

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets
(Continued)

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
in assessing: (i) whether an event, including the outbreak of
COVID-19, has occurred that may indicate that the related asset
values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the
higher of fair value less costs to sell and net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections, which include
among others, consideration of the present and expected market
conditions including the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak and
the expected pace of recovery; and whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations.
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e IR R

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
and related depreciation and amortisation charges for its property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets.
The estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets of similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation and amortisation charges where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives. It will write off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated
useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable
and amortisable lives and therefore affect the depreciation and
amortisation charges in future periods.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. The Group recognises liabilities or anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

The Group also has significant tax losses carried forward not
recognised as deferred income tax assets. Deferred income tax
assets in respect of tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. No deferred income
tax assets are recognised when it is uncertain whether there are
sufficient future taxable profits available before such tax losses expire
where the final outcome of these uncertainties are different from
the estimation, such differences will impact the carrying amount of
deferred income tax assets in the period in which such determination
is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Income taxes (Continued)

Judgement is required in determining the provision for withholding
tax on the undistributed retained profits of Mainland China
subsidiaries. The Group assesses its needs to make distribution out of
its subsidiaries. Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised on the
undistributed retained profits that are expected to be distributed by
the Group in the future.

Fair values of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value with changes
in the fair values recognised in consolidated income statement.
The Group obtains independent valuations at least annually. At
the end of each reporting period, the management update their
assessment of the fair value of each property, taking into account
the most recent independent valuations. In making the assessment,
consideration is given to assumptions based on market conditions,
such as actual market data and latest transactions for comparable
properties, existing at the end of the financial reporting period.
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e IR R

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans under which the Group receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments of the Company.
These plans comprise share option schemes and a share award
scheme. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options or shares is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options or shares granted as at the date of grant:
(i) including any market performance conditions; (ii) excluding
the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets); and (iii)
including the impact of any non-market vesting conditions.

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of options or shares that are expected to vest. At the
end of each financial reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options or shares that are expected to vest based
on the non-market vesting conditions, taking into account the
Group’s latest business performance, current market condition and
the future business outlook.

142 Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22

4

(e)

2

BRSNS BT & N H il ()

BARRAD A BV BN &
AEBBRBBANBREER - ARRD
e BET & - miE & Rlm AR EEH
RBERARRBELTAZNRE - ZF
At 8B ¥ B in MR At 81 K B {0 2 RhET
g - B BIRH RS MR T 2 B D BARE s
RO AFEERSER - BIE T
MBS B2 E R RN MO R
RO BN A FEERE : ()BRERND
BEEAR ¢ (i) TEEERRE KIET
BRRNBEBRITTELNZE (Plna
MEE ) MHERRIER) ¢ Ri) BEE
RIZEMISIRIEMEE ZZE -

FERE TR R] T LA 57 B8 1 At HA R s R
DELR B - FETI5 1 E /Y 5 8 15k 1 7
A—HERE - REMBREHR - K&
BizSEmSREB IR TERAKE K
MEFBRIR - ISR SRR E
R - SEETAHR] T AR B A A 5
RSN BB (Eh AV fEET -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Determination of lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the
lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated).

For leases of properties, the following factors are normally the most

relevant:

° If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend),
the Group is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not
terminate).

o If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a

significant remaining value, the Group is typically reasonably
certain to extend (or not terminate).

o Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including
historical lease durations and the costs and business
disruption required to replace the leased asset.

The lease term is reassessed when an option is actually exercised
(or not exercised) or the Group becomes obliged to exercise (or not
exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is revised when
a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs,
which affects this assessment and that is within the control of the
Group.
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e B ISR R R

5 Segment Information 5 Z2¥EH
The Group is principally engaged in the operation of quick service AEEFXFELLERRER  KHERK -
restaurants, casual dining chains, institutional catering, as well as HERR AN RMER KD IHER °

food processing and distribution business.

The Chief Executive Officer of the Group reviews the Group’s internal AEEEREHNTEIREAT RS ADE
reporting in order to allocate resources amongst different segments. BR - IpiEERs - BFEEERT
He assesses the business principally from a geographical perspective, Wb - AT B EBARR - R TY2 5
including Hong Kong and Mainland China. Segment result as HEBERRBREMEZATEEZS -
presented below represents operating profit excluding fair value TEREHEARYME - BE RE&HEMNE
changes on investment properties, depreciation and amortisation REEECREBEREEEERES
and impairment loss of property, plant and equipment and right- E—WMEIZFE: RERHEEE W
of-use assets less related depreciation for right-of-use assets — TERAR 2 &g A o

properties; and including finance cost of lease liabilities.

144  Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22



5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Segment Information

e B ISR R Y R

(Continued)

Segment information of the Group for the current year and

5 2¥ERE)

AEBARFEN S BEMMLREFI

comparative figures are as follows: I
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
BB REIR it rEH
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Year ended 31 March 2022 HE_T_—_F=H=1—H
EFE

Total segment revenue BHEBA 6,181,840 1,433,953 7,615,793
Inter-segment revenue (Note i) U ONCIED) (4,664) (102,376) (107,040)
Revenue (from external revenue) L ONCEEISON)

(Note ii) (Bt aEii) 6,177,176 1,331,577 7,508,753
Represented by timing of revenue XU A FEREIRFREI R R -

recognition:
— At a point in time - R 6,129,623 1,331,577 7,461,200
— Over time - EXE-REEA 47,553 - 47,553

6,177,176 1,331,577 7,508,753

Segment results (Note iii) DABEELE (HsEiil) 415,189 99,031 514,220
Depreciation and amortisation e g

(excluding depreciation of (EREEE -MEZFE

right-of-use assets — properties) BRSN) (303,741) (73,338) (377,079)
Fair value loss on investment properties & %% 2 A FEEE (27,900) - (27,900)
Impairment loss of property, M - BEEREZ

plant and equipment REEE (18,341) (991) (19,332)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets 1 FHEE & 2 B (EE 18 (33,579) (2,002) (35,581)
Finance income TSI A 5,777 1,882 7,659
Finance cost on bank borrowings RITER 2 MK (11,198) - (11,198)
Income tax expense FriSHiE A (16,391) (11,548) (27,939)
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Segment Information (Continued) 5 S2¥ERGE)
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
BB AR B A AEE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Year ended 31 March 2021 HE_Z-_—F=FA=+—H
ILFE
Total segment revenue FEGAET N 5,518,223 1,298,001 6,816,224
Inter-segment revenue (Note i) AEBFU A (FisED) (4,022) (97,947) (101,969)
Revenue (from external revenue) WA (2R B HNEBURA)
(Note ii) (B i) 5,514,201 1,200,054 6,714,255
Represented by timing of revenue RIRAFERNRRERTR
recognition:
— At a point in time - X —RHEE 5,470,460 1,200,054 6,670,514
— Over time - EE—BRKRKHER 43,741 = 43,741
5,514,201 1,200,054 6,714,255
Segment results (Note iii) DEEEELE (i) 674,219 149,405 823,624
Depreciation and amortisation PrEe s
(excluding depreciation of (ERAREE-MEZTE
right-of-use assets — properties) B A1) (302,586) (63,042) (365,628)
Fair value loss on investment properties 1% & #% 2 AF{EE B (42,900) = (42,900)
Impairment loss of property, M - BERZEZ
plant and equipment SEEE (2,705) = (2,705)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets & A # & &= 2 R E KB (23,680) - (23,680)
Finance income B A 6,480 1,645 8,125
Finance cost on bank borrowings IRITER Z WA (6,290) = (6,290)
Income tax expense FriSiE A (15,646) (14,350) (29,996)
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Segment Information (Continued) 5

(i)

(if)

(iif)

Inter-segment transactions were entered into in the normal
course of business.

The Group has a large number of customers. For the
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, no revenue was
derived from transactions with a single external customer
representing 10% or more of the Group's total revenue.

Information of segment results

(a) The following items are included in the measure

2

(iii)

NED R Z TN IER X812
2Ty

REBREAEERT -HE-Z
TFRZE—F=RA=+—
BIEFE WEEIIFERTZ
RBEEEAEEBUA10% 3k
PAEZ A o

DIEEER

(@ MNATHBEFAXKEE

of segment results reviewed by the Chief Executive FETEEHM D EEER
Officer of the Group. FTE e
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
BB FERE N ]
HKS$'000 HKS$000 HK$000
FET FET FET
Year ended 31 March 2022 = S—
=A=t—HLt%E
Depreciation - right-of-use FE-RRERE-MZ
assets — properties 635,861 97,178 733,039
Finance cost of lease liabilities HEABRRBRA 54,204 22,642 76,846
Year ended 31 March 2021 Hz-Z-—-F%
ZA=+—HLEE
Depreciation - right-of-use E-FRERE-MZ
assets — properties 645,219 88,495 733,714
Finance cost of lease liabilities HAEE BB BKAR 62,611 22,258 84,869
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 S2¥ERGE)
(i) Information of segment results (Continued) iy PDWEEEF(E)
(b)  Recondiliation of total segment results to total profit (b) AADFEFEEHBRTATR
before income tax is as follows: MEYEERAT -
2022 2021
—E-= —E—F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Segment results AR E 514,220 823,624
Depreciation and amortisation e R#ksE
(excluding depreciation of (ERREEE-MEITE
right-of-use assets — properties)  Bx4h) (377,079) (365,628)
Fair value loss on investment WEYE 2 N TEEE
properties (27,900) (42,900)
Impairment loss of property, M - WENEREOREBE
plant and equipment (19,332) (2,705)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets 1 FR#E& & 2 BB E 1B (35,581) (23,680)
Finance income B U A 7,659 8,125
Finance cost on bank borrowings $RfTE R 2 B A A (11,198) (6,290)
Profit before income tax R A5 B A 50,789 390,546
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Segment Information (Continued) 5 S2¥ERGE)
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
BB R Bl At rEE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
As at 31 March 2022 RIE_—_F=H=+—H
Segment assets DEEAE 5,632,257 1,068,171 6,700,428
Year ended 31 March 2022 o —
:)EJ — +_ H ﬂiig
Segment assets include: DIEERSRE
Additions to non-current assets REIFMDEE (ERMITAR
(other than financial instruments FEIEFIIB & ERRIN)
and deferred income tax assets) 1,196,399 257,000 1,453,399
As at 31 March 2021 RZZE-——F=A=+—H
Segment assets DIREE 5,905,698 1,048,447 6,954,145
Year ended 31 March 2021 HE_T_—F
“A=+—HLFE
Segment assets include: DEEERRE
Additions to non-current assets REFRDEE(ERIAR
(other than financial instruments FEIEFRIBE ERRIN)
and deferred income tax assets) 487,583 188,652 676,235
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s non-current assets (other
than financial instruments and deferred income tax assets) that
are located in Hong Kong and the Mainland China amounted
to HK$3,800,772,000 (2021: HK$3,775,601,000) and
HK$755,904,000 (202 1: HK$695,857,000) respectively.

Reconciliation of total segment assets to total assets is provided as

2

DEER ()

R-E-_—F=A=+—H  A&H
EREAERTBEAMNERSEE
(EMIAREEHBEEERIN) 25l
#$3,800,772,000/% jT( = & = — & :
3,775,601,0007% 7T ) } 755,904,000 7T
(ZZ——4% : 695,857,000/87T) °

&)

BOREERBEENHIRIT

follows:

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
RoE——& RZZTE=——%F
=H=+—H =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Total segment assets BAORBEE 6,700,428 6,954,145
Deferred income tax assets FIETH T E 67,714 70,733

Financial assets at fair value through RAFEIAEMEE
other comprehensive income WAZ S RlE E 95,931 96,951
Current income tax recoverable BNHEA AT g [B] 718 7,773 32,844
Total assets BB E 6,871,846 7,154,673
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e SRR R

2

Property, Plant and Equipment and Right- 6 #% BMERRKEREHE
Of-Use Assets gE
Property, plant and equipment Right-of-use assets
0% BERRE feREEE
Leasehold
Land and Furniture [and and
buildings and other land use
(Notec) ~ Leasehold  equipment  Plantand right
THREF improvements FAR  machiney | Subtotal | BETHRE  Properties | Subtotal Total
(Wi BEETRE  EMRE HRRES 0G| DR i Iy 2%
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
773 AT AT AT AT 773 AT 773 AT
At 1 April 2020 NZFZEEMA-A
Cost A 717564 1293206 1,642,168 269917 | 3922855 630817 5883668 | 6514485 10,437,340
Accumulated depreciation ZRMERHEEE
and impairment losses (165,834) (816,947)  (1,181,628) (149,615) | (2,314,024) (180,506)  (3,628,740) | (3.809.46)  (6,123.270)
Closing net book amount ERERTE 551,730 476,59 460,540 120302 | 1,608,831 450311 205498 | 2705239 4314070
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-E--F
ZR=t-RIt5E
Opening net book amount ENEESE 551,730 476,259 460,540 120302 | 1,608,831 450311 2254928 | 2705239 4314070
Additions hE - 126,854 122,850 1671 2571375 - 359,524 359,524 616,899
Disposals te -3 0 (18| (14579 - - (14579
Modfication and termination of leases EEEEIR&|E - - - - - - g usmn o (181.72)
Depreciation i (17720)  (144,765) (166,931) 21,765) (351,182) (14.252) (733.714) (747.966)  (1,009,148)
Impairment A = (1,026) (1,679 = (2,705) = (23,680) (23,680) (26,385)
Exchange differences ELEE 6,373 8,943 41 1,715 PAPLY] 1333 17,660 18,993 40,235
Closing net book amount ERGESE 540,382 458,947 411,918 107,735 | 1518982 4371392 1686991 | 2124383 3,643,365
At 31 March 2021 WZF—-F
=A=t-H
Cost A 729426 1350420 1,684,709 281,181 | 4,045,736 631,139 5820191 | 6451330 10,497,066
Accumulated depreciation and ZENERAAELE
impairment losses (189,044)  (891473)  (1272,791) (173.446) | (2,526,754) (193747) (4133200 | (4326947)  (6,853,701)
Closing net book amount ERGESE 540,382 458,947 411,918 107,735 | 1,518,982 4371392 1686991 | 2124383 3,643,365
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right- 6 ¥%¥  BMERREREHE

Of-Use Assets (Continued) BE (&)
Property, plant and equipment Right-of-use assets
1% BERRE fEREEE
Leasehold
Land and Furniture [and and
buildings and other land use
(Notec)  Leasehold ~ equipment  Plantand right
1T improvements GAR  machinery | Subtotal | #ELHR  Properties | Subtotal Total
(Wi BESTRE  HiRE  HERES It | tefERE % Nt 2]
HK000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK000 HK'000 HK000 HK'000
7T 7 7R 7 7L 71 7 71 7
Year ended 31 March 2022 HE-E -
ZR=t-ALFE
Opening net book amount ENEEEE 540,382 458,947 411918 107,735 | 1518982 43739 1686991 | 2124383 3,643,365
Additions hE 4,39 212,555 213,830 17,341 448122 58,395 879,504 937,899 1,386,021
Disposls tE - 388 (e @n| (19 - - - M)
Modification and termination of leases TEEEIRAE - - - - - - (s | (245) (12245
Depreciation i (17974)  (154,469) (168,950) (20,795) (362,188) (14,853) (733,039) | (747,892)  (1,110,080)
Impairment i - (8532) (10,800) - (19.332) - (35,581) (35,581) (54,913)
Exchange differences Eizg 3346 6,223 2039 807 12415 JEE 1,384 211 14,532
(losing net book amount EREREE 530,150 510,896 440,363 104,661 | 1,586,070 481,667 1676807 | 2158474 3,744,544
At 31 March 2022 i —
=R=1-H
Cost i 740505 1,493,105 1,815,500 298218 | 4347328 690569 6,407,675 | 7,098,244 11445572
Accumulated depreciation and ZENERNESE
impairment losses (210355  (982,209)  (1,375,137) (193,557) | (2,761,258) (208.902)  (4,730,868) | (4,939,770)  (7,701,028)
(losing net book amount EREREE 530,150 510,896 440,363 104,661 | 1,586,070 481,667 1676807 | 2158474 3,744,544
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right-
Of-Use Assets (Continued)

(@

Depreciation expenses of HK$1,087,216,000 (2021:
HK$1,074,357,000) and HK$22,864,000 (2021:
HK$24,791,000) have been charged to cost of sales and
administrative expenses, respectively (Note 24), while
impairment losses of HK$54,913,000 (202 1: HK$26,385,000)
have been charged to other income and other (losses)/gains,
net (Note 23).

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets

The Group mainly operates restaurants, institutional catering
and casual dining chains on self-owned properties and leased
properties with lease terms ranging from 1 to 9 years (2021:
same). Management regards each individual restaurant as
a separately identifiable cash-generating unit (CGU) and
performs impairment assessments on each of the CGU with
impairment indicators by considering the recoverable amount
of such assets at restaurant level. During the year ended
31 March 2022, management identified those restaurants
with impairment indicators and performed impairment
assessments to estimate the corresponding recoverable
amounts of their property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based
on value-in-use basis which cover a period of the useful life or
the remaining lease term, whichever is shorter. Impairment is
recognised when the recoverable amount was lower than the
carrying amount of a CGU. Key inputs to the determination
of the recoverable amount include the annual revenue
growth and pre-tax discount rate. The pre-tax discount rate
used to determine the recoverable amounts is approximately
12.0% per annum (2021: 11.5%).

2

Mk BERREBERERRE
BE (#H)

@)

#1 & [ % 1,087,216,0007% jT( —
T — — % :1,074,357,0003 JT )
122,864,000 L (=T = —

24,791,000 7T ) E 9 5l aﬂ\ﬁé%
AR TECE R (M3E24) - MiR(E
fE51854,913,0008 (= E=—F :
26,385,000 7T ) 2 5t AFEABUTA
R EAE (E8) SaF (HEE23) o

ME - BEMRENMERAREE
A
AEEEERAEVELHEEY

EREER  BBEKREABE
K HEHMRA—ENF(ZF
——F R BEEEREHE
HERRBIAIBMREELE
i WEBEREHUEENER
EmEey A Yol e 58 - B HBRRE
PReEBEELEEMETR
EBEFfE - BE_T__F=A4
=t HLFE BEEEBNE
METRZERE - WHEETR
BFHE - AT EDE - BE K&
RERAEAEEEZAER @R
T e

REEABMANIKRESREIRE
REBEEET  HREAFEA
FHAS R T EAREAR (ARRE &
BE) - BRI RO EENBSE
HEBMHERAE - BIERBIE -

EE e S ENE Zg AR
FJEEJ*H& SR KB ATAE IR

o ERE AR ESEMFE A
HSEETF%“’HZ 0% (ZE=—%F:
11.5%) °
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right-
Of-Use Assets (Continued)

(b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets (Continued)

In connection with the impairment assessment performed,
the Group recognised an impairment charge of property, plant
and equipment of HK$19,332,000 (2021: HK$2,705,000) and
right-of-use assets of HK$35,581,000 (2021: HK$23,680,000)
for the year ended 31 March 2022.

(© The Group’s land and buildings are analysed as follows:

6

2

Mk BERREBERERRE
BE (#H)

(b)

ME- - BEERBREREEE
AE (&)

BRMETZRERS  REBE=
- —F=Z/=1+—HILFE"
REBRERYE  WE KB 2R
B 19,332,000 T (— B = —
£ 1 2,705,00087T) RIEAEEE
ZRfE S 1 35,581,0008 L (—Z
——%F :23,680,000/87T) °

AEBLHEBETAONMAT

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
R-ZE-—F R-ZB—_—%
=A=+-—H =A=+—H”
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Net book value: BREVHE -
Freehold land KA FERE L 14,811 14,811
Buildings BT 515,339 525,571
530,150 540,382
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Property, Plant and Equipment and Right-
Of-Use Assets (Continued)

(d) This note provides information for the leases where the
Group is a lessee.

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position
shows the following amounts related to leases:

6

2

Mk BERREBERERRE
BE (#H)

@) HEEREAERARBANR
EER -

()  REEPBIRR KT RER
B EHE

REMBARRKREIIAT
HEEAMANEE

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
R-ZE=—F R —%F
=A=+—H =A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Leasehold land and FRE £ 4 K 1 3 (55 FA 4
land use right 481,667 437,392
Properties sES 1,676,807 1,686,991
2,158,474 2,124,383
Lease liabilities HERE
Non-current IERED 1,341,995 1,368,550
Current mE 681,416 681,521
2,023,411 2,050,071
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Right- 6
Of-Use Assets (Continued)

(d) This note provides information for the leases where the
Group is a lessee. (Continued)

(ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement

2

Mk BERREBERERRE

BE (#H)

(d) HHEREASESEAHEANE
g&8 - (8)

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ FAEEEZINE
Leasehold land and land use right TAE 10 &% + b F e 14,853 14,252
Properties LIES 733,039 733,714
747,892 747,966
Interest expenses (included in MERX
finance income and finance costs) (GEAB I A K
ISR AN ) 76,846 84,869
Expense relating to short-term leases E2ZHIFAEH 2 & A
(included in cost of sales) (GFASHEKRAK) 31,487 33,043
Expenses relating to variable lease BRI EFHER K -
payments not included in lease WA BEEEAEEH
liabilities (included in cost of sales) 2 &M (5t ASSERA) 50,435 36,349

Leases entered by the Group were generally with
lease term of 1 to 9 years with renewal option.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, total cash
outflows for leases were HK$849,393,000 (2021:
HK$801,979,000).
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Investment Properties 7 BREY=E
2022 2021
g T —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Beginning of the year FHNEEER 542,700 585,600
Fair value loss (Note 23) N EEE (KIFE23) (27,900) (42,900)
End of the year FERER 514,800 542,700
Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment properties: MIREMERNBRFPERNSHE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET T
Rental income HE2 WA 18,199 14,864
Direct operating expenses from EEHSWAZYEL
properties that generate rental income HEEREEER (1,896) (994)
16,303 13,870
As at 31 March 2022, the Group had no un-provided contractual RZEZZF=A=+—H X&EL
obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2021: Nil) EEBARREBRRBEZABEENE

F(ZE_—F: &)

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties 7N £5 B 1% & Y0 3 F CBRE Limited #1758
was performed by CBRE Limited to determine the fair value of the VEE LEEREMER_T-_—
investment properties as at 31 March 2022 and 2021. Fair value loss RZZT-—F=A=+—HB&0ATFE-
has been charged to other income and other (losses)/gains, net (Note ATHEBESEHMY A RHE A% (E
23). 18), %55 (MIEE23) IR ©
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7 Investment Properties (Continued) 7 REWHE(E)

The following table analyses the investment properties carried at fair TERAIBBEERZAFESTIREDE
value, by valuation method.

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2022 using

R-BE-_—HF=A=+—HZAREFErXEH

Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets for other observable  unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
EEEETER Hith AT &R EH FERTEEEN
& EWRE ERWAE ERWAE
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
it (F—#) (B=#) (B=4)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET
Recurring fair value measurements & EMHEAF(EE
Investment properties: TEME
— Shops — Hong Kong - - B - - 514,800
Fair value measurements at 31 March 2021 using

RZEZ—F=A=+—B2zZ2AVEFEANEHR
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets for  other observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
FAREELR HAb I ERm FERTEIERE
5 ERR(E BERBAE BERBAE
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
e att (F—%) (B4 (=4
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TFrET TET T

Recurring fair value measurements ~ &HEQAFETE
Investment properties: KEME

— Shops — Hong Kong - PEH - B - - 542,700
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Investment Properties (Continued)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of
fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in

circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Valuation

Fair value technique

AFE fRERE
(HK$°000)
(F#7T)

As at 31 March 2022
R-E-__F=A=+—H

Direct Comparison
Method with
adjusting factors
EAAAEREER

514,800 BREBOA

Unobservable
inputs

FUBENEAE

Adjusted units’ rates
KRR BB

BREY= ()

AEEBRANEM B EEBH%
HEZBEREREDHE AR FEER
HEARE -

FRN-F—R F_ARE=REAGE
8B o

Relationship of

Range of unobservable
unobservable inputs to
inputs fair value
FABE FE BRI A B
WAERNEE BN FENRE

The higher the
adjusted units’ rates,
the higher the

HK$15,000 to
HK$66,000

per square feet fair value
BFHFR15000F KHABELERBES
66,000 47T NHEMS

As at 31 March 2021
R-_EBE-_—F=A=+—H

Direct Comparison
Method with
adjusting factors
FAAEREER

542,700 BELBOE

Adjusted units’ rates
AR BAER

The higher the
adjusted units’ rates,
the higher the

HK$15,000 to
HK$66,000

per square feet fair value
B¥HR15000F LRABELEBRES -
66,000 77T NHEMS
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Investment Properties (Continued)

Valuation process of the Group

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March
2022 and 2021 were determined on the basis of a valuation by a
qualified valuer in accordance with the “HKIS Valuation Standards
2017" published by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, which is
also compliant with the RICS Valuation — Professional Standards of
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and the International
Valuation Standards (IVS).

Valuation technique

Fair value is defined as “the estimated amount for which an asset
or liability should exchange on the valuation date between a willing
buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s-length transaction after proper
marketing and where the parties had each acted knowledgeably,
prudently and without compulsion.”

Under the direct comparison method, fair value of the investment
property is derived from comparing the property to be valued directly
with other comparable properties, which have recently transacted.
However, given the heterogeneous nature of the properties,
appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow for any
qualitative differences that may affect the price likely to be achieved
by the property under consideration. The most significant impact
into this valuation approach is price per square meter. The higher the
price per square meter, the higher the fair value of the investment
properties.

There was no change to the valuation technique with that of prior
year.

The Group’s management reviews the valuation performed by
independent valuer and holds discussion of the valuation processes
and results are held with the independent qualified valuer once a
year for financial reporting purpose.
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Intangible Assets

e MR MR

8 EIEEE

Other
intangible
Goodwill assets Total
BmE HtugrEE Mg
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2020 R-ZE-_ZFFPMA—H
Cost B 1,350 57,794 59,144
Accumulated amortisation and ~ Zi&EEEE MREEE
impairment losses (246) (57,477) (57,723)
Closing net book amount FIREETEFE 1,104 317 1,421
Year ended 31 March 2021 HE T —F=F=1+—HIFE
Opening net book amount FHAREFE 1,104 317 1,421
Amortisation expense (Note (a)) 4% /A (M3 (a) - (194) (194)
Exchange differences ME =5 - 2 2
Closing net book amount FIRAREFE 1,104 125 1,229
At 31 March 2021 R-ZE-_—F=F=+—H
Cost BN 1,350 57,794 59,144
Accumulated amortisation and ~ ZEi&#kiE MREEE
impairment losses (246) (57,669) (57,915)
Closing net book amount FARERTEFE 1,104 125 1,229
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE T —F#=A=1+—HItFE
Opening net book amount FHIREFE 1,104 125 1,229
Amortisation expense (Note (a))  #E5%E 3 (K5t (a)) - (38) (38)
Closing net book amount FIRAREFE 1,104 87 1,191
At 31 March 2022 R-TB-_—F=A=+—H
Cost B AR 1,350 57,794 59,144
Accumulated amortisation and ~ ZEiE# i MREEE
impairment losses (246) (57,707) (57,953)
Closing net book amount FIRAREFE 1,104 87 1,191
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R R

Intangible Assets (Continued)

Amortisation expense of HK$38,000 (2021: HK$194,000) has been
charged to costs of sales.

Other intangible assets mainly represent franchise rights with useful
lives of 5 to 20 years.

Impairment tests for goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs)
identified according to country of operation.

A segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation is presented
below.

Hong Kong BB

(a)

(b)

(9

BYEE (8

38,000/ ;o ( =& = — 4F : 194,0007%
TO) ZEHERE T ASHERAK -

HEEFEEETBEEERME - EFEA
FHIAS5ZE 204

e R (E 5
BEERAEENCLEER (RERS
EEBMHB) AR -

2022 2021
—E-CF —E—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAETT FET
1,104 1,104

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based on the
higher of (i) fair value less costs to sell and (i) value in use determined
using the discounted cash flow method. The calculations of the
recoverable amounts of the CGUs in Hong Kong were determined
with reference to their fair value less costs to sell.
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Subsidiaries

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March

2022:

Name of subsidiary

MEARER
Asia Pacific Catering
Corporation Limited

REHRRARDA

Barson Development Limited
BNERARAA

Bloomcheer Limited
HKEBRAH

Brilliantwin Limited
iR A R A A

Café de Coral Assets Limited
Café de Coral Central
Processing Limited

Café de Coral (China) Limited
AKEE(FE)BRAR]

Café de Coral (Denmark) ApS
Café de Coral Development
Limited'

Café de Coral Group Limited
REETCEBRAR]

e B ISR R Y R

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
MM R
RS 2

Hong Kong
&R
Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
&R

British Virgin Islands

ERERRES

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
&R

Denmark
F%

British Virgin Islands

KRERRS

Hong Kong
&R

Issued/
registered
capital
BR1T/
LTS

HK$131,000,000
131,000,000 77T
HK$10,000

10,000 78T

HK$71,000,000
71,000,000 7 7T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 77T

Us$1
1%L

HK$20
2087T

HK$92,291,880
92,291,880 77T,

DKK 125,000
125,000 F 25 573 56

Us$1
1%L

HK$148,923,550
148,923,550 76 7T

9 B

TRHEIR - E-_—"F=A=1+—HH

FEMBRARER :

Percentage
Class of of shares
shares held held’
Fiks B 43
4738 51 BOL!
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%

Principal
activities

FTEEH

Catering

#BR

Property investment
MERE

Catering
R

Catering
R

Investment holding
REER

Food processing

RYEE

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REER

Catering
R

ARBEEFR AR 2021/22 Fif
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9 Subsidiaries (Continued) 9 MKMEBATR(E)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage
establishment registered  Class of of shares
and operation capital  shares held held"  Principal
Name of subsidiary SRR R BRIT/ FiE FiERe  activities
MEARERE RBE I AfRA  ROER B EEXFK
Café de Coral (Guangzhou) Mainland China HK$21,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited ~ FE A 21,000,000787C KR
ARE(BMN) RmBRAR
Café de Coral (Macau) Limited Macau MOP300,000  Ordinary 70%  Catering
AR CRM) ERAA] R 300,000;2F7C &l R
City Energy Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
Blat R A o 200,000 &l MERE
Diners Court Management Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
Limited B 1,000,00087T  EiB@ KR
ZRBEEER AT
Dongguan Asia Pacific Mainland China HK$7,400,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited ~ FREIA 7,400,000 7T R
REZRHRRARRE
Dongguan Continental Mainland China RMB39,186,061 - 100%  Food processing
Foods Limited Bl A AR# 39,186,061 7T RYEE
RERERRARAR
Eldoon Limited Hong Kong HK$21,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
o 21,000,000/ Ei@ KR
Exo Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$4,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
o 4,000,000 & KR
Foshan Café de Coral Catering Mainland China HK$6,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Company Limited BN 6,000,000 57T KR
BILARERRAR AR
Gateway City Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
s 1,000,000  E& R
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Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary
MEARERE

Global Force Limited
BBEERAA]

Glory Congee & Noodles

Food Limited
BB HAR AR

Grand Seasons (Central)
Food and Beverages
Caterers Company Limited

Greatpower Kingdom Limited
ABEFERAA]

Greenwise Limited
MEFR AR

Guangzhou Asia Pacific
Catering Company Limited
BMNZEHRRAR AR

Guangzhou Café de Coral
Foods Limited
BMARERmEERR AR

Honour Congee & Noodles
Food Limited
ERERmARAF

Huizhou Asia Pacific Catering
Company Limited
BMZERARARAE

Invol Resources Limited
BERERERERAT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
FEMERSL, B Z
R AR it 2

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
)

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Mainland China
B A

Mainland China
B i

Hong Kong
BB

Mainland China
B A

Hong Kong
(incorporation)/
Mainland China
(operation)

B (L)
B ()

Issued/
registered
capital
B®T/
ERUTIEN

HK$92,466,446
92,466,446 78T

HK$2,500,000
2,500,000 #7T

HK$11,000,000
11,000,000 A 7T

HK$22,000,000
22,000,000 7T

HK$4,000,000
4,000,000 77T

HK$16,000,000
16,000,000 7% 7T

US$23,500,000
23,500,000 37T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T

HK$3,200,000
3,200,000/ 7T

HK$6,125,000
6,125,000 7T

9 KEAR(E)

Percentage
Class of of shares
shares held held’
Fifs P AR 47
[ignE=bill BO'
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
- 100%
- 100%
Ordinary 100%
- 100%
Ordinary 100%

ARBEEFR AR 2021/22 Fif

Principal
activities
TEFEK

Catering
R
Catering

RR

Catering
#R

Catering
R

Catering
R
Catering

/920

Food processing
RYEE

Catering
R

Catering
#HR

Property investment

MERE
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Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary
MEARERE

Jiangmen Café de Coral
Catering Company Limited

TFIRFKERRBRAR

Kamstar International Limited
CEREBRBRAR

Kater International Limited
Iz BFR A PR A A

Kolink Enterprises Limited
Bl X AR A

Luckyview Enterprises Limited
FREERRLT

Maradona Limited

Paramount Success Limited
BB R AR

Perfect Plan International
Limited

Real King Limited
ZBR AR

Regal Universal Limited
BaRRERAA]

Scanfoods Limited
EEBEBRERABER AR

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
FMARIL R
RBE I

Mainland China
BN
Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB
Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
B

British Virgin Islands
RBERES

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B
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Issued/
registered
capital
BB/
ot AR

HK$5,000,000
5,000,000 47T
HK$ 1,000,000

1,000,000 7T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T

HK$2
2787T
HK$1
1787T

HK$20
2087T

HK$24,000,000
24,000,000 7T

Us$1
1%L

HK$25,000,000
25,000,0007& 7T

HK$18,000,000
18,000,000 7% 7T

HK$2,100,000
2,100,000/ 7T

9 KEAR(E)

Percentage
Class of of shares
shares held held’
Bigs] P AR 4D
40 5l BOL'
- 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%

Principal
activities

FEXEK

Catering
#R

Catering
%A

Catering
%A

Leasing of premises
space
MEMELE

Leasing of properties

HEMFE

Investment holding
REER

Catering
REZR

Investment holding
REER

Catering
R

Catering
R

Food trading

A O B3
RonE
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Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary
MEARERE

Shenzhen Café de Coral
Catering Company Limited
AINARRERRER LA

Shenzhen Prime Deal Catering
Company Limited
RYIEBR R AR AR

Silver Weal Enterprises Limited
RIS PERRADT

Sparango Limited
The Spaghetti House
Restaurants Limited

EREBRRAR

Very Nice Fast Food Limited
HEBRMARR

Vogue Asia Limited
BN ERAR]

Weli Company Limited
& _BRAT]

Winfast Holdings Limited
KEEBBRAT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
FMARIL R
RBE I

Mainland China
B A

Mainland China
H B At

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
(incorporation)/
Mainland China
(operation)
¢IWM§%)

Issued/
registered
capital
BB/
ERITEN

HK$12,000,000
12,000,000 A 7T

HK$32,000,000
32,000,000 7T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 87T

HK$18,500,000
18,500,000 7% 7T

HK$10,000,000
10,000,000 7% 7T

HK$17,025,000
17,025,000 47T
HK$5,675,000
5,675,000/ T

HK$1
1787T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 87T

HK$10,000
10,0007 7T

9 KEAR(E)

Percentage
Class of of shares
shares held held’
Fiss Frigk 6
gVl Botk!
- 100%
- 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Class A? 100%
ASERI2
Class B?
B A A2
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%

ARBEEFR AR 2021/22 Fif

Principal
activities
TEEK

Catering

/9

Catering
%A

Catering

/920

Catering
R

Investment holding

REER

Catering
#R

Investment holding

REER

Catering
R

Property investment

MERA
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9 Subsidiaries (Continued) 9 MKMEBATR(E)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage
establishment registered  Class of of shares
and operation capital  shares held held"  Principal
Name of subsidiary SRR R BRIT/ FiE FiERe  activities
MEARERE RBE I AfRA  ROER B EEXFK
Worldway Limited Macau MOP300,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
RERRAE P 300,000}8F1T &l MERE
Yumi Yumi Caterers Limited Hong Kong HK$6,701,560  Class A 100%  Catering and property
EEHRARAR BB 6,701,560  AJEAI3 investment
HK$2,872,100  Class B? RERMERE
2,872,100/87T BRI
Zhongshan Café de Coral Mainland China HK$1,300,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited ~ FREIA 1,300,000787C R
FILARERRER A A
Zhuhai Café de Coral Mainland China HK$8,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited BRI 8,000,000 57T KR

WEAZRERRBRAR

Café de Coral Development Limited i AN A 7]
BEEE - T EMMB AR ARERS -

! Café de Coral Development Limited is held directly by the Company. All other !
subsidiaries are held indirectly.

LEMBARAERRG ZIHBEAZE TR
FAFIER B AR 2 5B AT 2
R

Holders of class A shares of this subsidiary have priority over those of class B shares 2
on certain shareholders’ rights.

WEKERRABRIRG ZFHBEAREBRE
7 o T BARRIRRD 2 F5 B AN IR RAE o

g Holders of class A shares of this subsidiary have voting rights, while holders of class g
B shares have no voting rights.

PA R B A 3t R B SZ 9 A B 2 VK RE 4 1 5 R
BX - BXEREHRSE -

The official names of the companies incorporated in Mainland China are in Chinese. 4
English translation is for reference only.

AERTEAMEMKINABTBIIEEE
e

° All of the companies incorporated in Mainland China are wholly foreign owned °
enterprises.

168 Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22



10

11

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through 10

Other Comprehensive Income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
include the following:

Listed investments denominated in HK$ & (ABTEHE)
— Market value of listed - ETER ST E (W ita)
equity securities (Note a)

2

BAFEIAEMEZEBA
ZERMEE
BAFEIAEZMEERAZERHEE
BENTIEE :
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
R-EB-_F R —%F
=ZH=t+—H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
95,931 96,951

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR R

(a) Amount represented the equity investment in Tao Heung Holdings Limited.

Non-Current Prepayments and Deposits 11

Non-current prepayments and deposits include the following:

(@ ZEBEENERERARABNBIERE -

FRBANREARRS

FRBBENFIANEEBE T

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

R-B-—F RITZ—%F

=A=+—H —A=+—H

HK$°000 HK$'000

FEx FEIT

Deposits birecd 279,151 254,618
Prepayments TERFRIE 14,112 29,004
293,263 283,622

RRESE

EARAR 2021/22 F3Fk
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11 Non-Current Prepayments and Deposits 11
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-current deposits are
denominated in the following currencies:

2

FERBANRERRE (&)

AEEZ B RS OREEN T
ke -

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
R-EBE-_F R —%F
=A=+—~8” =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ BT 237,067 220,885
RMB AR 40,703 32,384
Macau pataca SBPIIT 1,381 1,349
279,151 254,618
12 Inventories 12 HFE

Inventories mainly comprise food and consumable stores and are
stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost

of sales amounted to HK$2,252,217,000 during the year ended 31
March 2022 (2021: HK$2,008,142,000) (Note 24).
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FEFERRRYMBEMM  HRAE
HEAIHFIREMRE 2 BEEAR -

REBE_TE-_—_F=A=+—HIF
B ERRAILEREFTAHERR
217 8 A AN A2,252,217,00058 T ( =
T~ — 4 :2,008,142,000% 7t ) (Bt3E
24) °
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13 Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments

13

2

ERMEMEWERE - BF

and Deposits MERZRE

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

R-B-—F RZTEZ—F

=A=+-—H =A=+—-H

HK$’000 HK$000

FET FET

Trade receivables e G 51,086 38,149
Less: Loss allowance B SRR (79) (823)
Trade receivables — net (Note a) =X REWOFARIA (fisEa) 51,007 37,326
Other receivables (Note b) H b eI BRIE (B 5ED) 148,543 65,213
199,550 102,539

Prepayments TEfTFRIE 53,536 49,260
Deposits Be 1,538 2,230
254,624 154,029

(@) The Group’s sales to customers are mainly on a cash basis.
The Group also grants a credit period between 30 to 90
days to certain customers for the provision of the Group’s
institutional catering services, sales of merchandise for the
Group's food manufacturing business and its franchisees.

(b) As at 31 March 2022, other receivables primarily comprise
government subsidies in relation to the COVID-19 of
HK$95,800,000 (2021: HK$14,650,000), value-added tax
recoverable and receivable from a security logistic company.

(a)

AEBUEPZHENRERH
BE -AKETGT=TENT
REEH T RO BBERRRE -
HEAKRERMBERGEML
R RTONEER -

R-E-—_F=A=+—H"  H
fib FEUBR T = Z B35 B @S b
A 15 B BT & B 95,800,000 7
TL(=ZZF = —F : 14,650,000 7
7T) AR EBSER KRR EIR A
AlA)H b E AR IS o

ARBEEFR AR 2021/22 Fif
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13 Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments 13 ZExRHAMEWRERE - AN

and Deposits (Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

MERZE (&)

ERBUCRIANREOITIAT

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

R-EB-_F R —%F

=H=+—H =A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

0 — 30 days TE=+H 39,931 27,362
31— 60 days =+—H=<1+H 4,621 6,378
61 — 90 days AT—BERLTA 3,658 2,288
91 - 365 days N+—BZE=\/,"THAH 2,799 1,296
Over 365 days HE=a/x1ThH 77 825
51,086 38,149

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
provision for loss allowance which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. Details on the calculation of loss
allowance is set out in Note 3.1(d). The creation and release of loss
allowance of trade receivables have been included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement. Amounts charged
to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no
expectation of recovering additional cash. The Directors are of the
opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible trade receivables
has been made in the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate
their fair values due to their short maturities.
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13 Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments
and Deposits (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables are

13

2

LR EMERIRE - B
MERZE (&)

REBRE X R A EWERIE 2 BREE

denominated in the following currencies: RIATEBEHE
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
R-Z2Z-ZF R-B_-—%F
=A=+-—H =A=+—H”
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ BT 158,496 63,772
RMB AR 41,043 38,757
Others Hity 1" 10
199,550 102,539

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current deposits are

AEENRBZENREAERATER

denominated in the following currencies: FTE -
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
R=F|-—fF R-B——%F
=A=t+—8H =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ BIT 152 161
RMB AREE 1,386 2,069
1,538 2,230

RRESE
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2

14 Bank Deposits with Maturity Over Three 14 EB={EAZHBENRTHE
Months and Cash and Cash Equivalents NRRERAEEEER
(@) Bank deposits with maturity over three (a) BB=18A8Z2/8BMWRITEXR
months
As at 31 March 2021, bank deposits with maturity over three RZZBEZ—F=HA=+—H HBiB=@
months bore average interest rate of 0.05% per annum. ARHBMNRITERNFHEFINER
0.05% -°
Bank deposits with maturity over three months are denominated in HB=E AN BB RITERATIE
the following currencies: HEtHE -
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
R-B-ZF R-ZE—_—%
=A=+—8H =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
US dollar ETT - 19,373
Canadian dollar mEXIT - 1,849
- 21,222
(b) Cash and cash equivalents (b) RERRESEHEIEH
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
R-ZB-ZF R-B——%F
=A=+—8H =A=+—H”
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Cash at banks and on hand RITAFHRE 346,514 569,416
Short-term bank deposits RHISRTTIER 1,239,072 1,503,096
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEER 1,585,586 2,072,512

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 0.6%
(2021: 1.0%) per annum. As at 31 March 2022, these deposits have
an average maturity of 65 days (2021: 57 days).
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(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Bank Deposits with Maturity Over Three 14
Months and Cash and Cash Equivalents
(Continued)

2

HBiA =18 A 2H B ER1THF
MEHRERRELZEER
(#&)

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued) (b) RERIRESZFEIER (B)
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following RekBReEEEBUATINEEE :
currencies:
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
R-EB-_F R —%F
=H=+—H =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FEIT
HK$ BT 1,437,874 1,873,166
RMB AREE 88,032 164,697
Macau pataca SBPITT 34,929 30,747
US dollar ETT 23,071 3,426
Canadian dollar mEexT 1,661 457
Others HAty 19 19
1,585,586 2,072,512

The Group’s cash and bank balances amounting to HK$83,191,000
(2021: HK$160,275,000) are denominated in RMB and were
deposited with banks in the Mainland China. The conversion of
these RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and
remittance of these deposits out of the Mainland China is subject to
the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by The People’s Republic of China (“PRC") government.

AEBUARKEFENR S RET
4 $283,191,0008 (=T = — F:
160,275,000 % 7T ) 17 B RS HR B A b 4R
1T BZREAARBTENERZBRA
HNEE R B H A B A BB TR EE A R4
ANE ([ AR E L) B A8 B0 SN B I 48
KA o

ARBEEFR AR 2021/22 Fif
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2

15 Retirement Benefit Assets/(Liabilities) and 15 EHKEE{HNEE (EB)R
Provision for Long Service Payments REORKEERE
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
R-ZB=—F RZZTZ—F
=ZH=t+—H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FrET FET
Retirement benefit assets/(liabilities) EBREwEIEE,/(BF)
Defined contribution scheme (Note a)  AE4tE 2| (Kizta) (12,309) (13,946)
Defined benefit scheme (Note b) AERAEE (f:Eb) 2,878 542
Provision for long service payments RAEIRB e B (M)
(Note ¢) (41,548) (30,629)
Defined contribution scheme (a) HAEMMETE

(a)

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The scheme is administered by
an independent trustee.

Under the MPF scheme, each of the Group and the eligible
employees makes monthly mandatory contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory
contributions by each party are subject to a maximum of HK$1,500
per month. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately upon the
completion of service in the relevant service period.

The Group also operates defined contribution schemes for its
employees in the Mainland China. The Group is required to make
contributions to the schemes at various applicable rates of monthly
salary that are in accordance with the local practice and regulations.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has defined contribution scheme
payable of HK$12,309,000 (2021: HK$13,946,000), which was
recorded in other creditors and accrued liabilities.
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AEBRE BRI LB BED A
REBERBIEROIRIZERAXZEZE
SRRt BIE B8 ([RESE
gll) - LAt EIRBUXFEATR °

RERESHE AEERESERRE
B8 R1REB AW (& Ria |
HEATEEFERD]) 2 5% AT EIHRK -
£ 77 1SR il MR EBR S E A 1,50078
TT ° akat &l 2 R ST A8 B BR 75 H A
Z BRA5 1% BERN GRS o

AEBE TR AT B A E B e it 7 E R
AHE| - AEEARE WIEH MARTE -
AR & RE M L R A& Fa 83

o
N

NR-ZBE-—F=A=+—0 ' ~X&=FH

FLTE 4 5ET 8 FE 1 50IE 12,309,000 4 7T
—T ——1% :13,946,000/87T) * E&t

AEMENRBERETERNA -
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(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Retirement Benefit Assets/(Liabilities)
and Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

Defined benefit scheme

The Group also operates a defined benefit scheme for its employees
in Hong Kong. The benefit entitlement under the scheme is
calculated based on the final salary of the staff and the length of
service with the Group. The scheme assets are held independently of
the Group's assets in separate trustee-administered funds.

The scheme is funded by contributions from the Group and the
employees in accordance with qualified independent actuary’s
recommendation from time to time on the basis of periodic
valuations.

Such defined benefit scheme obligation was valued by Mercer (Hong
Kong) Limited, an independent qualified actuary, using the projected
unit credit method.

15

(b)

2

RAEEANEE (BB R
REBRE < B %E (&)

REBAGTE

REBTN AT EREERHATEME
2l o ZErEIM B RBEENAS
BERsx&kE5e MERGFEHAE - 51
Bl BEEDEBUEAERESAZAR
SEEESHREE -

HErESImAKE RS REERBIUR
HEERNEREENRREZEZBTE
2 HRERET TR o

R ERAEETHBYLASERBE
Bttt (B8 ) BR A HRATETEAE
B AETmE-

The net assets/(liabilities) recognised in the consolidated statement of AV BIARRANER . FEE (&
financial position are determined as follows: B)ETIARERE :
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
HN=—s=——F NZB=——F
=B=+—8 =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAETT FET
Present value of funded obligations EEEMEZRE (61,382) (76,331)
Fair value of plan assets SEIEE 2 A FE 64,260 76,873
Net assets in the consolidated statement 4R&BIFAR N R A 2 i FEE
of financial position 2,878 542
Remeasurement on defined benefit B EREENEE
obligation excluding interest expense  (FIEFZERIN) 3,524 1,950
Remeasurement on return on plan assets &Z#zt 2 5tE1EE 2 B (2,337) 7,676

ARBEEFR AR 2021/22 Fif
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15 Retirement Benefit Assets/(Liabilities) 15 EHREEFNEE (EB)R

and Provision for Long Service Payments RERESBE (F&)
(Continued)
(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) AERAETE (&)
The movements in the defined benefit obligation are as follows: REBMNEBEENE ST -
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FHEIT
Beginning of the year FHEEER (76,331) (87,591)
Current service cost I IRFGEAR (1,427) (1,642)
Interest cost B (429) (487)
Employee contributions EEHR (427) (491)
Remeasurement on defined BT ERERAETE
benefit scheme 3,524 1,950
Benefits paid SRR 13,708 11,930
End of the year FREER (61,382) (76,331)
The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: FEIEENATFEEENT ¢
2022 2021
—E-CF —E—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Beginning of the year FANEEER 76,873 77,245
Interest income FLEHA 442 437
Employee contributions EEHK 427 491
Employer contributions EEHK 2,578 2,969
Administrative expenses HErBEEX N ZITHER
paid from plan assets (15) (15)
Remeasurement on return Bt ERTEIEE 2B
on plan assets (2,337) 7,676
Benefits paid BEEF (13,708) (11,930)
End of the year FERER 64,260 76,873
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Retirement Benefit Assets/(Liabilities) 15
and Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as

2

RAEEANEE (BB R
REBRE < B %E (&)

SERAMEE (&)

EHFREEaERABRAZSEWT

follows:

2022 2021
ot St T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current service cost IR B RS A 1,427 1,642
Interest cost BB 429 487
Interest income on plan assets STEIEEZ M EMA (442) (437)
Administrative expenses THER 15 15

Total, included in employee benefit ®E - ERETEERET
expenses (Note 29) A (fiFE29) 1,429 1,707

Of the total amount debited to the consolidated income statement,
approximately HK$724,000 (2021: HK$855,000) and HK$705,000
(2021: HK$852,000) have been included in cost of sales and
administrative expenses, respectively.

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Discount rate

BEIRK

EFFAGREBRBERNEEPCBREHE

RARITHER

2 Bl #1724,000 7% 7T

— T~ —4F : 855,000 7T ) K& 705,000
BT (ZZ=——4% : 852,000 7T) °

FRF 2 X BB BRI -

Expected rate of future salary increases RN 2 TEHAME & =R

2022 2021
—ECHF T4
H51.8% p.a. HF0.6% p.a.
F%3.0% p.a. FF4.0%p.a.

The remeasurement of defined benefit obligation recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income was a gain of
HK$1,187,000 (2021: HK$9,626,000).

EEFEAEARARKRERNATEFNE
EzEFEAWZ1,187,0008 T (=
T = —4F 1 9,626,0007T) o
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2

Retirement Benefit Assets/(Liabilities) 15 RAEENEE (BB)K
and Provision for Long Service Payments RERESBE (F&)
(Continued)
Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) REBRETE(E)
The cumulative remeasurement of defined benefit obligation EFRa2ERARKERNAERMNE
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income T2z BT ENFTE RE1E22,733,0008
was a loss of HK$22,733,000 (2021: HK$23,920,000). JTT(=ZF=—4 :23,920,000/87T) °
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan FEFHEERREATEEERNL
assets are as follows: LU
2022 2021
—EC-CHF —E-—F
Equity instruments fxtET A 32.9% 28.0%
Debt instruments EET A 56.3% 61.7%
Other assets Hih&EE 10.8% 10.3%
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation (“DBO”) to changes REBNBETHRBRRESNERER :
in the assumption is:
Impact on DBO
HAEEANEENTE
Changes in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
Assumption BRE& REE 2 B BRI N RERD
Discount rate AhIR R 0.5%  Decreased by Increased by
WP 1.7% HIN1.7%
Salary increase rate g = = 0.5% Increased by~ Decreased by

EIN1.7% WA 1.6%

Expected contributions to the defined benefit scheme by the
Group for the year ending 31 March 2022 are approximately
HK$2,505,000.
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2

Retirement Benefit Assets/(Liabilities) 15 RAEENEE (BB)K
and Provision for Long Service Payments RERESBE (F&)
(Continued)
Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) REBRETE(E)
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is REBMNEBEENIETIIFERIAE -
3.4 years.
Expected maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation in the next R-EZ_F=A=+—HBHREEA
ten years on 31 March 2022: BERARRTFOTERZEAB 547
Less than Between Between
a year 1-2 years 2-5 years Next 5 years
—F R —EWE —EHFE T—RAEFEH
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
FHT FHET FET FET
Defined benefit obligation REBNEE 7,010 14,368 23,713 16,528
Through its defined benefit obligations, the Group is exposed to a AEEFARATRERANEAERZIER
number of risks. The defined benefit scheme offers a defined benefit bz - REBAGT IR —BR TR E R
depending on members’ length of service and their salary at the time 765 5F B Re 150 S5 1A B B B ) 365 BM 1 7 A 5
of leaving the firm. Active members contribute 2.5% of their salary FEABH o JERK BIRREH A 2.5% [A]
to the scheme, while the Group bears the remainder cost of funding FTEIHEFR - AR B RESEZE 2R
the scheme. The scheme exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as BHREBA - ZFrEIEASBHEBRINER
interest rate risk, salary risk, and investment risk. b~ FrENEFR MK E R ERE R o
Provision for long service payments (0 RERBTEE

The Group provides long service payments for its employees in
respect of long service payments on cessation of employment in
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.

Such provision for long service payment obligation was valued by
Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent qualified actuary, using
the projected unit credit method.

AEBERBEBRBIRNES THERT
RIFBAB T NRAREETET -

HERAREEBREREHBLSERE
Bt (F8) AR A RRA R ER
ERRPRETHE-
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15 Retirement Benefit Assets/(Liabilities)
and Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

(0 Provision for long service payments
(Continued)
The liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position is determined as follows:

15

(9

2

RAEEANEE (BB R
REBRE €584 (&)

KRR S8 1E (&)

EHEAEUBHRARAERZBEWT

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

R=BZZF R —%F

=A=+—H =A=+—H

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Liability in the consolidated statement  4AFEIRREAN Z B1E

of financial position (41,548) (30,629)
Remeasurement on plan liabilities STEIBEENE (14,694) 15,261

Movements in the liability recognised in the consolidated statement

EHRAMBIRARAER 2 BEESM

of financial position are as follows: T
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Beginning of the year FHNEER (30,629) (48,778)
Current service cost IR B RS A4 (2,530) (2,788)
Interest cost FILEA A (326) (282)
Remeasurement of provision RERGeBE 2 ENT=E
of long service payments (14,694) 15,261
Benefits paid [SERE 6,631 5,958
End of the year FERER (41,548) (30,629)
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15 Retirement Benefit Assets/(Liabilities) 15
and Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

Provision for long service payments (¢

(0

(Continued)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as

B8
=

2

RAEEANEE (BB R
REBRE < B %E (&)

REIRBEE (&B)

EHRAERRER BT

follows:

2022 2021
g T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Current service cost IR B AR A 2,530 2,788
Interest cost F B RS 326 282

Total, included in employee benefit RE - EeREEEEENFAXA
expenses (Note 29) (FfF5E29) 2,856 3,070

Of the total charge, HK$2,856,000 (2021: HK$3,070,000) have
been included in administrative expenses.

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

REIK
R AR R

Discount rate
Expected rate of future salary increases

48 % H A - 2,856,000 T( & = —
£ : 3,070,000/ 7C) BIEEITHERNA -

FRF 2 EEBE BRI -

2022 2021
—2-CF —T=—F
HF%2.0% p.a. HF1.1% p.a.
8%3.0% p.a. BF4.0% p.a.

The remeasurement of provision of long service payments recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income was a loss
of HK$14,694,000 (2021: a gain of HK$15,261,000).

The cumulative remeasurement of provision of long service payments
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
was a loss of HK$47,607,000 (2021: HK$32,913,000).

ERA 2 ERARR AERHNRERE
SEE 2 EFT=E AEE14,694,00075
T(ZZE=—F : I#515,261,00087T) ©

ERA 2 ERARR AERHN KRR
S BHE 2 Bt EHT= AE1847,607,000
BT (ZZF=—4 1 32,913,000/87T) °
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15 Retirement Benefit Assets/(Liabilities)
and Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

(0 Provision for long service payments
(Continued)
Expected contributions to the long service payment obligation by
the Group for the year ending 31 March 2022 after the offset the
accrued MPF account balance is approximately HK$2,454,000.

The sensitivity of provision for long service payments to changes in
the assumption is:

Assumption Rk
Discount rate BT ==
Salary increase rate iR =

15 RASTFANEE (BB K
REBRE €584 (&)

(0 RARBEEE(E)

RIESHEFAESIRFE®RE - AEE
REBE-_T_—_F=ZA=+—HILtFE
BB T2 RERG S EEERL
452,454,000 87T °

REIRT @ BEEREE e gt
=3

Impact on provision for long service payments

HREBRBEBRENTE

Changes in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
R 2 B EEE BRI
0.5% Decreased by Increased by

B 13.0% EIN15.2%

0.5% Increased by ~ Decreased by

HA05.9% B 6.8%

The weighted average duration of the long service payment
obligation is 6.4 years.
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15 Retirement Benefit Assets/(Liabilities) 15

(0

2

RAEEANEE (BB R

and Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

Provision for long service payments
(Continued)

Expected maturity analysis of long service payment obligation in the
next ten years on 31 March 2022:

Less than
a year
—F LR
HK$000
FET

Long service payment RERGEEE
obligation 2,454

REBRE < B %E (&)

(0 RARBEEE(E)

R-ZEZ—_F=A=+—H2RHR%
SEERAR+F BRI B ST

Between Between

1-2 years 2-5 years Next 5 years

—EmMF —ERF T—ERFH

HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
5,564 11,769 15,078

The long service payment obligation arises as per Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance to the extent that the long service payment
obligation exceeds the employer balance in the Hong Kong
mandatory defined contribution plan. It exposes the Group to
actuarial risks such as interest rate risk, salary risk and the investment
risk of the Company's MPF scheme’s constituent funds.

REFE(EEGD)  HEHREEE
FHAFERMEREHFFEZEE
wer o AIEARMBRBEEE - AKHE
AR AZMEER - HFEEBRRAR
AlREEi ks EeRERRERE
e
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16 Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is

a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against tax

liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same

16 EILEFHIE

EABERBANITREN A SRR IRE
EEFIAAEEREE  RMEERAY
KFA—H e AREHREENE

fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate EENP] EAEKEE - SR E ISR NER
offsetting, are shown on the consolidated statement of financial THRBE(SELHEEHEIEEES) W
position: I
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
R-B-ZF R=—F—_—%F
=A=+—8H =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred income tax assets to be 1R 12 {8 A 1 1 Bl FY IR AT
recovered after 12 months MIBEE 67,714 70,733
Deferred income tax liabilities to be 148 12 18 B 1& BT AR T
settled after 12 months MIEBE (36,225) (33,424)
31,489 37,309

Movements in net deferred income tax assets are as follows:

FRERAEE 2 ZEIT ¢

2022 2021

—E-—fF —E-—%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FETL

Beginning of the year FANEER 37,309 36,884
Deferred taxation (debited)/credited A BERER GEA) fk 2z

to the consolidated income RIERTE (K7 26)

statement (Note 26) (5,619) 588

Exchange differences IE 5 =%E (201) (163)

End of the year FREEER 31,489 37,309
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16 Deferred Income Tax (Continued) 16 EERIE (&)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities of the AEB s FRNEEREBEEERGGE
Group (prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation B) (R — BT AVE R 2 AR EEAT)
jurisdiction) during the year are as follows: LU
Deferred income tax assets: BEEBIEEE !
Decelerated Lease liabilities,
tax depreciation Tax losses provision and others Total
WERBITE Big HESE BEREM okl
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

—EB-—f C—T--& C"B-"& —ZT--—F CZEB-ZHE —E-—F ZEB-CHE —E-—F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

FET FHET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Beginning of the year  F 44 % 14,835 9,617 66,245 34,565 97,101 444,623 178,181 488,805
Credited/(charged) to &z & BREA
the consolidated i YAGIN)
income statement 4,460 5218 (1,375) 31,680 (16,642) (353,001) (13,557) (316,103)
Exchange differences 15 =% - - - - 1,156 5,479 1,156 5,479
End of the year FREHR 19,295 14,835 64,870 66,245 81,615 97,101 165,780 178,181
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16 Deferred Income Tax (Continued) 16 EERIE (&)
Deferred income tax liabilities: EIERIEEE -

Accelerated

tax depreciation Provision Right-of-use assets Total
IEBRSE B ERREE L
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

—EB- - C—T--&F C—B-"E —E-—F ZEB-CHE —T-—F ZEB-CE —E-—F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000

FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET

Beginning of the year  F#& % 65,379 66,058 685 - 74,808 385,863 140,872 451,921
(Credited)/charged to ~ ZE4RA BEmEN

the consolidated CIEIVEIPN

income statement 8,085 (679) (677) 685 (15,346) (316,697) (7,938) (316,691)
Exchange differences [ 5 =% - - - - 1,357 5,642 1,357 5,642
End of the year FREHR 73,464 65,379 8 685 60,819 74,808 134,291 140,872
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carrying BEEFIRE E T ARMEBH S = S
forwards to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefits 38 R JR FE SR B i ) 2 35 i gk BT A 88 2 At
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 March TE' EER - RZE_—_F=A=+—
2022, the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets - NEEEITEFLETEAY 1,035,352,000
in respect of losses of approximately HK$1,035,352,000 (2021: /’%TE( —ZT = —1% :826,370,000/ L)
HK$826,370,000). Unrecognised tax losses amounting to TR E B8 & E - 49208,512,000
approximately HK$208,512,000 (2021: HK$205,568,000) and oL = F = — 4 : 205,568,000 %
HK$78,930,000 (2021: HK$49,280,000) will be expired up to year %) % 78,930,000 T ( = T = — 4
2037 and 2026 respectively, while the remaining balance can be 49,280,000 % 7T ) AR HER BB & 5 BIR
carried forward indefinitely. TE=AEFRIZTORFER B TE

R SRR HA A

Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$11,834,000 (2021: NN B A B A A BB A B AT R Y
HK$11,478,000) have not been recognised for withholding tax that —EENF—A—HEERASERE &
would be payable on the undistributed retained profits amounting A 2196,931,0008 T ( = F = — F :
to HK$196,931,000 (2021: HK$193,342,000) of the Company’s 193,342,000/ 7T ) ET A TEHE - I
subsidiaries in Mainland China earned after 1 January 2008. Such RAMER11,834,0008 T(ZF = —F:
amounts are not intended to be distributed in the foreseeable future 11,478,000 L) WIELEH IEEBE - B
to the group companies outside of the Mainland China. e T BN A B8R D B4 5 B A
eI DESE NG
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17 Trade Payables

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

17

2

LREMNERE

EEENRBENRE D

Hranr -

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

N-—ZB—— R —F

=HA=+—H =A=+—H

HK$000 HK$°000

FET T

0 - 30 days TE=1H 162,153 174,377
31 - 60 days =+—=~+H 2,686 2,641
61 — 90 days ANT—ZATH 501 816
Over 90 days HBiE A 2,068 349
167,408 178,183

The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in the

EERMNBRENREENR NIEE

following currencies: =R
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
R-B-ZfF R-F_—%F
=A=t—H =A=+—H”
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FEIT
HK$ BIT 112,311 136,863
RMB AR 55,097 41,320
167,408 178,183
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their fair values HREFHREE - €XEMNERENR

due to their short maturities.

EENHERERFE -
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18 Other Creditors and Accrued Liabilities 18 HMENRERETER
Other creditors and accrued liabilities mainly comprise accrued HiENERIEREABRAFZOEREST
salaries and wages and other provisions. Substantially all of the other Fe - IERHMEE HEMEMNEKIE
creditors and accrued liabilities are denominated in HK$ and RMB. NERT & A AT 2B TR AR

& o
19 Bank Borrowings 19 |ITERK
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
i et RZZTZ—F
=HA=+-—H” = H=—E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Non-current FERED
Long-term bank borrowings RERITER 999,690 1,099,433
Less: Current portion included B ETAREN A E 2 BNARER
in current liabilities (100,000) (100,000)
899,690 999,433
Current B
Short-term bank borrowings HHISRITE R 80,000 80,000
At 31 March 2022, the Group’s bank borrowings were repayable as R-ZE-_—_F=—A=+—8 K&£EEE
follows: BB ZIRITERAT :
As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
R-E-—F RZZTZ—F

=A=+—H =A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FET FET

Within 1 year 156R 180,000 180,000
Between 1 and 2 years 1E2FA 899,690 100,000
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5FNRA - 899,433
1,079,690 1,179,433
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Bank Borrowings (Continued)

The Group’s bank borrowings are secured by the corporate
guarantees provided by the Company. In addition, the Group
is required to comply with certain restrictive financial covenants
imposed by the banks.

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate their fair
values.

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group's bank borrowings
by type and currency is as follows:

HK$ at floating rates BIT 0 IZ BRI

19

2

RITER (&)
ARE Y RITERMAD ARG AT

ERERER - Lo AEBAETIR
TTHEANZ 5 T B R PR I 24D

RITERZREERE A TERS -

BREREE DR AEERITENEK
EEZAHWT :

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
R=Z==fF R
=A=+—8 =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
1,079,690 1,179,433

As at 31 March 2022, the effective interest rate of the bank
borrowings was 1.2% per annum (2021: 1.0% per annum).

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had total banking facilities
amounting to HK$2,129,937,000 (2021: HK$2,219,564,000) of
which HK$1,230,484,000 were utilised (2021: HK$1,331,235,000).
As at 31 March 2022, the Group had available unutilised banking
facilities of HK$899,453,000 (2021: HK$888,329,000).

N-ZBE-—F=A=+—8 178X
CEBENERI2%(ZBE-—%F: F
£1.0%) °

R-EBE-_—F=A=+—H A&£H
ZIRITIEE R REE2,129,937,000 % 7T
— T~ —%£:2,219,564,000/% T ) °
H /1,230,484,0008 (= = —F :
1,331,235,0008 ) EEBH - RZ=Z
——H=RA=+t—H A&EEAAEFMA
ZR1T1EE%/5899,453,0008 L (=&
——% : 888,329,000/ 7T) °
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20 Share Capital 20 B
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
Number Nominal Number Nominal
of share value of share value
RHEAE E{E IR EE [Eif(=]
‘000 HK$000 ‘000 HK$'000
FiR FET FIE FET
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of AR A E (A
HK$0.10 each 0.10%7T
Beginning and end FHEE RS
of the year 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAE
Beginning and end FH R RAEER
of the year 585,704 58,570 585,704 58,570

During the year, no shares were issued pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme of the Company.

During the year, the Group purchased 1,597,731 (2021: 1,542,055)
of its own shares through the trustee of the Share Award Scheme
from the open market. The total amount paid to acquire these
shares was approximately HK$25,581,000 (2021: HK$25,480,000)
and has been deducted from shareholders’ equity. As at 31 March
2022, such shares were recorded as treasury shares of the Company
and the Group as they were not yet vested.
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21 Reserves 21 f#fE
Shares
Share held for
Capital  Exchange based share  Statutory
Share  Redemption translation Capital  Investment compensation award reserve  Contributed  Revaluation  Retained
premium reserve reserve Reserve reserve reserve scheme (notei) surplus reserve earnings Total
08 bl WRARE  ROREHE EERE
Rty HEgE &R EhGE RERE  KHERE  &ERB (Bizk) LEE e REEA ]
HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FEr Fir Fiér 7 7T 7T & & & FEr FEr 7Er
Asat 1 April 2021 R-F--FMA-A 621,122 152,034 48,624 21,019 (3432) 36,140 (140,944) 33,087 80,69 140,224 1981637 2,970,267
Fair value loss on financil BRATEIARS2E
asetsatfarvaluethough A ZEBERH
other comprehensiveincome ~ AFERE - - - - (1,020) - - - - - - (1,020)
Remeasurement of retiement B ERINEEAER
benefitlabities and provision R A&
forlong senvice payments - - - - - - - - - - (13,507) (13,507)
Tansfer tostatutory reserves ~~ ERZEEHE - - - - - - - 137 - - (1.31) -
Employee share award EaRA%R
scheme - value of employee 512~ BEHEEE
services - - - - - 10482 - - - - - 10482
Vesting of shares of share
award scheme RiEEEORAGE - - - - - (22941 35,586 - - - (12,645) -
Bchange diferences arisng~—~ EESIIERTZ
from translation of foreign EizE
subsidiaries - - 18991 - - - - - - - - 18991
Proftattibutable toequity  ARFRIESEAEEET
holders of the Company - - - - - - - - - - 1,214 21,214
Purchase of shares BARMR - - - - - - (25,581) - - - - (25,581)
Dividends & - - - - - - - - - - (220,675) (220,675)
Balanceasat31 March 2022 H=%==
ZR=T-RkH 621,122 152,034 67,615 1,019 (4452) 23,681 (130,939) 3434 80,69 140,224 1754787 2,760,111
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21 Reserves (Continued) 21 #E (&)
Shares
Share held for
Captal Exchange based share Statutory
Share  Redemption  translation Capital ~ Investment ~ compensation award reseve  Contributed  Revaluation Retained
premium eserve eserve Reserve reserve Teserve scheme (notei) surplus reserve eamings Total
EA bl resenve esene  WRBRN  HREE EERR
Riv& kL TERR BhGR RERE SRR R (Bizk) Ll {hERR R )
HKS000 HKS 000 8000 HS000 HS000 HS000 8000 5000 3000 5000 H$000 HS000
FAT 7AT FAT FAT FAT b3 b3 b8 i3 ¥7:8 7T 7ET
Asat 1 April 2020 WZEZTEMA-A 621122 152,034 16,375 2,019 650 26,304 (146,021) 31,158 80,69 140,24 1,664,542 2,608,163
Fair value loss on financial RATERINES
aselsatfarvaluethough — 2ERAZEREE
other comprehensiveincome  MATERE - - - - (4,082) - - - - - - (2,082)
Remeasurement of retiement B ERINEEAER
benefit abilties and provision R ERES R - - - - - - - - - - 24,887 24,887
forlong senvice payments
Tansfer tostatutory reserves ~~ ERZEEHE - - - - - - - 1929 - - (1,929 -
Employee share award [EBRI RT3
scheme - value of employee - EEHREEE
Services - - - - - 313 - - - - - 313
Vesting of shares of share Riga:EnRhER
award scheme - - - - - (23,287) 30,557 - - - (1.210) -
Bchange diferences arisng~—~ EEIIEAR
fiom translation of foreign LEREE
subsidiaries - - 32,249 - - - - - - - - 32,49
Proftattrbutable toequity  ARFREREA
holders of the Company el - - - - - - - - - - 359,130 359,130
Purchase of shares BARMR - - - - - - (25,480) - - - - (25,480)
Dividends & - - - - - - - - - - (57.73) (57.733)
Balance asat 31 March 2021 A=F-——%
“A=t-REH 621122 152,034 48624 2,079 (343) 36,140 (140944) 3,087 80,69 140,24 1981,637 2,970,267
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21 Reserves (Continued) 21 #E (&)

() Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, Mainland China iy HREFPRB@EZEERBRL  F
companies are required to allocate 10% of the companies’ Wi R RIZEG R RNF RN Z 10%
net profit to the fund until such fund reaches 50% of the NREZFEES  BEE%FEHES
companies’ registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can EYAAFMERZ50% B1E -
be utilised, upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset EERESKEBE R ERT
against accumulated losses or to increase registered capital AREERTEBIIEMARZ
of the companies, provided that such fund is maintained at a AMER - zREEeRERSE
minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered capital. BRAREMERZ 25% KF ©

22 Revenue 22 A
2022 2021
—E__F —E-—F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET

Sales of food and beverages HERY M S 7,409,202 6,627,557

Rental income HAUA 42,318 38,341

Management and service fee income B2 K ARG E WA 5,385 5,400

Sundry income IR A 51,848 42,957

7,508,753 6,714,255
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23 Other Income and Other (Losses)/Gains, 23 HMWAREMZT(EE)
Net s Al
2022 2021
—ZE__ —E-—F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Dividend income from listed LERERERSWA
equity investments 6,123 3,572
Fair value loss on investment HEMFEN N EESE (HEE7)
properties (Note 7) (27,900) (42,900)
Loss on disposal of other property, HEEMYIZE - BE K& EBFEE
plant and equipment, net (11,374) (12,840)
Impairment loss of property, Mz - BE KRB REEE
plant and equipment (Note 6) (FfFzE6) (19,332) (2,705)
Impairment loss of right-of-use EAEEE 2 RERERE (Mi56)
assets (Note 6) (35,581) (23,680)
Government subsidies (Note a) BT EBh (KisEa) 130,360 638,868
Others HAh - 696
42,296 561,011

These primarily represented government subsidies in relation

to the COVID-19 pandemic which included subsidies
of HK$127,810,000 (2021: HK$622,738,000 including
HK$486,767,000 granted under the Employment Support
Scheme) granted under the Anti-Epidemic Fund of the

Government of the Hong
Region.
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e B ISR R Y R

Expenses by Nature 24 BRUMBESENER
Expenses included in cost of sales and administrative expenses are BREEHERKARITHRERNER ST
analysed as follows: U
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of raw materials and packing JEM R R BEARAR (FIFE12)

(Note 12) 2,252,217 2,008,142
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) #E 7 & & #4 (3£ 8) 38 194
Depreciation expenses (Note 6) TERX (MisEe6)

— property, plant and equipment - - BEREE 362,188 351,182
— leasehold land and land use rights - D REERAEEENEE T

classified as right-of-use assets Ko £ b {5 FA#E 14,853 14,252
— right-of-use assets — properties - EREEE - % 733,039 733,714
Expenses relating to leases of BHELTIEEEENFRX
— short-term leases - GHAEE 31,487 33,043
— variable lease payments not included - FJEfENK - TAEEHREEE

lease liabilities 50,435 36,349
Gain on modification and termination ~ FAEZ &) K42 & F

of leases (17,758) (32,228)
Exchange losses, net PE 5 R 58 877 1,976
Employee benefit expenses B B @A (TeIERHD

(excluding share-based compensation S f#&) (Ffz£29)

expenses) (Note 29) 2,552,767 2,332,973
Share-based compensation expenses VAR 17 = A< Bl (Bt 5% 29)

(Note 29) 10,482 33,123
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEaB 2
— audit services — ZE RS 3,438 3,438
— non-audit services - B AR 579 531
Electricity, water and gas BE  KEBRERE 369,034 316,237
Advertising HEE S 88,785 88,639
Reversal of loss allowance on i 2 e W AR 18 2 85 [0l s B s

trade receivables (Note 13) (FFsE13) (744) (52)
Sanitation BRE 122,397 120,973
Repairs & maintenance HIERIRES 125,977 97,322
Building management fee, BFERE  =AREM

air conditioning and rates 206,181 183,889
Delivery expense EHE 75,048 61,215
Insurance [PE= 48,020 49,839
Other expenses Hfh & A 390,535 366,935

7,419,875 6,801,686
Representing: Rk
Cost of sales SHERK A 6,961,032 6,339,067
Administrative expenses 1THE 458,843 462,619
7,419,875 6,801,686
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25 Finance Income and Finance Costs

25 IR B ISR

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Finance income TSI A 7,659 8,125
Finance cost of lease liabilities HEB GNP (76,846) (84,869)
Finance cost on bank borrowings RITERA ISR A (11,198) (6,290)
Finance costs B FE R AN (88,044) (91,159)
Finance costs, net EURL e DN (80,385) (83,034)

26 Income Tax Expense 26 FBEBIEA

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until year
2035. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate
of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation

ARRRBRERREHRE—_F=H
F o BENESHDRREA G ER
B om Fl KB E165% (=T = — &
16.5% ) IR EEM o BINE N 2 TR AR
RENMBTERTUR TR AEBL S
BRRZRITREFE -

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income

statement represents:

RiFEBRERANFTAZHARRE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current income tax: BNEATHIR -
- Hong Kong profits tax - BAFEH 20,027 24,643
— PRC taxation — FR B R B T 8,606 13,803
Deferred income tax relating to the A R E A R
origination and reversal of B M EIRIER TR
temporary differences 5,619 (588)
Over-provision in prior years BEFERERE (6,313) (7,862)
27,939 29,996
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Income Tax Expense (Continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong
Kong as follows:

26 FIEBEA (8

AEBEBRRTADEN < 58 B RE K
REBZREMAREZEWRBLIER
s

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Profit before income tax B AR B Al 50,789 390,546
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%  1&ZFE 16.5% (ZF=—%F : 16.5%)
(2021: 16.5%) STEOHIA 8,380 64,440
Effect of different taxation rates H At DRI R 2 528
in other territories (280) 5,053
Income not subject to taxation AT WA (37.618) (115,125)
Expenses not deductible for NGB b k=2
taxation purposes 19,814 20,332
(Recognition of previously unrecognised)/ (FE:RFATARIERR) /85 0] 2 FiI 15 772
reversal of previously recognised ZERER
temporary difference (262) 1,846
Tax losses not recognised RIERZ B 44,479 61,408
Over-provision in prior years BEFERERE (6,313) (7,862)
Others Hith (261) (96)
Taxation charge MBS 27,939 29,996
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27 Dividends 27 RE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$000
FHT FHIT
Interim dividend, paid, of HK10 cents BIRFPEIRR B« BRE BN 107811l
(2021: HK10 cents) —T——4F 108L)
per ordinary share 58,570 58,570
Final dividend, proposed, of HK18 cents ZiEAHIMEE « FFIE R 18751
(2021: HK28 cents) —T 4 2878)
per ordinary share 105,427 163,997
163,997 222,567
A final dividend of HK18 cents (FY2020/21: HK28 cents) per ordinary EEBREE TS -_—_F=A=+—HIt
share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2022 was proposed. FRRERAREGRE AR 18EL
Such final dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders at the (Z2ZT /Z—FF : 288l) - &K
upcoming annual general meeting. These financial statements do HREAGFRRNEERREFAG L
not reflect this dividend payable. & FAMEE - 25 BHmRIER
BRI S o
28 Earnings Per Share 28 BREF
(a) Basic (@) EXRK

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year excluding
ordinary shares purchased by the Company for share award scheme.

FRERGNRAR A RERB AR
EEMBRAFARHTEER (TRIER
RELA D REET BB E 2 B R Z b0
REFHE EREREE -

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-_—F
Profit attributable to equity holders NN RIRIEREE A& 5 A
of the Company (HK$'000) (F%&m1) 21,214 359,130
Weighted average number BTSRRI 8
of ordinary shares in issue ("000) (FEML) 579,070 579,551
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share) &REERGEF (FET) HK$0.04 % T HK$0.62 87T
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28 Earnings Per Share (Continued)

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year (excluding

the ordinary shares purchased by the Company under the share

award scheme) with the weighted average number of ordinary

shares deemed to be issued assuming the dilutive impact on the

share options and shares under the share award scheme.

28

(b)

2

Fhomr (%)

s
BREEENDIRBEESTRITZE
BRI FHRBFEANE BT EBK
(TEEANRRRERD ZEEEIB DA
BB 2 PO BIEL AR MEAE -
2 RER A B R i {n 2R R At 8RRk
N REEERE -

2022 2021
—E__F - —F
Profit attributable to equity holders A RIRIERE A AFE(R 5 A
of the Company (HK$'000) (FH%&T) 21,214 359,130
Weighted average number BT TR 2 IR 2
of ordinary shares in issue (‘000) (FE4) 579,070 579,551
Adjustment for share award i B2t &l A&
scheme (‘000) (FEf) 1,206 2,138
580,276 581,689
Diluted earnings per share BRRHE  A)
(HK$ per share) (BBBIT) HK$0.04 38 7T HK$0.62 77T
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29 Employee Benefit Expenses 29

Employee benefit expenses during the year are as follows:

2

BEEANMAX

FANRERNFESIT

2022 2021
=g== -
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Wages, salaries and allowances T& - &% KoERh 2,355,096 2,128,214
Discretionary bonuses FEREIETEAL 100,559 112,403
Pension costs BERAR A
— Defined contribution plans - ATHAEE 92,827 87,579
— Defined benefit plan (Note 15) - ATRAEE (HE15) 1,429 1,707
— Long service payments (Note 15) - RHBRS & (BIFE15) 2,856 3,070
Employee benefit expenses EERAFx<
(excluding share-based (TBEIEUARD X HEE)
compensation expenses) 2,552,767 2,332,973
Share-based compensation expenses LARR (9 32 A5 Bl <2 10,482 33,123
Employee benefit expenses EERAMXZ 2,563,249 2,366,096
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(a)

30 Benefits and Interests of Directors 30
(Disclosures Required by Section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules)

Directors’ emoluments (a)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 March
2022 is set out below:
Salaries, Employer's
allowances contribution
and benefits to pension
inkind  Discretionary scheme
Fees ¥4 ZER bonuses  EEMEAE
Name of director ESfg ik B FERRA HE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
77 77 77 77
Non-executive diectors #5772 Z
MrloHoi Kwong, Sunny ~ ERiEE 1,180 - - -
Chairman E74
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita BERLL 300 - - -
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael Rift %% 300 - - -
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel ~ 3FRER & 300 - - -
Independent non-executie  BUHHTEZE
diectors
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael ~ ZEi% & 400 - - -
MrLiKwok Sing, Aubrey ~ ZELERAE 400 - - -
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Lany &% 4 400 - - -
Mr Au Siu Cheung, Abert  ERFI%E 400 - - -
Executive dlrectors HiEE
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter EEath 50 4810 m 18
Chief Executive Officer BRHE
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan BrARE 50 2,161 679 18

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

2

EENNENERS (KBEE
(1 B&RAI) (55622 F) 5 383
R (QA(RBEESMNRE
#RAN (6226 E) REHE

FHRAIFEER)
EEME
BE-_ZT-_F=-A=1+—HIEFEN
SEEMEHINMT ¢
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect of
director's
other services
in connection
with the
management
of the
affairs of the
Company or
its subsidiary
Share-based  undertaking
compensation HBES
benefits ~ REEALT
(Note) ~ BEMBLE
RGN SEmRft
Sub-total HeRR HtmBExfs Total
gt () SEkzHe 4%
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000
FAT FAT FET FET
1,180 - - 1,180
300 - - 300
300 - - 300
300 - - 300
400 - - 400
400 - - 400
400 - - 400
400 - - 400
5,090 869 - 5,959
2,908 310 - 3218
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30 Benefits and Interests of Directors 30 EENFAZNER (KEBEEE

(Disclosures Required by Section 383 of (A BB (%6 622 &) 55 383
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance R (AR(RBESNEE
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of FHRAN(FE6226E) REE
Information about Benefits of Directors) EFHRAEEK) (&)

Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) ESM= (&)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 March BHE_ZT - —F=A=+—HBILFEN
2021 is set out below: BEEMEEHNT
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect of
director's
other services
in connection
with the
management
of the
affairs of the
Company or
its subsidiary
Share-based undertaking
Salaries, Employer's compensation hEEZ
allowances contribution benefits  FLERALH
and benefits 0 pension (Note)  BEMELF
inkind ~ Discretionary scheme WROZAE  SEmRl
Fees  Hg2HR bonuses  EXEIRINS Sub-total Hemr EtRBELf Total
Name of director 3z ik BRY  ERRA HE i Gt (sE)  sebeBe %

HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET TR TET

Nor-executive diectors FiliEE
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny ERtE 1,180 - - - 1,180 - - 1,180
Chairman E
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita BEEnt 300 - - - 300 - - 300
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael Bt &4 300 - = - 300 - = 300
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel SRR 300 - - - 300 - - 300
Independent non-executie  EUHETEZE
diectors
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael BEREL 400 = = = 400 = = 400
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey ZEERE 400 - - - 400 - - 400
MrKwok Lam Kwong, Lary — SiER4 400 - - - 400 - - 400
Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert BRAEE 400 - - - 400 - - 400
Erecutive directors HiTEZE
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter BEadh 50 4,800 2919 18 7,787 1,053 - 8,840
Chief Executive Officer BEHITE
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan BRALE 50 2,160 1,080 18 3308 376 - 3,084
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30

(a)

(b)

(@]

(d)

(e)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR R

Benefits and Interests of Directors
(Disclosures Required by Section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
No director waived any emolument during the year.

Note:  The share-based compensation benefits represent the relevant expenses relating

to each of the directors apart from those relating to performance shares. Benefits
relating to the performance shares will be presented based on the market price of
the shares on the day of vesting.

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any directors in
respect of their other services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking (2021:
Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
No payment was made to directors as compensation for the early
termination of the appointment during the year (2021: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of directors for
making available the services of them as a director of the Company
(2021: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such directors during the year (2021: Nil).

30

(a)

(b)

(9

(d)

(e)

2

EENNENERS (KBEE
(1 B&RAI) (55622 F) 5 383
R (QA(RBEESMNRE
#RAN (6226 E) REHE
EHRAEEER) (&)

EEME (&)
FABREFHNEUIEMHE

M. MBROXSHMeENELAEEEERNA

X TREREERNEMNMS - HEA
B BRERNEMN MR EROREEBOHE

2751 »

ESRIREER
BEEMEEHEBRARASEAMBE L
EEBMm R 2 RSN SRR
ZERER/H(ZF—_—F : &)

EERRER
F LR SR AT AL R R E F X B

B (ZF=_—%F &)-

DENESHEBMEE=AX
HHRE
BLm AL E FEARD RE FRURBM
AZEFNAEEEHAR(ZE=—
) o

BRLES  Z5ESHNRE
TEKBEEEAEnAZE
Mo EERRHEMRSZ Z2EHR

FAMENES - ZFEFHIITLE
NAEERBAREAZER  BEERK
HiRH (ZF=—F 1 &) °
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(f)

(e))

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Benefits and Interests of Directors
(Disclosures Required by Section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2021: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include one (2021: one) director whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 30(a). The
emoluments payable to the remaining four (2021: four) individual
during the year are as follows:

30

(f)

(9)

2

EENNENERS (KBEE
(1 B&RAI) (55622 F) 5 383
R (QA(RBEESMNRE
#RAN (6226 E) REHE
EHRAEEER) (&)

EERNRS  ZHREHINE
RiEsm
REERE B R FREMESRE - HiE
AFRRAEFEADDSRAEBZE
AR5 RHFREOPEEXRBERE
EREARER (ZF=—F ) -

hEREFMAL
AEEAEBRALRDHHALRIE
12 (CB-—4 1 R)EF HMEE
HRHITE30() - HB4R(ZT—F -
4%8) NIRAFEEBZBSMT |

2022 2021
—=E2__ —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Basic salaries, gratuities and K& - A& R E 284
other allowances 15,627 14,450
Discretionary bonuses JEEFEIEAT 11,069 7,462
Contributions to pension schemes RSB 72 72
Share-based compensation expenses LARAD 5 B < 1,662 1,972
28,430 23,956
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30 Benefits and Interests of Directors 30
(Disclosures Required by Section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong

(e))

(h)

Listing Rules) (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (9

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000
HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000

3,500,001 # 7T % 4,000,000 7 7T
6,000,001 # 7T % 6,500,000 7 7T
6,500,001 # 7T % 7,000,000 7 7T
7,000,001 # 7T % 7,500,000 7 7T
7,500,001 # 7T % 8,000,000 7 7T
9,000,001 # 7T % 9,500,000 7% 7T

2

EENNENERS (KBEE
(1 B&RAI) (55622 F) 5 383
R (QA(RBEESMNRE
#RAN (6226 E) REHE
EHRAEEER) (&)

B EREHMAL ()
% 2 AR :

Number of individuals

A

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
1 1

- 1

- 1

1 1

1 _

1 _

No incentive payment for joining the Group or compensation for loss (h)
of office was paid or payable to any director or the five highest paid
individuals during the year.

Senior management’s emoluments by band (i)

The senior management’s emoluments (excluding directors) fell

within the following bands:

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000

3,000,001 77T % 3,500,000 77T
3,500,001 77T 2 4,000,000 78 7T
6,000,001 77T % 6,500,000 77T
6,500,001 77T 2 7,000,000 8 7T
7,000,001 #7C 2 7,500,000 /87T
7,500,001 77T = 8,000,000 78 7T

FAREMNESFHIAEZRSFMALE
KA REMER/MARNEE Z REE
SkBERR RIS -

SREEASHMEE
BREBAR (TREES) 2 HHEE
W -

Number of individuals
AE

2022 2021
g — B

|
[ NN
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31 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 31

(a)

2

SRERTREBRMHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

Cash Flows
Reconciliation of profit before income taxto (a) BBIAVRAELEEE 2 FR
net cash generated from operations SHER
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Profit before income tax BR B A Al 50,789 390,546
Adjustments for: HE
— Finance income - BrRsURA (7,659) (8,125)
— Finance cost of lease liabilities -HEaBEZHBKA 76,846 84,869
— Finance cost on bank borrowings — RITERZ B AR 11,198 6,290
— Depreciation of property, - BERREBITE 362,188 351,182
plant and equipment
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets - ERAEEEZTE 733,039 733,714
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets - (AEEE -HETHR
— leasehold land and land TR ITE
use rights 14,853 14,252
— Amortisation of intangible assets - B A EHH 38 194
— Fair value loss on investment -REWEZ A TEERE
properties 27,900 42,900
— Net loss on disposal of other - HEEAMYZE - B REE
property, plant and equipment 2 FEE 11,374 12,840
— Gain on modification and - HEFFHRKIE 2 WE
termination of leases (17,758) (32,228)
— Reversal of loss allowance on - EEEWARIE 2 O EE
trade receivables B 5 (744) (52)
— Share-based compensation expenses  — LARZ{D S A~ B & 10,482 33,123
— Dividend income from listed - LR ERSHA
investments (6,123) (3,572)
— Impairment loss of property, - M - BWEREREOREREE
plant and equipment 19,332 2,705
— Impairment loss of right-of-use assets - {# & E 2 BEETE 35,581 23,680
Operating profit before working MBNE & BB 2 E R
capital changes 1,321,336 1,652,318
Changes in working capital: MENESEE -
— Inventories -FE (68,618) 25,702
— Prepayments and deposits - T FE MRS (28,153) 24,201
— Trade and other receivables - &N H b R BRIE (96,267) 53,113
— Trade payables — EEREERIA (10,775) 6,022
— Other creditors and accrued liabilities — — b fE{~ BRI & fE =T & F 42,445 (34,822)
— Retirement benefit assets and - BRRSBHEER
provision for long service payments REBRS S E (4,924) (4,150)
Net cash generated from operations EEBEELAZFERES 1,155,044 1,722,384
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of

e SRR R

31

Cash Flows (Continued)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,

(b)

proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment comprise:

Net book amounts

Net loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment

FREDHE
HEME - BB KRB ZFER

2

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

HEWME - MERRBAEH

FERERERMETE(E)

FERERERANEEY
X BERZREBERERERE:

2022 2021

—EC-CF —E—F
HK$000 HK$'000

FETT FET

11,929 14,579

(11,374) (12,840)

555 1,739
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31 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 31 HSREeBRERERKE (&)

Cash Flows (Continued)

e
LFEERELTHELENEEY

() Reconciliation of liabilities arising from ()
financing activities for the year ended 31

March 2022 iR
Lease Bank

liabilities borrowings Total

HESE RITER et

HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET FET

As at 1 April 2020 R-ZE-_ZTFMA—H 2,600,064 - 2,600,064
Additions NE 359,524 - 359,524
Cash flows: REME -
— Proceeds from bank borrowings - RITERZ T - 1,179,254 1,179,254
— Payment of lease liabilities -YNHEEARE (801,979) - (801,979)
— Interest paid -BfFIE - (6,111) 6,111)
Finance cost BTSN 84,869 6,290 91,159
Modification and termination of leases &% &) f 4% |+ (219,955) - (219,955)
Exchange difference EH =5 27,548 - 27,548
As at 31 March 2021 RZE—_—F=H=+—H 2,050,071 1,179,433 3,229,504
As at 1 April 2021 R-ZE-_—FmA—H 2,050,071 1,179,433 3,229,504
Additions NE 879,504 - 879,504
Cash flows: WEmRE
— Repayment of bank borrowings —RITERZER - (100,000) (100,000)
— Payment of lease liabilities -YNHEEAE (849,393) - (849,393)
— Interest paid - BFE - (10,941) (10,941)
Finance cost BATGRC AR 76,846 11,198 88,044
Modification and termination of leases  TAE & H) 4R |+ (140,210) - (140,210)
Exchange difference M+ ERR 6,593 - 6,593
As at 31 March 2022 RZZEZZF=HA=+—H 2,023,411 1,079,690 3,103,101
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R

2

Share Award Scheme 32 RpEREEE
On 27 August 2013, a share award scheme (the “Share Award RZE—=FN\AZ++tH  ARFE
Scheme” or the “Scheme”) was approved and adopted by the = RE REM—IER D ZEE I (TR
Board of Directors of the Company. Unless otherwise cancelled or 8RN st &l 3 [Z&T28l]) - BRIESTT
amended, the Scheme will remain valid and effective for 15 years BUBSKIEET » 2% aT &1 B 5 B BiEET
from the date of adoption. THERNEFBRREFR -
During the year ended 31 March 2022, 1,628,439 (2021: 1,615,542) (E_ R _F=A=+—HBIFEA"
restricted shares (Note b) and 50,640 (2021: 400,136) performance 1,628,439% (=& ——4F : 1,615,542 %)
shares (Note c) were granted to selected participants pursuant to PR 1) 14 A% 19 (Bf 3£ b) K% 50,640/%( ==
the Scheme. Details of the restricted shares and performance shares ——14F 1 400,136 Hﬁ) %Ziﬁﬁfﬁ(ﬁﬁéic) E
awarded under the Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2022 BEZA SR TREEREE - 5 E
are as follows: ——#=R=+—H JJ:¢J§ ' *ETE?E%J@?‘J
KBRS D REERMDFFHEAT :
Number of shares
ik €]
As at Granted Vested Lapsed As at
Fair value 1Apr|| 2021 during during during 31 March 2022
Date of grant pershare RZF=-F the year the year theyear MW=ZZZF  Vesting period
RiEAS SRATE IH B EREH EREE ER%Y ZA=t-8B  BEH
HKS
V-7
(Note a)
GEE)
317712018 18.6 393,346 - (392,203) (1,143) - 31July2019-31 July 2021 (Note b)
ZZ-NEtA=T-HZ
“E--ELA=T-A(KiED)
317712019 24.1 701,380 - (344,247) (32,197) 324936 31 July 2020-31 July 2022 (Note b)
“Z-RFLA=T-RE
ZTCEFA=T-A(MED)
317712019 236 3,030,086 - - (3,030,086) - June 2022 (Note ¢)
:T::ﬁ/\ﬂ (29
317712020 14.0 1,565,492 - (515,724) (99,669) 950,099 31 July 2021 -31 July 2023 (Note b)
“Z-—#tf=t-B%
ZE-=FHA=T-A(KiD)
317712020 142 370,889 - - (370,889) - June 2022 (Note ¢)
:;::ﬁ/\ﬂ(mc)
317712021 147 - 1,628,439 - (120,351) 1,508,088 31 July 2022 - 31 July 2024 (Note b)
“E-EFAST-RZE
“E-UELAZT-A(KiED)
31172021 15.5 - 50,640 - (50,640) - June 2022 (Note ¢)
“TCCERAMEC
6,061,193 1679079  (1,252,174) (3,704,975 2,783,123
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32 Share Award Scheme (Continued) 32

Details of the restricted shares and performance shares awarded
under the Share Award Scheme during the year ended 31 March
2021 are as follows:

2

Bt R BT & (&)

RBEE_T_—F=—A=t+—HLHF
B - REMAD SREYET 814X H 8O FR il 1 AR
I REEBOFHBEH AT

Number of shares
RiH%E
As at Granted Vested Lapsed As at
Fairvalue 1 April 2020 during during during 31 March 2021
Date of grant pershare  RZF-F the year the year theyear WZZZ—%  Vesting period
=t BRATHE MA—HA ERfit ENEE EREH ZA=+-B BEH
HKS
AT
(Note )
(Rta)
31712017 236 276,151 - (275,293) (858) - 31July2018-31 July 2020 (Note b)
“Z-\ftA=T-HZ
ZZ-TELA=T-A (WD)
31/7/2018 186 828,816 - (409,170) (26,300) 393,346 31July2019-31July 2021 (Note b)
ZZ-NFtA=T-HZ
ZE--FLA=1t—A(Mib)
31712019 241 1,131,373 - (374,141) (55,852) 701,380 31 July 2020 - 31 July 2022 (Note b)
"B RELA=T-HE
“E-—ELA=+-A(MiD)
31712019 236 3148628 - - (118542)  3,030,08  June 2022 (Note ¢)
“ECCERAMEC
31712020 14.0 - 1,615,542 (2,092) (47,958) 1,565,492 31 July2021-31 July 2023 (Note b)
S S =
ZE-=FHA=T-A(KiD)
31712020 142 - 400,136 - (29,247) 370,889 June 2022 (Note ¢)

“E-ERA (M)

5,384,968 2,015,678 (1,060,696) (278,757) 6,061,193
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Share Award Scheme (Continued)

During the year, the Group purchased 1,597,731 (2021: 1,542,055)
of its own shares through the trustee of the Scheme from the
open market. The total amount paid to acquire the shares was
approximately HK$25,581,000 (2021: HK$25,480,000) and has
been deducted from shareholders’ equity as at 31 March 2022. The

shares purchased by the Group that are not yet vested for this Share
Award Scheme were recorded as treasury shares of the Group. As
at 31 March 2022, there were 6,514,727 treasury shares (2021:
6,169,170) held through the trustee of the Scheme.

Notes:

(@)

©

(d

The fair value of the awarded shares was based on the closing price per share at
the date of grant and adjusted by the fair value of the dividends during the vesting
periods as the grantees are not entitled to dividends during the vesting periods.

The awarded restricted shares are subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 33%
of the awarded shares respectively on the first and second anniversary dates of
the grant date and the balance of the remaining awarded shares on the third
anniversary date of the grant date. In case such anniversary date is not a business
date, the date of vesting shall be the business day immediately thereafter.
Management has revised its estimates of number of shares that are expected to
vest based on the market vesting conditions.

The vesting of awarded performance shares were conditional upon attainment
of performance target with reference to the Group’s performance and the
performance target was not achieved. Therefore, no awarded performance shares
are vested. These awarded performance shares were lapsed on 31 March 2022
(Note 29).

During the year, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, being Directors
of the Company, participated in the Share Award Scheme.

32

2

Bt R BT & (&)

FR - AEBBEAZENITEARA
Mm% EEE 1,597, 731Hx(_7_*£|5 :
1,542,055 ) EBERHD - R=ZT ==
F=A=+—H HREERHOHIZIHZE
& ¥E%) /525,581,000 L (Z T —4 ¢
25,480,000 7T ) + B B IR R # = A
o AEBE RGN RE T EMEEE
mAFBORMNEEATSENETR

BPAR -R_E-_—_F=ZA=+—8"
EAEJrilJEI’\fot/\HEG 514,727 B E7FR%
N(ZZE=—% 6,169,170 %) °

MisE -

(a) BERO A TFEEER KL BB ERIKS
EBERZEBHANREAFEEIR AR
ERANERBHAEEZTARE

(b) BERGMERD RO DIRE - £XE B
s E—ERFARE _ERAFED5IH
B SR AR A7 2 33% » FIBRAO SR AR D R
HAMEAHE=EAFASE - EAFAL
FEER  BROBERHAREENT @
EER - ERECREMSREGRITER
B FREZROEE 2 fhEf o

(© BREERN BRI CLEREEERRY
ﬂﬁ?ﬁmmiﬁfﬁﬁﬁéﬁ FE - mMKRFBE
RER - At WEBBIMRREER
7 ZERBEERNER=_T=_=_F=1
=+—BRB(f7E29) °

(d) FARRRERERALERERALEDY
B2 R R E -
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33 Commitments 33 A&iE
(@) Capital commitments (a) BAEIE
As at 31 March 2022, the Group had the following capital RZZBZZF=A=+—H0 xEEZ
commitments: BN -
2022 2021
—E-= B —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET F&T
Acquisition of property, WEEMZE - BB %
plant and equipment
Authorised and contracted for BHEREERY 74,439 37,598
Authorised but not contracted for EHLEERERL 637,930 697,474
712,369 735,072
(b) Committed leases not yet commenced (b) EARFBNAERE
As at 31 March 2022, the total future lease payments for leases RZEZZF=A=+—H HE&AE
committed but not yet commenced were payable as follows: B AR R E T 3R (M= AR R e ) FE 4R
T
2022 2021
—E-—F —ET-—%F
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FET
Properties SES
Within 1 year —FRNHm 11,815 7,746
After 1 year but within 5 years EEZFERFANH® 44,015 23,554
55,830 31,300
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34 Financial Guarantees 34 BIEHER

As at 31 March 2022, the Company had given guarantees totalling RZEBE_—_F=A=+—H ' &xRaMA
approximately HK$2,233,496,000 (2021: HK$2,229,020,000) to MG BIREEEENE AR ZRITE
financial institutions in connection with the banking facilities granted ERBERA £492,233,496,0008 T (=
to its subsidiaries. T ——4% :2,229,020,000/&7T) °

The Group’s bankers have given guarantee in lieu of deposits RZZE-_—_F=RA=+—80 ' xEEZ
amounting to approximately HK$150,484,000 to the landlords and ERRITEMAEEMBARIZEER
utility providers of the subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 March 2022 AARBHREFRRER  URKEZS
(2021: HK$151,235,000). $ %849 /150,484,000 0 (=T = —

£ 151,235,000 7T) ©

35 Future Operating Lease Arrangements 35 ARRKEHEZLTH
As at 31 March 2022, the Group had future aggregate minimum RZEZ—_F=A=+—0  A£ER
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: BAAREE e MEMRRREK 2

RIEHEFRERAT :

2022 2021

=== —E-—F

HK$000 HK$000

FET FET

Not later than one year —FRNHm 31,217 37,820
Later than one year and E_EZFhFEANER

not later than five years 11,105 21,846

42,322 59,666
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36 Related Party Transactions

(@) The Group has the following significant
transactions with related party during the

36 BEBARS

(a) FAXREBEEEBLSEUTZ
EXXR5

year:
2022 2021
—EC-CF —EF-—F
HK$000 HK$000
FET T
Operating lease rentals paid MRS T2 B HERS -
to a related party:
— Tinway Investments Limited (Note) - RERERRATF (M) 2,147 2,400

Note:  Tinway Investments Limited is a company jointly owned by Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita,
an associate of Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, and Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited,
the trustee of a unit trust of which Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny being a beneficiary.
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny
are Directors of the Company.

The above transactions were carried out in accordance with the
terms of the contracts entered into by the Group and the related
party.

(b) Key management compensation

Mz : REBREEGRARBHEZBL LT BRtE
EZHMBAUNR —BBAEE(HERLE
EERX @A) Z X5 AArdley Enterprises
(PTO) Limited XA #EH - BEEX L - R
REERBRKXEEIRADRES o

B R B IR A R B BB T TR L2
B RVEFEST

(b) EEEEAEM=

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries and allowances N 2L 23,303 23,570
Fees e 100 100
Discretionary bonuses JEE FEAEAL 8,009 12,001
Contributions to pension schemes RINEFT B 126 126
Share-based compensation expense LARR (9 2 A5 Bl <2 2,932 3,742
34,470 39,539

216 Café de Coral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22



(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

37 Statement of Financial Position and 37 ZAARMBMRRERK #iES
Reserve Movement of the Company 3
Statement of financial position of the (a) AXAFIMKIKREK
Company
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
—E-= —E—F
=A=+—H =A=+—H
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
B 5T FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREEE
Investment in a subsidiary R B A RIRRE 331,802 331,802
Amount due from subsidiaries RS NGIE O 1,236,979 1,172,075
1,568,781 1,503,877
Current assets REEE
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEIER 348 280
Total assets wmEE 1,569,129 1,504,157
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves BATRRERFEA
attributable to the equity FEAG IR A R
holders of the Company
Share capital [i&N 58,570 58,570
Share premium 10 m (& 37(b) 621,122 621,122
Shares held for share &0 SE B =T 21
award scheme A 2 & 37(b) (130,939) (140,944)
Other reserves Efbf# G 37(b) 270,182 282,641
Retained earnings IRER = A 37(b) 749,715 682,452
Total equity RREL 1,568,650 1,503,841
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REBAE
Other creditors and accrued EMh T ERIE R ERT &
liabilities 479 316
Total equity and liabilities REREEHEEE 1,569,129 1,504,157
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37 Statement of Financial Position and

37 ARRMIBEARRR R R

Reserve Movement of the Company g (&)
(Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) ADEHEE
Capital Share-based  Shares held for Contributed
Share redemption  compensation  share award Surplus Retained
premium reserve reserve scheme (note) earnings Total
-8 HRERE  ROEETE EHES
k&g BE&% WEe RS KERf U2 REER ]
HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000
TAT TAT TAT T T T T
Balance as at 1 Aprl 2021 NZET-EMA-AEH 621,122 152,034 36,140 (140,944) 94467 682,45 1,445,271
Employee share award scheme B R £E:E
~value of employee semvices -ESTRBEE = = 10,482 - - = 10,482
Vesting shares of share R fEER R
award scheme - - 29 35,586 - (12,645) -
Purchase of shares BARD = = - (25581) - = (25,581)
Profit attributable to equity ARARERE AEEH = - - - - 300,000 300,000
holders of the Company
Dividends ke = - = = = (22009) (220,092)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 i S o pla 621,122 152,034 23,681 (130939) 94,467 749,715 1,510,080
Balance as at 1 Aprl 2020 NE-ZEMA-ALA 621,122 152,034 26,30 (146,021) 9% 467 367,675 1,115,581
Employee share award scheme SR RErE
- value of employee services - EERKERE - - 3123 - - = B13
Vesting shares of share award scheme R A BT 2R 1T 5B - - (13.287) 30,557 - (7270) -
Purchase of shares BARD = = - (25.480) - = (25,480)
Profitattrioutable to equity ARARERE BT
holders of the Company - - - - - 380,000 380,000
Dividends k& - - - - - (57,953) (57.953)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 RZEZ-F=A=t-A&H 621,122 152,034 36,140 (140,944) 94467 68245 1,445,271
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37 Statement of Financial Position and
Reserve Movement of the Company
(Continued)

(b)

Reserve movement of the Company
(Continued)

(i)

Contributed surplus mainly arose from the group
reorganisation made in prior years and represented the
difference between the value of investment in a subsidiary
acquired by the Company and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange thereon. Under
the Companies Act of Bermuda, contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that
the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would after
the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due or (i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium account.

37

(b)

2

ARAMBRRRE HES
B (&)

ARTREEE (H)

(i)

EMBRTRRAKERNBESF
EHEAMESL 2RV
REARBROERTABAKRBR
AIRENEEERARAETH
RO EENZEME - REAR
ZERBE  BRARAIDE TR
R MG D BECREEEDI
B 3 (i) LB B/ Al E IR EE K
Rt mEREBEAREE#ETT
R KB s B B8 - AR
BRI R AR B ESRT TRk
KRB R DK ©
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Principal Investment Properties

TEREW=

Approximate
internal floor

area size
(sqft)
B A
Description Lot number BHEE Type Lease term
Hut 3 BR 4R 5% (EFR) B A
1. Portion A & C of Shop No. N95 on New Kowloon Inland Lot 2,608 Shop Medium-term
the First Floor, Nos. 1-17 Mount Sterling No. 5086 [k R Hf
Mall and Nos. 10-16 Lai Wan Road, BB ER 5086 5%
Mei Foo Sun Chuen, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon
NEEH I AEF I 788 10-16 5%
BEERS1-17 R — NS A K CHBip
2. Rear Portion of Shop No. 3 on Tsuen Wan Town 392 Shop Medium-term
the Ground Floor, Cheong Yiu Building, Lot No. 223 P 47 R HA
Nos. 167, 171 and 173 2ETHER 223 5%
Castle Peak Road and Nos. 47-51
Shiu Wo Street, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories
HAEEEILE167 171 K173 K&
JEMET 47-51 57 BB E —12 357 EBILE 1D
3.  2/F, Cheong Yiu Building, Nos. 167, Tsuen Wan Town 4,720 Shop Medium-term
171 & 173 Castle Peak Road and Lot No. 223 B A
Nos. 47-51 Shiu Wo Street, EETIHLER 223 5%
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
FAEESILE167 - 171 R1735HR
KT 47-51 RERKNE &
4. Shop A of Portion B on the Basement, Kowloon Inland 1,946 Shop Medium-term
Argyle Centre, Phase |, Lot No. 1262 &k HHf
No. 688 Nathan Road and BEIHIER 1262 5%
No. 65 Argyle Street, Mongkok,
Kowloon

BERT A RZUE 688 57 M ob £ 7 65 5
AE A e 0EE — HRdb & B 2610 A %R
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6.

Principal Investment Properties

Description
Hut

Shop C of Portion B on the Basement,
Argyle Centre, Phase |,
No. 688 Nathan Road and
No. 65 Argyle Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon
JUBERE AR UE 688 5% I
T EH 65 A AR
E—HiMhE B EPH C

Shop A on the Ground Floor,
Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong
BBERE18FEERL—IEAMH

FEREYFE

Approximate
internal floor

area size

(sqft)

BEA R EB
Lot number BHEE Type Lease term
3 ER 4R SR (EHR) EE A
Kowloon Inland 3,378 Shop Medium-term

Lot No. 1262 Ek HHf

FLEEAIIER 1262 57
Inland Lot No. 8423 3,530 Shop Long-term
B ER 8423 5% &k ~H
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Principal Self-Used Properties

Description

Shop Nos. A10 (Portion), A11, G13
(Portion) & G14, G/F,, and
Shop Nos. 157-159, 1/F,
Tai On Building,
Nos. 57/87 Shau Kei Wan Road,
Shau Kei Wan, Hong Kong
E/E L BEIULE57/87 %
Kﬂimeo(%ﬁﬁ),
A11, G13(2B9) & G14 558 &
118 157-159 5% 44

Shops H and |, G/F,, King's House,
Nos. 969 & 971 King’s Road,
Nos. 1, 3 & 5 Tong Chong Street,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

HEREBREE 969 & 9715 1%
BEM1,385%

%E'Ej(}* HTNH R I

Shop Nos. 13-13A, 15-18,
53, 53A and 55-59,
1/F., Kwai Chung Plaza,
Nos. 7-11 Kwai Foo Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories
FAZRE R 7-11 9%
FEES 112 13-13A, 15-18,
53, 53A K% 55-59 5% 4

The entire 1/F., Metropole Building,
Nos. 53-63 Peking Road and
Nos. 12 & 12A-C Hankow Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
SR IE L FRIE 53-63 55 &
/;%D;Eu & 12A-C5%
BEEHAE11ERE

Portion B of Shop N95,
1/F., Nos. 1-11,
15-17 Mount Sterling Mall &
Nos. 10-16

Lai Wan Road, Mei Foo Sun Chuen,

Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon
NS AEZ I 58

10-16 5B FEES

1-11, 15-17 5% 1 #2N95 B 2[5

Shop B of Portion B, Basement,
including floor space under
the escalators, Argyle Centre,
Phase I, No. 688 Nathan Road and
No. 65 Argyle Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon
méﬁfﬁaﬁﬁﬂzﬁm 6885 I
BEH655E
a};%%b% HAtb & B 215
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FE B RYE

E

Approximate
internal floor

area size
(sqft)
BRI
Lot number BHEE Type Lease term
i ER 4 5% (FFR) T A
Shau Kei Wan Inland 3,959 Shoy Medium-term
Lot No. 738 ] HHf
BEEANMEL 73858
Marine Lot No. 703 4,370 Sho Long-term
7G55 HIER 703 5% & =H
Kwai Chung Town 3,423 Sh%) Medium-term
Lot No. 398 ] A
ZOMTHER 398 9%
Kowloon Inland 2,306 Sho Medium-term
Lot No. 7728 ﬁg HHA
JUBERIHIER 7728 5%
New Kowloon Inland 3,860 Shoy Medium-term
_ Lot No. 5086 ] i
FTILBE I ER 5086 57
Kowloon Inland Lot 4,677 Sho Medium-term
No. 1262 ] R HA

NBERHBER 1262 5%



Principal Self-Used Properties
FEH AW

Description

i
7.

10.

11.

12.

Store B, M/F & 1/F,
Cheong Yiu Building,
Nos. 167, 171 & 173
Castle Peak Road and
No. 47-51 Shiu Wo Street,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
FAEEEF B 167, 171 & 1735 %
KA 47-515%
ERANEMEBH K 11£

Shop A, G/F, including Cockloft,
Offices A, B & C, 1/F, and
Offices A, B, C & D, 2/F,
Lee Kiu Building, No. 51 Jordan Road,
Yau Ma Tei, Kowloon

JUBE M e 28 51 9%
ABEAREH T Al (BIEEE)
1HEA, BR CHRE A
218A, B, C & D5R4H

Shop B in Portions of
former Units (Shops) A, B and D,
Ground Floor of the Podium,

Admiralty Centre, No. 18 Harcourt Road,

Admiralty, Hong Kong
BERIEERE 185 )
BEROMTA, BRDSRHENB

Shop C in Portions of former
Units (Shops) A, B and
D, Ground Floor of the Podium,

Admiralty Centre, No. 18 Harcourt Road,

Admiralty, Hong Kong
EEoEEREISY,
BEAH O T A, BRDSREERC

Shop D in Portions of former
Units (Shops) A, B and
D, Ground Floor of the Podium,
Admiralty Centre, No. 18 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong
BELERERE 185
FEE RO A, B R DSREHEERID

Shop E in Portions of former
Units (Shops) A, B and
D, Ground Floor of the Podium,
Admiralty Centre, No. 18 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong
HETEERE 185
BEROMTA, BRDRMHENE

E

Lot number

1 R 4w 55

Tsuen Wan Town Lot
No. 223

b My S

ZETHIER 223 5]

Kowloon Inland Lot
No. 9894
JUEE D ER 9894 5%

Inland Lot No. 8423
3 ER 8423 8%

Inland Lot No. 8423
I ER 8423 5%

Inland Lot No. 8423
I ER 8423 5%

Inland Lot No. 8423
3 ER 8423 8%

Approximate
internal floor
area size
(sqft)
BRI
BEHEE
(FAR)

5,202

4,769

1,395

4,362

586

163

Type
R

Shoy
[

Qjﬂce
WNE

Sho
]

i
Sho

ek

RRESEER

Lease term

HAH

Medium-term

3

Medium-term

R E]

Long-term

Long-term

=31

Long-term

Long-term
= H

NA] 2021/22 E#H
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Principal Self-Used Properties
FEH AW

Description

it
13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Shop Nos. 1, 2, 3,5, 6, 7
(including the corresponding part of
yard adjacent thereto), 8, 21 and
22, G/F, Orion Court,
No. 23 Mau Tan Street, Yuen Long,
New Territories

FT SR TTEAME FHET 23 5%

E

FR/=ERM 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7(BIEEEFFAR

ZBERT 2 HAREERID), 8, 21 K 22 i

Factory Unit G, 11/F,,
City Industrial Complex,
Nos. 71-77 Yau Ma Hom Road and
Nos. 116-122 Kwok Shui Road,
__Kwai Chung, New Territories
TR E B MM 71-77 95 &%
B3I H% 116-122 5%
WM ITERLTTBENG

Unit 13, 4/F, Sun Fung Centre,
No. 88 Kwok Shui Road, Tsuen Wan,
__New Territories
RS EEImEL 885
MERO 4B 1357 EN

Unit 15, 4/F, Sun Fung Centre,
No. 88 Kwok Shui Road, Tsuen Wan,
__New Territories
AL SRR 885%
FTEHO 48 1557 B

Factory Unit 5 and 5A, G/F,
Tak Lee Industrial Centre,
No. 8 Tsing Yeung Circuit,
__Tuen Mun, New Territories
HREPIE B 8T \
SRIITZEFR O T 5 & SASRER

Unit A1 on G/F, Tuen Mun Industrial
Centre, No. 2 San Ping Circuit,
__Tuen Mun, New Territories
FIRHLPIR T 2 5% .
P IEA O T A1 SR EBAL

Café de Coral Centre,

5-13 Wo Shui Street, Fo Tan, Sha Tin,

New Territories

¥ SP B NRARFEHT 5-13 AR L O

No. 17 Dai Fu Street,
Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories

A A TR AREH 75

No. 19 Dai Fu Street,
Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories

SR AAI TR REH 1957
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Lot number

h ER 4R 5%
Lot No. 3798 in

D.D. 120
D.D. 120 B 3798 5%

Kwai Chung Town Lot

. No. 339
ZOB TR 339 5%

Tsuen Wan Town Lot
++NO;_344
BT ER 344 55

Tsuen Wan Town Lot
++NO;_344
ZE TR 344 5%

Tuen Mun Town Lot
No. 163
P TIHER 163 5%

Tuen Mun Town Lot

No. 76
M PI T HBER 76 5%
Sha Tin Town Lot
_No.2
Y ERTHHER 2 8%

Tai Po Town Lot
No. 1 and

the Extension thereto

AETHER 1 SRR
BIEE D

Tai Po Town Lot
No. 1 and

the Extension thereto

RITTHIER 1 5% &
BEH D

Approximate
internal floor
area size
(sqft)
BRI
BEHEE
(FAR)

3,180

3,388

1,219

1,384

4,355

9,244

160,503

108,517

209,674

Type
R

Factory
=

Factory
5

Factory
5

Warehouse
BE

Factory
=

Office and
Facto

I
BAZ RS

Office and
Facto

)
A NS

Office and
Facto

)
A NS

Lease term

G

Medium-term

Medium-term

Medium-term
A

Medium-term
A

Medium-term
A

Medium-term

Medium-term

Medium-term
A

Medium-term



Principal Self-Used Properties

Description

fEa
22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

Units 2, 3 & 4, Basement and
2-1, 3-1 & 4-1, Level 1,
Dexing Building, Jianshe Road,
Luohu District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, China
mlr% e
EEANEZE2, 3, 4EH N ER—

Unit A3, Level 1 and Unit B3,
Level 2, Fushan Garden,
Yingbin Avenue, Gongbei District,
Zhuhai, Guangdong Province, China
EPIJ*ﬁé I%/i}#jt@@ﬁk
AR —
A3SESE I — JE B3 SEER

Shop A, G/F, Edificios Lei Ka, Lei Nin,
Lei Va, Nos. 48B-48C
Avenida de Horta e Costa, Macau
BPYETEASE
48B-48C 5fih T A%H

No. 10 Chunfen Road, Yonghe Zone,
Guangzhou Economic and
Technological Development District,
Guangzhou, China

EPIFJII?%@‘&TTI%?%*@K%H
REBREDI 1055

No.44 West Shangxing Road,
Shangjiao District, Changan Town,
Dongguan City, Guangdong Province,
China
PRIRETREE F AR R 445

E

Approximate
gross floor area

(sqm)
BB EEER
(EF3K)

1,794

1,144

517

34,155

5,400

FE B RYE

Type
e

Shog

Sho
[l

Factory

Factory

ARBEEFR AR 2021/22 Fif

Lease term

HAH

Medium-term

ek

Medium-term

Medium-term

5]

Medium-term

Medium-term
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AT BEHE

Five-Year Financial Summary

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS mEBEmK
For the five years ended 31 March 2022 HE_ T _F=A=+—HIREAFE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
“EC-CF B 3 S -3 —Z-NF —Z-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue N 7,508,753 6,714,255 7,963,097 8,493,883 8,427,399
Cost of sales HERA (6,961,032) (6,339,067) (7,232,445) (7,266,605) (7,385,291)
Gross profit EF 547,721 375,188 730,652 1,227,278 1,042,108
Other income and other Hil A &

(losses)/gains, net Hi% (B518) /5 Fl 42,296 561,011 (40,540) 17,687 (13,706)
Administrative expenses THER (458,843) (462,619) (481,414) (445,453) (458,819)
Operating profit EE G 131,174 473,580 208,698 799,512 569,583
Finance income BB 7,659 8,125 16,098 14,803 11,661
Finance costs BIFEARA (88,044) (91,159) (110,538) (114,189) =
Profit before income tax BEADRF 50,789 390,546 114,258 700,126 581,244
Income tax expense FiEHER (27,939) (29,996) (39,872) (128,456) (121,949)
Profit for the year AEFZRF 22,850 360,550 74,386 571,670 459,295
Profit attributable to: [E(E&RR :

Equity holders of the Company ARAFRIEZRE A 21,214 359,130 73,634 569,907 458,055
Non-controlling interests IR 1,636 1,420 752 1,763 1,240
22,850 360,550 74,386 571,670 459,295

Dividends P 8 163,997 222,567 111,284 491,856 679,230
Dividend per share GRS HK28 cents HK38 cents HK19 cents HK84 cents  HK116 cents
28 &1l 38781l 19781 8474l 116 74l

Basic earnings per share BRERRT HK$0.04 HK$0.62 HK$0.13 HK$0.98 HK$0.79
0.0458 T 0.6287T 0.13% 0.9878 0.79% 7T

Diluted earnings per share BREERET HK$0.04 HK$0.62 HK$0.13 HK$0.98 HK$0.79
0.0458 T 0.6287T 0.137%T 0.9878 7T 0.79% 7T
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AT BEHE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF mE BRI E
FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 March 2022 RZZEZ=—F=A=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
St 2 “EB_—f “BCEF —ZNF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
Assets BE
Non-current assets FEMBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights TE 1 % 1 st F i — — — — 79,485
Property, plant and equipment mE - BELEE 1,586,070 1,518,982 1,608,831 1,532,256 2,020,925
Right-of-use assets FRESE 2,158,474 2,124,383 2,705,239 2,980,808 —
Investment properties RENE 514,800 542,700 585,600 628,000 663,300
Intangible assets B EE 1,191 1,229 1,421 1,852 4,051
Deferred income tax assets BIEHIBAE 67,714 70,733 66,294 56,729 30,506
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE — — — — 147,978
Financial assets at fair value BRAHESARMEE
through other comprehensive income ~ WAZ&BEE 95,931 96,951 101,033 154,102 —
Retirement benefit assets RASBHEE 2,878 542 — — —
Non-current prepayments and deposits  JEREIB HIBRILE 293,263 283,622 277,820 307,871 295,657
4,720,321 4,639,142 5,346,238 5,661,618 3,241,902
Current assets MEBEE
Inventories 7E 303,542 234,924 260,626 241,325 234,362
Trade and other receivables EEREMENERE 199,550 102,539 166,518 165,086 191,466
Prepayments and deposits BAFERES 55,074 51,490 60,920 38,099 121,198
Current income tax recoverable BNER AT Yk ] 7R 7,773 32,844 39,743 1,017 3,383
Bank deposits with maturity over HBR={AAZIHEmM
three months FITTER — 21,222 1,641 21,865 22,778
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEER 1,585,586 2,072,512 345,072 835,537 801,240
2,151,525 2,515,531 874,520 1,302,929 1,374,427
Total assets BEE 6,871,846 7,154,673 6,220,758 6,964,547 4,616,329
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A FHMBEE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

mEMBRRAE (&)

As at 31 March 2022 RZZEZ=—F=A=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ZECCF -5z 3 —T-NF —T-N\F
HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FEL FEL FET
Equity MR
Capital and reserves attributable to RO RIIRERE ARE(R
equity holders of the Company RA R
Share capital A 58,570 58,570 58,570 58,554 58,554
Other reserves Hivf 1,005,384 988,630 943,621 1,025,861 1,074,300
Retained earnings B R 1,754,787 1,981,637 1,664,542 2,090,219 2,436,827
2,818,741 3,028,837 2,666,733 3,174,634 3,569,681
Non-controlling interests JerEmE RS 7,635 5,999 4,579 5,220 3,819
Total equity P aRE 2,826,376 3,034,836 2,671,312 3,179,854 3,573,500
Liabilities afs
Non-current liabilities FreaE
Deferred income tax liabilities ELHARE 36,225 33,424 29,410 27,659 33,520
Provision for long service payments RER%BE 41,548 30,629 48,778 45,258 34,990
Retirement benefit liabilities RNEEHEE — — 10,346 13,459 18,747
Lease liabilities HEEE 1,341,995 1,368,550 1,845,279 2,017,541 —
Long-term borrowings RHER 899,690 999,433 - = -
2,319,458 2,432,036 1,933,813 2,103,917 87,257
Current liabilities MEAE
Trade payables BEEMNRE 167,408 178,183 172,161 219,710 207,478
Other creditors and accrued liabilities HEERRENEER 682,823 640,378 675,200 648,178 706,965
Current income tax liabilities HERIEGE 14,365 7,719 13,487 39,300 41,129
Lease liabilities HEERE 681,416 681,521 754,785 773,588 =
Current portion of long-term RASFRASHDH
borrowings 100,000 100,000 — — —
Short-term borrowings REER 80,000 80,000 — — —
1,726,012 1,687,801 1,615,633 1,680,776 955,572
Total liabilities mafs 4,045,470 4,119,837 3,549,446 3,784,693 1,042,829
Total equity and liabilities MR B G 6,871,846 7,154,673 6,220,758 6,964,547 4,616,329
Net assets per share SREEFE HK$4.83 HK$5.18 HK$4.56 HK$5.43 HK$6.10
483%TT 5.18% T 456/ 5.43%7t 6.107 7T
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